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VOLUMES I, 11, III, IVAND V
REFERENCES TO MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Issues of importance which are included in this Part of the Report include matters which arose during the
course of audit which have been referred to senior agency management, and other matters which are of

public interest.

Those matters which are regarded as being more significant are listed below, together with a reference to the
appropriate page number. This list is not exhaustive, as many other issues are reported in Volumes I, II, III,

VI and V of Part B of this Report.

Reference should also be made to Part A — Audit Overview which also contains comments on specific matters

of importance and interest.
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VOLUMES I, II, III, IV and V
ACCOUNTS OF PUBLIC AUTHORITIES

INTRODUCTION

Part B — Volumes I, II, III, IV and V of the Report of the Auditor-General contains the Financial Statements
of, and comments concerning, the operations of those public sector agencies that I am required by law to
audit and that are defined by the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 as ‘public authorities’. Where
appropriate, charts and tables have been used to illustrate selected information.

AGENCIES NOT INCLUDED IN THIS REPORT
In preparing this Report every effort is made to ensure that only matters which are relevant, appropriate and
timely are included. Subsection 36(2) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides the Auditor-General

with a discretionary power to choose which agencies are excluded from this Report.

The following factors are taken into consideration in determining which agencies are to be included in this
Report:

. Materiality of financial operations.

. Materiality of any impact on the public finances.

. Consolidation of the financial operations in the Parent Entity’s Financial Statements included in this
Report.

. Timeliness of information.

. Materiality of issues arising from the audit.

. Public interest.

A number of the agencies excluded from the Report are required to prepare an Annual Report in accordance
with the requirements of the Public Sector Management Act 1995. In addition, Treasurer’s Instruction 19
Financial Reporting requires that each Chief Executive Officer must ensure that the Annual Report, which is
required to be submitted to the responsible Minister in accordance with the Public Sector Management Act
1995 and Regulations, or other legislation, includes the general purpose financial statements in the form in
which they were presented to the Auditor-General, together with a copy of the Report of the Auditor-General
on the statements.

SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT

There are also agencies whose Financial Statements had not been finalised and the audit has not been
completed in time for inclusion in this Report. The Financial Statements for and commentary on the
operations of the following agencies will be included in a Supplementary Report to be presented to Parliament
later this year.

. Environment and Heritage, Department for
. HomeStart Finance
. Primary Industries and Resources, Department of.

AUDIT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL’S DEPARTMENT

The Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 requires that the accounts of the Auditor-General’s Department be
audited by an auditor appointed by the Governor. The audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2006 was
conducted by Edwards Marshall, Chartered Accountants, who have issued an unqualified Independent Audit
Report.



Public Authorities
QUALIFIED AUDIT OPINIONS

The expression of an opinion on an organisation’s annual Financial Statements by an independent professional
auditor adds credibility to those Statements and ensures that an appropriate level of financial disclosure has
been exercised.

For those agencies that I am required to audit, I issue an Independent Audit Report on the Financial
Statements in accordance with professional requirements and standards. The opinion expressed in that
Report is usually unqualified but, where, in my opinion, circumstances so warrant, a qualified opinion is
expressed. In extreme cases it may be necessary to decline to express an opinion.

In all cases where a qualified opinion (or no opinion) is given, full reasons are stated in the Independent Audit
Report that is issued.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2006 qualified opinions were expressed on the Financial Statements of
the following agencies:

South Australian Forestry Corporation

South Australian Motor Sport Board

Transport, Energy and Infrastructure, Department for
University of South Australia.

CONTROLS OPINION

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 requires the Auditor-General to advise
Parliament whether in his opinion the controls exercised by the Treasurer and by public authorities in relation
to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the
incurring of liabilities is sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the
Treasurer and public authorities have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

In accordance with that requirement a Controls Opinion has been expressed for each agency.

REFERENCES TO MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Matters which have arisen from the audit of agencies during this financial year are commented on in Volumes
I, II, III, IV and V of Part B of this Report. Those issues that are regarded as either serious in nature or of
public interest importance are listed separately under the heading ‘References to Matters of Significance’
immediately after the Table of Contents in each Volume.



ADELAIDE CONVENTION CENTRE CORPORATION

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE
Establishment

The Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation, a subsidiary to the Minister for Tourism, was established
pursuant to regulations under the Public Corporations Act 1993.

Functions

The functions of the Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation are as follows:

. Manage and operate the Centre site, and to hold and manage assets associated with the Centre.

. Manage, promote and sponsor events at the Centre site or elsewhere.

. Foster and assist the commercial development of the Centre site in order to complement and enhance
the commercial potential of the Centre.

o Carry out other functions conferred on the subsidiary by the Minister.

Structure

The structure of the Corporation at 30 June 2006 is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

Minister for
Tourism

Board of
Directors

[
Chief
Executive
Officer

Cate:rmg and Regattas Building Finance and Technical Sales and Front of
Kitchen : ! : Human . ) Car Parks

. Bistro Engineering . Services Marketing House

Operations Services

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

The Schedule to the Public Corporations Act 1993 and subsection 31(1)(b) of the Public Finance and Audit Act
1987 provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of the Corporation for each financial year.

Assessment of Controls
Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to assess
the controls exercised by the Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation in relation to the receipt, expenditure

and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the
Financial Management Framework as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 2 Financial Management Policies.



Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation
Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an audit opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.

During 2005-06, specific areas of audit attention included:

revenue
expenditure

payroll

inventory

property, plant and equipment
general ledger.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS
Audit Opinions
Audit of the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions
promulgated under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, applicable Accounting Standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the financial position of the Adelaide
Convention Centre Corporation as at 30 June 2006, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation in relation to the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of
liabilities are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Adelaide
Convention Centre Corporation have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Audit Communications to Management

The outcome of the audit was satisfactory, although some opportunities were identified to enhance accounting
and related processes. This was conveyed in a management letter to the Chief Executive and a satisfactory
response was received.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT

Income Statement

Income

The Corporation’s income for trading activities for the year increased by $3.1 million to $25 million. The
increase is the result of an increase in facility charges income of $4.1 million (mainly catering up $3 million)
which was offset by a reduction in the net gain on revaluation of assets of $1 million.

Income from property management activities increased by $1.2 million to $6.2 million. The increase is the
result of an increase in the contribution from the South Australian Government. For 2005-06 the contribution
included a $1 million one-off capital grant for upgrade works to the Riverbank promenade.

Expenses

The Corporation’s expenses from trading activities increased by $2.6 million to $21.5 million. The increase is
the result of an increase of $1.5 million in employee expenses and $1.1 million in supplies and services.

Expenses from property management activities decreased by $2.1 million to $8.5 million. The decrease is
mainly due to a net loss on revaluation of assets which was incurred during 2004-05.

Net Result

The Corporation achieved a profit of $3.5 million ($3 million) from trading activities for the year while
property management activities realised a loss of $2.4 million ($5.7 million).



Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation

The Corporation reported a net profit of $1.1 million for the year compared to a loss of $2.7 million in 2005.
The major items contributing to this change are the increase in facility charges of $4.1 million and an increase
of $1.1 million in contribution from the South Australian Government.

The following chart shows the total revenues, total expenses and profits/losses for the four years to 2006.

40

20 H

$29.5M
$28.1M $25.4M $26.0M|$26.7M $26.8M $31:2M$30.0M

10 R

$ Millions
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¥ -$2.7M

-10
2003 2004 2005 2006

OIncome OExpenses O Profit/Loss

Balance Sheet

The net assets of $155 million include $138 million for buildings, plant and equipment.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash held by the Corporation was $20.3 million ($17.3 million) and comprises $9.4 million in cash on deposit,
cash at bank and cash on hand; and $10.9 million in specific purpose deposits of which $9.1 million is

earmarked for future assets replacement.



Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation

Income Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2006

INCOME FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES:
Facility charges
Interest
Net gain from disposal of assets
Net gain on revaluation of assets
Other Revenue
Total Income

EXPENSES FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Total Expenses
PROFIT FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES
INCOME FROM PROPERTY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES:
Contribution from SA Government
Interest
Total Income
EXPENSES FROM PROPERTY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Net loss on revaluation of assets
Total Expenses
LOSS FROM PROPERTY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX EQUIVALENTS
Income tax equivalent expense
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX EQUIVALENTS IS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE STATE GOVERNMENT AS OWNER

Note

10
11

10
11

13

2006 2005
$’000 $'000
24 339 20 181
560 589

13 29

- 1 036

77 44

24 989 21 879
12 706 11 259
7 254 6 145
1527 1 467
21 487 18 871
3 502 3008
5 598 4 476
567 444

6 165 4 920
1431 1431
4118 3935
2 989 2921
- 2344

8 538 10 631
(2 373) (5 711)
1129 (2 703)
39 -

1 090 (2 703)




Balance Sheet

as at 30 June 2006

Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash on deposit, at bank and on hand
Receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Specific purpose deposits
Buildings, plant and equipment

Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Security deposits held
Employee benefits
Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Employee benefits
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY:
South Australian Government equity
Accumulated surplus

TOTAL EQUITY

Commitments

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
24 9 409 8 362
14 787 525
322 218
15 328 477
10 846 9 582
16,24 10 890 8 932
17 137 870 139 474
148 760 148 406
159 606 157 988
18 891 1127
19 1938 1 566
20(a) 855 679
3 684 3372
18 50 61
20(a) 833 681
883 742
4 567 4114
155 039 153 874
77 804 77 804
77 235 76 070
155 039 153 874
21
22




Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Asset
Contributed Revaluation Retained
Capital Reserve Earnings Total
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June 2004 77 804 2 546 78 773 159 123
Loss on revaluation of plant and equipment
during 2004-05 - (2 546) - (2 546)
Total recognised income and expense
for 2004-05 - - (2 703) (2 703)
Balance at 30 June 2005 77 804 - 76 070 153 874
Capitalisation of uniforms 3.21 - - 133 133
Distributions to Equity Holders 3.5 - - (58) (58)
Total recognised income and expense
for 2005-06 - - 1090 1090
Balance at 30 June 2006 77 804 - 77 235 155 039
All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner
Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006
2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Note $'000 $'000
CASH INFLOWS:
Facility charges 24 386 20 260
Contribution from SA Government 5 598 4 476
Interest received 1120 1017
GST receipts on facility charges 2464 2 049
Other receipts 77 44
Total Inflows from Operating Activities 33 645 27 846
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Payments to employees (13 771) (10 746)
Payments to suppliers (11 817) (11 193)
GST payments on purchases (1122) (1 075)
GST payments to taxation authority (1164) (1 044)
Total Outflows from Operating Activities (27 874) (24 058)
Net Cash Inflows provided from Operating Activities 24 5771 3788
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 104 73
Payment for buildings, plant and equipment (2 870) (2 804)
Net Cash Outflows used in Investing Activities (2 766) (2 731)
NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD 3 005 1 057
CASH AT 1 JULY 17 294 16 237
CASH AT 30 JUNE 24 20 299 17 294




Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Establishment and Functions of the Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation

1.1

1.2

Establishment
The Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation (Corporation) was established as a subsidiary to the Minister
for Tourism by Regulations issued under the Public Corporations Act 1993.

Functions
The functions of the Corporation are to:

. Manage and operate the Adelaide Convention Centre site, and to hold and manage assets
associated with the Corporation;

. Manage, promote and sponsor events at the Adelaide Convention Centre site or elsewhere;

. Attract economic benefits to the state of South Australia; and

. Foster and assist the commercial development of the Adelaide Convention Centre site in order to
complement and enhance the commercial potential of the Corporation.

Funding

2.1

Funding

The South Australian Government (through the Minister for Tourism) provides funding to the Corporation
for expenses relating to the maintenance of the common areas and the Riverbank Precinct, Exhibition Hall
land rent and the depreciation of buildings.

The funding for the depreciation of buildings is transferred by the Department of Treasury and Finance into
an interest bearing Special Deposit Account titled ‘Adelaide Convention Centre Future Asset Replacement
Account’. With the approval of the Treasurer, these funds are available for the replacement and upgrade of
assets and minor works.

Capital funding was also received directly from the Department of Treasury and Finance for the installation
of stairs from the Promenade to the Parklands adjacent to the River Torrens.

All other financial activities of the Corporation are conducted through an interest bearing Special Deposit
Account titled ‘Adelaide Convention Centre Operating Account’.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Basis of Accounting
The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The statements have been prepared in
accordance with:

. Treasurer’s Instructions and the Accounting Policy Framework promulgated under the provision of
the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987;

. Applicable Accounting Standards;

. Other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

These financial statements are the first statements to be prepared in accordance with the Australian
equivalents to International Financial reporting Standards (AIFRS).

AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has
been applied in preparing these statements. Previous financial statements were prepared in accordance
with Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The Corporation’s Income Statement and Balance Sheet have been prepared on an accrual basis and are in
accordance with historical cost convention, except for certain assets that were valued in accordance with
the valuation policy applicable. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared on a cash basis.

The financial report has been prepared based on a 12 month operating cycle and presented in Australian
currency.

Comparative Information
The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific Accounting Policy Statement or applicable Accounting Standard have required a change.

There have been no material comparative amounts that have been reclassified as a result of adoption of
AIFRS.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

Taxation

In accordance with Treasurer’s Instructions issued under the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, the
Corporation is required to pay to the State Government an income tax equivalent. The income tax liability
is based on the Treasurer’s accounting profit method, which requires that the corporate income tax rate be
applied to the net profit. The Treasurer has exempted capital funding from the calculation of the income
tax equivalents.
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3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Taxation (continued)
The Corporation is liable for payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, goods and services tax, emergency services
levy, land tax equivalents and local government rates.

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except that:

. The amount of GST incurred by the Corporation as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the
Australian Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of
an item of expense;

. Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

Income tax equivalent payable for 2005-06 is $39 000. No income tax equivalent was payable for 2004-05
due to the net loss of $2.7 million.

Dividend Policy

The Department of Treasury and Finance have determined a distribution policy, which will apply to the
Corporation as being 75 percent of the operating profit before income tax equivalents, less the capital
funding. This distribution is reduced by the income tax equivalent expense plus the other Tax Equivalent
Regime expenditure resulting in a dividend which is paid to the Department of Treasury and Finance. The
deduction of income tax equivalent and other Tax Equivalent Regime expenditure from the gross 75 percent
distribution ensures consistency with Competitive Neutrality and Department of Treasury and Finance
policies concerning budget neutrality.

A dividend of $58 000 has been provided for 2005-06. No dividend was paid for 2004-05 due to the
Corporation having a net loss of $2.7 million.

Income and Expenses
Income and Expenses are recognised in the Corporation’s Income Statement when and only when the flow
or consumption or loss of economic benefits has occurred and can be reliably measured.

Income and Expenses have been classified according to their nature in accordance with Accounting Policy
Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework and have not been offset unless required or
permitted by another accounting standard.

Revenues

Revenue from facility charges is derived from the provision of goods and services to the public and other
SA Government agencies at the conclusion of an event or after a service has been provided. This revenue
is driven by consumer demand.

The contribution from the SA Government is recognised as revenue when the Corporation obtains control
over the assets. Control over these revenues is normally obtained upon receipt and they are accounted for
in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 3 Appropriation.

Interest revenues are recognised as they are accrued.

Revenue from the disposal of non-current assets is recognised when control of the asset has passed to the
buyer.

The Corporation undertakes major cyclical maintenance on its infrastructure assets. All costs involved with
the major cyclical maintenance are recorded as an expense unless they add to the service potential of the
existing infrastructure asset.

Current and Non-Current Items

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. The Corporation has a
clearly identifiable operating cycle of 12 months. Therefore assets and liabilities that will be realised as part
of the normal operating cycle will be classified as current assets or current liabilities. All other assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Cash

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash on deposit, at bank, and on hand and
deposits at call that are readily converted to cash. Cash on deposit (specific purpose deposits) cannot be
used for operational cash purposes. Security deposits held at bank can be used for operational purposes at
the conclusion of an event. Cash is measured at nominal value.

Receivables

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of selling goods and services to the public and to other
SA Government agencies. Trade receivables are payable within 14 days after the issue of a tax invoice or
the goods/services have been provided under a contractual arrangement.

Based on an assessment of the collection of trade receivables at balance date the Corporation has
determined that a provision for doubtful debts is not warranted.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at cost as they are expected to be consumed in the holding of functions that will
have a net realisable value that exceeds cost. Cost is assigned on a weighted average cost basis.
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3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition
Assets are initially recorded at cost plus any incidental cost involved with the acquisition.

The Corporation capitalises all non-current physical assets with a value of $300 or a useful life greater than
three years.

The Corporation capitalises costs associated with projects to work in progress. On completion of a project
the capitalised costs are transferred to the relevant non-current asset account. The balance of work in
progress reflects costs for projects which are at various stages of completion as at 30 June 2006.

Revaluation of Non-Current Assets

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework all non-current physical
assets are revalued every three years, with the last revaluation being undertaken as at 31 May 2005 by
Rushton Valuers Pty Ltd with the fair value methodology of replacement cost less depreciation being
adopted as the valuation basis.

Notwithstanding the above, all non-current assets are reviewed annually to ensure that there are not
material differences from their carrying amounts. Non-current physical assets that are acquired between
revaluations are held at cost until the next valuation, where they are re-valued to fair value.

Depreciation and Amortisation of Non-Current Assets

All non-current assets, having a limited useful life, are systematically depreciated/amortised over their
useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their service potential. Amortisation relates to
leasehold improvements, while depreciation is applied to physical assets such as property, plant and
equipment.

The useful lives of all major assets held by the Corporation are reassessed on an annual basis.

The value of leasehold improvements is amortised over the unexpired period of the relevant lease.

Depreciation/ amortisation for non-current assets is as follows:

Class of Asset Depreciation Method Useful Life (Years)
Buildings Straight line 30-50
Leasehold improvements Straight line life of lease
Plant and equipment Straight line 2-20
Payables

Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received prior to the end of the reporting
period that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received
relating to the normal operations of the Corporation.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period and where an invoice has not been received.

All amounts are measured at their nominal amount and are normally settled within 30 days in accordance
with Treasurer’s Instruction 11 Payment of Creditors’ Accounts after the Corporation receives an invoice.

Employment on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave.

The Corporation makes contributions to several superannuation schemes operated by the State
Government. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no liability for
payments to beneficiaries as the South Australian Superannuation Board (SASB) has assumed these. The
only liability outstanding at balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid to the SASB.

Security Deposits Held

The Corporation will hold all security deposits on behalf of the client/hirer and will not treat these monies as
consideration until such time as the deposits are applied towards payment at the conclusion of the
event/hiring period or are forfeited and applied towards a cancellation fee. Security deposits for car park
cards are returned to the client when the card is returned.

Employee Benefits

Employer Superannuation

The Corporation made contributions of $1.1 million ($1 million) in respect of its employees for the financial
year to several superannuation schemes operated by the South Australian Government.

Sick Leave

No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave taken
in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement of sick leave.

11
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3.17

3.18

3.19

Accrued Salaries and Wages
Liability for salaries and wages are measured as the amount unpaid at 30 June 2006 at current
remuneration rates.

Annual Leave

Provision has been made for the unused component of annual leave as at 30 June 2006. The liability is
calculated at nominal amounts based on the 2006-07 pay rates and is expected to be paid over the next
twelve months of the 2006-07 financial year.

Long Service Leave

A liability for long service leave is recognised and is measured as the current value of entitlements in
respect of employees with seven or more years service. This base provides a reasonable approximate of
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for these entitlements. On-costs have
been included in the provision and calculated in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework IV Financial
Asset and Liability Framework. The superannuation on-cost has been calculated on that component of long
service leave that is expected to be taken as leave (35 percent of the liability at June 2006). This
calculation is based upon an average percentage supplied by the Department of Treasury and Finance for
long service leave that will be taken as a lump sum (65 percent). A weighted average superannuation
contribution rate covering employees of various schemes of 11 percent was used as advised by the
Department of Treasury and Finance.

The current component of long service leave is determined on what was taken during the current financial
year and based on estimates of long service leave due to be taken during the 12 months ending
30 June 2007.

Equity contributed by the SA Government
Contributions made by the SA Government through its role as owner of the Corporation, which increase the
net assets of the entity, are treated as contributions of equity.

Leases
Finance Leases
The Corporation has no finance leases.

Operating Leases
The Corporation has entered into operating leases for the land on which the buildings are situated and for
office accommodation. The leases are reviewed each year for adjustments in the consumer price index.

In respect of operating leases, the lessor effectively retains substantially the entire risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased items. Operating lease payments are charged to the Income
Statement on a basis, which is representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets.

Financial Instruments
The Corporation’s accounting policies, including the terms and conditions of each class of financial asset and
financial liability recognised as at 30 June 2006, are as follows:

Financial Assets

The Corporation has interest bearing cash assets with the SA Government. Cash on deposit and at bank
comprises deposits at call with the Westpac Banking Corporation and Bank SA and are recorded at cost.
Interest revenues are recognised as they accrue. For the deposit with the Westpac Banking Corporation, the
interest rate ranged from 5.30 percent to 5.43 percent. For the account with Bank SA, which was closed
during the year, the interest rate was nil.

Specific Purpose Deposits comprise the Future Asset Replacement Deposit Account with the Department of
Treasury and Finance and the Adelaide Railway Station Area Service Facilities maintenance monies at SAFA.
Both Deposits are recorded at cost and interest revenues are recognised as they accrue. The interest rate
on the Deposit Account with the Department of Treasury and Finance ranged from 5.30 percent to
5.43 percent and the average interest rate on the monies at SAFA ranged from 5.69 percent to
5.83 percent.

Total Receivables are reported at amounts due and there are no interest rate risks associated with these
financial assets.

The Corporation has no significant concentration of credit risk. The Corporation has policies and procedures
in place to ensure that transactions occur with customers with appropriate credit history.

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables are recognised for goods and services that have been supplied but have not been paid for
and are normally settled within 30 days or in accordance with the terms of credit offered by the trade
payable.

Security deposits held are recorded at cost.

All financial instruments are valued at the carrying amount as per the Balance Sheet, which approximates
net fair value.

12
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3.20 Government/Non-Government Disclosures
In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework, the
Corporation has included details of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities according to whether the
transactions are with entities internal or external to the SA Government, classified according to their nature
in relevant notes to the accounts.

Transactions with SA Government entities below the threshold of $100 000 have been included with the
non-government transactions, classified according to their nature.

3.21 Capitalisation of Uniforms
The Corporation previously expensed the costs of new uniforms as they were purchased. The practice
ignored the asset represented by the uniforms at any balance date. It has been determined that uniforms
fit within the definition of property, plant and equipment as per AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.
Consequently a $133 000 adjustment to accumulated surplus has been made to recognise those uniforms
previously expensed as an asset.

3.22 Interests in Joint Venture
During the 2005-06 financial year, the Corporation entered into a joint venture operation in relation to the
catering for the 2006 Adelaide Festival of Arts. The Corporation’s share of the income and expenses
incurred as part of the joint venture operations are included in the appropriate items of the Income
Statement.

3.23 Program Information
The principle activity of the Corporation is to manage and operate the Adelaide Convention Centre site.

Changes in Accounting Policies

4.1 Changes in Comparatives upon Adoption of AIFRS
The Corporation has adopted the AIFRS for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006. The adoption of
AIFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the comparative amounts.

4.2 New Australian Accounting Standards Issued but not Effective
The following Australian Standards have been issued or amended and are applicable to the Corporation but
are not yet effective. They have not been adopted in preparation of the financial statements at reporting

date.

AASB Standard Nature of Change in Application Application
Accounting Policy Date Date for the
and impact of Standard Corporation

AASB 1: First time adoption of AIFRS No change, no impact 1 January 2006 1 July 2006

AASB 7: Financial Instrument Disclosure No change, no impact 1 January 2007 1 July 2007

AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements No change, no impact 1 January 2006 1 July 2006

AASB 117: Leases No change, no impact 1 January 2007 1 July 2007

AASB 119: Employee Benefits No change, no impact 1 January 2006 1 July 2006

AASB 132: Financial Instrument Presentation No change, no impact 1 January 2007 1 July 2007

AASB 139: Financial Recognition and

Measurement No change, no impact 1 January 2007 1 July 2007
Facility Charges 2006 2005
Facility Charges Received/Receivable from Entities External to the SA Government: $'000 $’000

Catering 11 953 9411
Room hire 3110 2 642
Technical services 3 607 2 995
Car park 4175 3 985

Total Facility Charges - Non-SA Government Entities 22 845 19 033

Facility Charges Received/Receivable from Entities within the
SA Government:

Catering 1149 642
Room hire 134 197
Technical services 211 309
Total Facility Charges - SA Government Entities 1494 1148
Total Facility Charges 24 339 20 181

Net Gain from Disposal of Assets
Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds from disposal 104 73
Net book value of assets disposed 91 44
Total Net Gain from Disposal of Assets 13 29
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7. Employee Expenses 2006 2005
Employee Expenses comprise: $'000 $'000
Employee expenses - Trading activities 12 706 11 259

Employee expenses - Property management activities 1431 1431

Total Employee Expenses 14 137 12 690

Employee Expenses provided by entities external to the SA Government:

Salaries and wages 11 188 10 135
Long service leave 237 200
Annual leave 715 543
Employment on-costs - Other 98 112
Board fees 48 46
Total Employee Expenses - Non-SA Government Entities 12 286 11 036
Employee Expenses provided by entities within the SA Government:
Payroll tax 706 635
Superannuation 1 145 1019
Total Employee Expenses - SA Government Entities 1 851 1 654
Total Employee Expenses 14 137 12 690
8. Remuneration of Employees 2006 2005
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable falls Number of Number of
within the following bands: Employees Employees
$100 000 to $109 999 - 1
$110 000 to $119 999 2 2
$120 000 to $129 999 2 1
$160 000 to $169 999 1 1
$270 000 to $279 999 - 1
$400 000 to $409 999* 1 -
Total Number of Employees 6 6

Remuneration of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation
contributions, fringe benefits and associated fringe benefits tax and any other salary sacrifice benefits. The total
remuneration received by these employees for the year was $1 040 000 ($885 000).

* The total includes employee leave entitlements to a former employee whose normal remuneration exceeded

$100 000.

9. Remuneration of Board Members 2006 2005
The number of Board members whose remuneration received or receivable Number of Number of
falls within the following bands: Members Members

$0 (South Australian Government Employees) 1 1
$0 - $9 999 5 5
$10 000 - $19 999 1 1

7 7

Remuneration of Board members reflects all costs of service including, Board fees and superannuation.

The total remuneration received by these employees for the year was $53 000 ($50 000).

10. Supplies and Services 2006 2005
Supplies and Services comprise: $'000 $’000
Supplies and services - Trading activities 7 254 6 145

Supplies and services - Property management activities 4118 3935

Total Supplies and Services 11 372 10 080

Supplies and services provided by entities external to the SA Government:

Administration expenses and sundries 2 469 2472
Direct materials 3761 2788
Building service costs 2 148 2 333
Maintenance 1281 915
Marketing and promotions 792 814

Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 10 451 9 322

Supplies and services provided by entities within the SA Government:

Building service costs 921 758
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 921 758
Total Supplies and Services 11 372 10 080
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12.

13.

14.

Adelaide Convention Centre Corporation

Supplies and Services (continued)

The number and dollar amount of consultancies 2006 2005
paid/payable that fell within the following bands: Number $'000 Number $'000
Below $10 000 1 3 - -
Between $10 000 and $50 000 1 20 1 47
Above $50 000 - - 1 75
Total Paid/Payable to the Consultants
Engaged 2 23 2 122

Consultancy expenditure greater than $10 000 was for a feasibility study of an upgrade and extensions to the

existing Convention Centre facilities by Woods Bagot.

Depreciation and Amortisation 2006 2005
Depreciation and amortisation comprise: $'000 $’000
Depreciation and amortisation - Trading activities 1527 1467
Depreciation and amortisation - Property management activities 2 989 2921
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 4 516 4 388
Depreciation:
Buildings 2 989 2921
Plant and equipment 1510 1438
Total Depreciation 4 499 4 359
Amortisation:
Leasehold improvements 17 29
Total Amortisation 17 29
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 4 516 4 388
Auditor’'s Remuneration
Audit Fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department 34 35
Total Audit Fees - SA Government Entities 34 35
Income Tax Equivalents
Net Profit (Loss) from Ordinary Activities 1129 (2 703)
Less: Exempt income® 1 000 -
Net Profit Subject to Income Tax Equivalents 129 -
Total Income Tax Equivalents - at 30 percent 39 -
(a) The Treasurer has exempted the capital funding from the calculation for income tax equivalents.
Receivables 2006 2005
Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities: $'000 $’000
Receivables 667 358
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - (50)
Accrued revenues 120 147
GST receivable - 70
Total Receivables 787 525

Interest Rate and Credit Risk
Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been received.

Receivables are normally settled within 30 days. Trade receivables, prepayments and accrued revenues are
non-interest bearing. It is not anticipated that counterparties will fail to discharge their obligations. The carrying
amount of receivables approximates net fair value due to being receivable on demand. In addition, there is no
concentration of credit risk.

Other Current Assets 2006 2005
Other Current Assets from Non-SA Government Entities: $'000 $'000
Prepayments 322 472
Other current assets 6 5
Total Other Current Assets 328 477

Specific Purpose Deposits

Investments with SAFA 1742 1 647
Future assets replacement deposit account 9 148 7 285
Total Specific Purpose Deposits 10 890 8932
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17.

18.

Buildings, Plant and Equipment 2006 2005
Buildings: $'000 $'000
Buildings 132 849 131 618
Accumulated depreciation (3 233) (244)
Total Buildings 129 616 131 374
Leasehold Improvements:
Leasehold improvements 170 170
Accumulated amortisation (18) (1)
Total Leasehold Improvements 152 169
Plant and Equipment:
Plant and equipment 9 432 7 745
Accumulated depreciation (1.584) (100)
Total Plant and Equipment 7 848 7 645
Work in Progress:
Work in progress 254 286
Total Work in Progress 254 286
Total Buildings, Plant and Equipment 137 870 139 474
Valuation of Non-Current Assets
Valuation of land, buildings, plant and equipment was performed by Rushton (Australia) Pty Ltd as at 31 May
2005.
Reconciliation of Buildings, Plant and Equipment
The following table shows the movement of buildings, plant and equipment during 2005-06.
Leasehold
Improve- Plant and Work in
Buildings ments  Equipment Progress Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 131 374 169 7 645 286 139 474
Additions 182 - 1379 1 309 2 870
Disposals - - (91) - (91)
Depreciation and amortisation (2 989) (17) (1 510) - (4 516)
Acquisition from transfer 1 049 - 425 (1341) 133
Carrying Amount at 30 June 129 616 152 7 848 254 137 870
Payables 2006 2005
Current: $'000 $'000
Creditors 407 914
Accrued expenses 152 135
Employment on-costs 125 78
GST liability 110 -
Income tax equivalent payable 39 -
Dividend payable 58 -
Total Current Payables 891 1127
Non-Current:
Employment on-costs 50 61
Total Non-Current Payables 50 61
Total Payables 941 1188
Government/Non-Government Payables:
Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Creditors 407 420
Accrued expenses 152 135
GST liability 110 -
Employment on-costs 175 139
Income tax equivalent payable 39 -
Dividend payable 58 -
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities 941 694
Payables to SA Government Entities:
Creditors - 494
Total Payables to SA Government Entities - 494
Total Payables 941 1188
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Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Creditors and accruals are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid. Sundry creditors are normally settled within
30 days. Employment on-costs are settled when the respective employee benefit that they relate to is discharged.
All payables are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of payables approximates net fair value due to the
amounts being payable on demand.

Security Deposits Held 2006 2005
Security Deposits held from entities external to the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Security deposits held 1 642 1 566
Total Security Deposits held external to the SA Government 1 642 1 566
Security Deposits held from entities within the SA Government
Security deposits held 296 -
Total Security Deposits held from entities within the SA Government 296 -
Total Security Deposits Held 1938 1 566

(a) Employee Benefits

Current:
Accrued salaries and wages 182 100
Annual leave 496 412
Long service leave 177 167
Total Current Employee Benefits 855 679
Non-Current:
Long service leave 833 681
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits 833 681
Total Employee Benefits 1 688 1 360

(b) Employee Benefits and Related On-costs
Accrued Salaries and Wages:

Employee benefits - Current (Note 20(a)) 182 100
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 18) 30 -
212 100
Annual Leave:
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 18) 85 63
Employee benefits - Current (Note 20(a)) 496 412
581 475
Long Service Leave:
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 18) 10 15
Employee benefits - Current (Note 20(a)) 177 167
187 182
Long Service Leave:
On-costs included in payables - Non-current (Note 18) 50 61
Employee benefits - Non-current (Note 20(a)) 833 681
883 742
Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 1 863 1499

Commitments
Operating leases

Not later than one year 450 450
Later than one year and less than five years 1706 1799
Later than five years 22 896 22 940

Total Commitments 25 052 25 189

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
The Corporation has no contingent assets or liabilities as at 30 June 2006.

Related Party
The names of each person holding the position as Board member of the Corporation during the financial year was
as follows:

Ms ] Jeffreys - Chairman (appointed 1 December 1994)

Mr D Minear - Deputy Chairman (appointed 1 October 2004)

Mr ] Ellison (appointed 1 October 2001)

Ms S Saville (Term expired 30 September 2005)
Ms D Von Wald (appointed 1 October 2005)

Ms J Jose (appointed 1 October 2004)

Ms M Hender (appointed 1 October 2005)

The members of the Board may use the services and facilities of the Centre under terms and conditions no more
favourable than members of the public.
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24, Cash Flow Reconciliation
Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash on deposit, at bank and on hand. Cash as at the
end of the financial year as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the items in the Balance Sheet as

follows:
2006 2005
Current: $'000 $'000
Cash on deposit and at bank 9 322 8 285
Cash on hand 87 77
9 409 8 362
Non-Current:
Specific purpose deposits 10 890 8 932
Cash as Recorded in the Balance Sheet 20 299 17 294
Cash as Recorded in the Cash Flow Statement 20 299 17 294
Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided from Operating Activities to Net Profit (Loss)
Net cash provided from operating activities 5771 3788
Add (Less): Non-Cash Items:
Depreciation and amortisation (4 516) (4 388)
Net gain from disposal of assets 13 29
Net gain on revaluation - 1 036
Net loss on revaluation - (2 344)
Changes in Assets/Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables 262 (405)
Increase (Decrease) in inventories 104 -
Increase (Decrease) in other current assets (149) (46)
(Increase) Decrease in payables 305 (607)
(Increase) Decrease in security deposits held (372) 412
(Increase) Decrease in employee benefits (328) (178)
Net Profit (Loss) 1 090 (2 703)
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ADELAIDE ENTERTAINMENTS CORPORATION

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE
Establishment

The Adelaide Entertainments Corporation, a subsidiary to the Minister for Tourism, was established on
4 February 1999 pursuant to regulations under the Public Corporations Act 1993.

Functions

The functions of the Adelaide Entertainments Corporation are to:

. manage and operate the Adelaide Entertainment Centre (the Centre) site;
. manage, promote and sponsor events at the Centre site or elsewhere;
. foster and assist the commercial development of the Centre site in order to complement and enhance

the commercial potential of the Centre;
o carry out other functions conferred on the subsidiary by the Minister.
Structure

The structure of the Adelaide Entertainments Corporation at 30 June 2006 is illustrated in the following
organisation chart.

Minister for
Tourism

Board of
Directors

Chief Executive

Officer
\
[ \ [ |
Administration Venue Services Cate.rlng Corporat.e Function Sales
Services Partnerships

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 36(1)(b) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and the Schedule to the Public Corporations
Act 1993 provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of the Adelaide Entertainments Corporation
for each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to assess
the controls exercised by the Corporation in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the
acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the
Financial Management Framework as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 2 Financial Management Policies.
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Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an audit opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.

During 2005-06, specific areas of audit attention included:

. Corporate governance . Expenditure

. Risk management . Inventory

. Strategic planning . Fixed assets

. Revenue . Cash

. Payroll . Entrepreneurial events

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS

Audit Opinions

Audit of the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Treasurer’'s Instructions
promulgated under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, applicable Accounting Standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the financial position of the Adelaide
Entertainments Corporation as at 30 June 2006 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year
then ended.

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Adelaide Entertainments Corporation in relation to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities
are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Adelaide Entertainments
Corporation have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Audit Communications with Management

Audit considered the current control environment of the Corporation to be effective.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT

Income Statement

Income

The Corporation’s income of $9.4 million in 2006 decreased by 9 percent from $10.3 million in 2005.

A structural analysis of income for the Corporation in the five years to 2006 is presented in the following
chart.
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Expenses
The Corporation’s expenses of $10.9 million decreased by 3 percent from $11.2 million in 2005.

For the five years to 2006, a structural analysis of the main operating expense items for the Corporation is
shown in the following chart.
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Operating Result

The Corporation recorded a loss of $1.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2006 after a loss of $900 000 for
the previous year. The Corporation’s reported operating loss for each of the past five years, excluding
2002-03, reflects the impact of depreciation expense associated with the Entertainment Centre building.
These results are consistent with the Corporation’s trading activities not fully recovering the capital cost of
constructing the Centre.

The following chart shows the income, expenses and profits/losses for the five years to 2006.
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Balance Sheet
The Corporation’s principal assets comprise land and buildings which were valued at $52.1 million as at

30 June 2006. As reflected in the commentary under Operating Result, the Corporation’s trading activities do
not fully recover the capital cost of constructing the Centre.
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Cash Flow Statement

The following table summarises the net cash flows for the four years to 2006.

2006 2005 2004 2003
$'million $'million $'million $'million

Net Cash Flows
Operations 0.8 1.3 (0.4) 2.8
Investing (1.5) (0.7) (1.1) (0.1)
Change in Cash (0.7) 0.6 (1.5) 2.7
Cash at 30 June 2.5 3.2 2.6 4.1

The analysis of cash flows shows that the Adelaide Entertainments Corporation’s cash holdings have
decreased from $3.2 million in 2005 to $2.5 million in 2006. The decrease of $700 000 (22 percent) is due to
the purchase of property, plant and equipment of $1.5 million which was offset by operating inflows
exceeding operating outflows by $800 000.
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
INCOME FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES: Note $'000 $’000
Revenues from fees and charges 6 357 772
Revenues from the provision of services 7 4 449 4 679
Revenues from sales 8 3 098 3 086
Interest revenues 9 203 200
Revenues from government 10 36 785
Other revenues 12 1184 695
Net gain from the disposal of assets 11 16 2
Total Income 9 343 10 219
EXPENSES FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES:
Employee benefits costs 13 4519 4 016
Raw materials and consumables used 14 1 065 1048
Sales and marketing 859 1127
Ticketing 296 441
Supplies and services 15 768 1098
Depreciation expense 16 245 197
Other expenses 17 390 513
Total Expenses 8 142 8 440
PROFIT FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES 1201 1779
INCOME FROM PROPERTY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES:
Other revenues 12 29 25
Total Income 29 25
EXPENSES FROM PROPERTY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES:
Employee benefits costs 13 211 191
Supplies and services 15 704 737
Depreciation expense 16 1727 1701
Other expenses 17 97 121
Total Expenses 2739 2 750
LOSS FROM PROPERTY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES (2710) (2 725)
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER (1 509) (946)
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2006

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Total Current Assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Short-term employee benefits
Total Current Liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Long-term employee benefits
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
EQUITY:
Contributed capital
Asset revaluation reserve
Accumulated deficit
TOTAL EQUITY

THE TOTAL EQUITY IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER

Commitments for expenditure
Contingent assets and liabilities

Note
21
19
20

22

23
24

23
24

26
28

2006 2005
$’000 $'000
2 536 3210

440 488
78 115

3 054 3813
54 413 54 856
54 413 54 856
57 467 58 669
1 480 1267
278 212
1758 1 479
18 15

112 87
130 102

1 888 1 581
55 579 57 088
55 536 55 536
17 497 17 497
(17 454) (15 945)
55 579 57 088
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Asset
Contributed Revaluation Accumulated

Capital Reserve Deficit Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June 2004 55 536 17 497 (14 999) 58 034

Changes in accounting policy - - - -
Error correction - - - -

Restated balance at 30 June 2004 55 536 17 497 (14 999) 58 034

Gain on revaluation of property during 2004-05 - - - -
Loss on revaluation of plant and equipment during
2004-05 - - - -

Total Recognised Income and Expense for
2004-05 - - (946) (946)

Equity contribution from SA Government - - - -
Repayment of equity contribution to
SA Government - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2005 55 536 17 497 (15 945) 57 088

Changes in accounting policy - - - -
Error correction - - - -

Restated balance at 30 June 2005 55 536 17 497 (15 945) 57 088

Gain on revaluation of property during 2005-06 - - - -
Loss on revaluation of plant and equipment
during 2005-06 - - - -

Total Recognised Income and Expense for
2005-06 - - (1509) (1 509)

Equity contribution from SA Government - - - -
Repayment of equity contribution to
SA Government - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2006 55 536 17 497 (17 454) 55579

All changes in equity are attributable to the
SA Government as owner.
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Note $'000 $'000
CASH INFLOWS:
Receipts from sale of goods and services 9 095 9 359
Interest received 203 200
Receipts from SA Government 36 785
GST receipts on receivables 902 910
Cash generated from Operations 10 236 11 254
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Employee benefit payments (4 639) (4 069)
Supplies and services (3 864) (5017)
GST payments on purchases (495) (504)
GST remitted to ATO (399) (404)
Cash used in Operations (9 397) (9 994)
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities 29 839 1260

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH INFLOWS:

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 18 -
Cash generated from Investing Activities 18 -
CASH OUTFLOWS:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1531) (655)
Cash used in Investing Activities (1531) (655)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (1513) (655)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (674) 605
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY 3 210 2 605
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 29 2536 3210

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Establishment and Functions of the Adelaide Entertainments Corporation
The Adelaide Entertainments Corporation (AEC), trading as the Adelaide Entertainment Centre, was established on
4 February 1999 as a subsidiary of the Minister for Tourism by Regulations under the Public Corporations Act 1993.

The functions of the AEC are to:

manage and operate the Adelaide Entertainment Centre site;

manage, promote and sponsor events at the Adelaide Entertainment Centre site or elsewhere;

foster and assist the commercial development of the Adelaide Entertainment Centre site in order to
complement and enhance the commercial potential of the Adelaide Entertainment Centre;

carry out any other functions conferred on the subsidiary by the Minister.

The AEC is governed by a Board of Directors and operates under a charter approved pursuant to the provisions of
the Public Corporations Act 1993. The Act and the charter require the preparation of a general purpose financial
report which reflects the performance and position of the AEC for each financial year ended 30 June.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Basis of Accounting

The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with applicable Accounting Standards and Treasurer’s Instructions and Accounting Policy Statements
promulgated under the provision of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 (PFAA).
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Adelaide Entertainments Corporation

Basis of Accounting (continued)
The PFAA and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation of financial
statements and take precedence over applicable Accounting Standards.

Accounting Policy Statements issued pursuant to Treasurer’s Instructions may modify or clarify accounting
standards application, disclosure, format and wording to provide certainty and to ensure consistency and
appropriate reporting across the public sector. For example, AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment
requires non-current tangible assets to be measured at cost or fair value; an Accounting Policy Statement
mandates the fair value option.

Where modification is required and has a material effect upon the reported results, details of that
modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes.

These financial statements are the first statements to be prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents
to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework II
General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework APS 2.5 the AEC is deemed a not-for-profit entity for the
purpose of applying AIFRS.

AASB 1 First Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Reporting Standards has been applied
in preparing these statements. Previous financial statements were prepared in accordance with Australian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The transition to AIFRS as at 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005 is explained at Note 4.

The Corporation’s Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been
prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost convention, except for certain assets
that were valued in accordance with the valuation policy applicable. The Cash Flow Statement has been
prepared on a cash basis.

The financial report has been prepared based on a 12 month operating cycle and is presented in Australian
currency.

GST

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except where the amount of GST
incurred by the Corporation as a purchaser is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

Comparative Information
The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific Accounting Policy Statement or applicable Accounting Standard have required a change.

Comparative figures have been restated on an AIFRS basis except for financial instrument information as
permitted by AASB 1. The comparatives have been restated to assist users’ understanding of the current
reporting period and do not replace the original financial report for the preceding period.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

Taxation

In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 22 Tax Equivalent Payments, AEC is required to pay to the State
Government an income tax equivalent. The income tax liability is based on the Treasurer’'s accounting
profit method, which requires that the corporate income tax rate be applied to the net profit. As a net
deficit has been achieved by the AEC, no tax equivalent liability has been recognised.

AEC is liable for payroll tax, fringe benefits tax, goods and services tax, emergency services levy, land tax
equivalents and local government rate equivalents.

Income and Expenses
Income and expense are recognised in the Corporation’s Income Statement when and only when it is
probable that the flow of economic benefits to or from the entity will occur and can be reliably measured.

Income and expenses have been classified according to their nature in accordance with Accounting Policy
Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework APS 3.5 and have not been offset unless
required or permitted by a specific accounting standard.

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework APSs
4.1 and 4.2 the financial report’s notes disclose income, expenses, financial assets and financial liabilities
where the counterparty/transaction is with an entity within the SA Government as at the reporting date,
classified according to their nature.

Transactions with SA Government entities below the threshold of $100 000 have been included with the
non-government transactions, classified according to their nature.
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(9)

(h)

Revenues
Revenues are measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for
major activities as follows:

Revenues from services and fees and charges are derived from the provision of goods and services to the
public and other SA Government agencies. This revenue is recognised upon delivery of the service to the
clients or by reference to the stage of completion.

Revenues from sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the
purchaser.

Grants, subsidies and funding for community service obligations received from the SA Government are
recognised as revenues when the Corporation obtains control over the assets. Control over these revenues
is normally obtained upon receipt and they are accounted for in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 3
Appropriation.

Income from the disposal of non-current assets is recognised when control of the asset has passed to the
buyer and is determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. When revalued assets are sold, the
revaluation increments are transferred to retained earnings in accordance with Accounting Policy
Framework III Asset Accounting Framework paragraph APS 3.11.

Contributions

Contributions are recognised as an asset and income when the Corporation obtains control of the
contributions or obtains the right to receive the contributions and the income recognition criteria are met (ie
the amount can be reliably measured and the flow of resources is probable).

Generally, the Corporation has obtained control or the right to receive for:

. Contributions with unconditional stipulations - this will be when the agreement becomes
enforceable ie the earlier of when the receiving entity has formally been advised that the
contribution (eg grant application) has been approved; agreement/contract is executed; and/or
the contribution is received.

. Contributions with conditional stipulations - this will be when the enforceable stipulations specified
in the agreement occur or are satisfied; that is income would be recognised for contributions
received or receivable under the agreement.

All contributions received by the Corporation have been contributions with unconditional stipulations
attached and have been recognised as an asset and income upon receipt.

For contributions payable, the contribution will be recognised as a liability and expense when the entity has
a present obligation to pay the contribution and the expense recognition criteria are met.

All contributions paid by the Corporation have been contributions with unconditional stipulations attached.

Expenses

The Corporation undertakes major cyclical maintenance on its infrastructure assets. All costs involved with
the major cyclical maintenance are recorded as an expense unless they add to the service potential of the
existing infrastructure asset.

Current and Non-Current Classification

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. AEC has a clearly
identifiable operating cycle of 12 months. Assets and liabilities that are sold, consumed or realised as part
of the normal operating cycle even when they are not expected to be realised within 12 months after the
reporting date have been classified as current assets or current liabilities. All other assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Where asset and liability line items combine amounts expected to be realised within 12 months and more
than 12 months, the Corporation has separately disclosed the amounts expected to be recovered or settled
after more than 12 months.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents recorded in the Cash Flow Statement includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
and other short-term, highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less that are readily
converted to cash and are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis. Cash and cash
equivalents recorded in the Balance Sheet is consistent to the Cash Flow Statement.

Cash is measured at nominal value.
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(6))

(k)

Adelaide Entertainments Corporation

Receivables
Receivables include amounts receivable from trade, prepayments and other accruals.

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of selling goods and services to the public and agencies. Trade
receivables are generally receivable within 30 days after the issue of an invoice or the goods/services have
been provided under a contractual arrangement.

Other debtors arise outside the normal course of selling goods and services to other entities and to the
public.

AEC determines the provision for doubtful debts based on a review of balances within trade receivables that
are unlikely to be collected. These are generally receivables that are 90 days or more overdue.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or their net realisable value. Cost is allocated in accordance
with the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value is determined using the estimated sales proceeds
less costs incurred in marketing, selling and distribution to customers.

The amount of any inventory write-down to net realisable value/replacement cost or inventory losses are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurred. Any write-down reversals are
recognised as an expense reduction.

Inventories include food and beverage stock held for resale.

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition

Assets are initially recorded at cost or at the value of any liabilities assumed, plus any incidental cost
involved with the acquisition. Where assets are acquired at no value, or minimal value, they are recorded
at their fair value in the Balance Sheet. If however, the assets are acquired at no or nominal value as part
of a restructuring of administrative arrangements then the assets are recorded at the value recorded by the
transferor prior to transfer.

Where the payment for an asset is deferred, AEC measures the obligation at the present vale of the future
outflow, discounted using the interest rate of a similar length borrowing.

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework paragraph APSs 2.15 and
7.2:

. All non-current tangible assets with a value of $10 000 are capitalised; and

. Componentisation of complex assets is only performed when the complex asset’s fair value at the
time of acquisition is greater than $5 million for infrastructure assets and $1 million for other
assets.

(1) Revaluation of Non-current Assets

(m)

(n)

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework revaluation of non-current
assets or group of assets is only performed when its fair value at the time of acquisition is greater than
$1 million and estimated useful life is greater than three years.

Every three years, AEC revalues its land, buildings and leasehold improvements. However, if at any time
management considers that the carrying amount of an asset materially differs from its fair value then the
asset will be revalued regardless of when the last valuation took place. Non-current tangible assets that
are acquired between revaluations are held at cost until the next valuation, where they are revalued to fair
value.

AEC has taken the exemption available under Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework
APS 3.10 to take asset revaluation adjustment to the asset revaluation reserve on a class basis rather than
an individual asset basis.

Impairment

All non-current assets are tested for indication of impairment at each reporting date. Where there is an
indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. An amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.

For revalued assets an impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation reserve.

Impairment is generally limited to where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated or where the
replacement cost is falling.

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

All non-current assets, having a limited useful life, are systematically depreciated over their useful lives on
a straight line basis.

The useful lives of all major assets held by AEC are reassessed on an annual basis.

Land is not depreciated.
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(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
Depreciation for non-current assets is determined as follows:

Class of Assets Depreciation  Useful Life

Method (Years)
Buildings and Improvements - Structure Straight Line 25-140
Building Improvements and Fitouts Straight Line 17 - 56
Plant and Equipment Straight Line 3-10
Furniture and Fittings Straight Line 3-10
Insurance

AEC has arranged, through SA Government Captive Insurance Corporation (SAICORP), to insure all major
risks of the Corporation. The excess payable under this arrangement is $5 000 per claim made.

Payables
Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received prior to the end of the reporting
period that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received
relating to the normal operations of AEC.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period and where an invoice has not been received.

All payables are measured at their nominal amount and are normally settled within 30 days from the date
of the invoice or date the invoice is first received in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 11 Payment of
Creditor’s Accounts.

Employment on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave.

The Corporation makes contributions to several externally managed superannuation schemes. These
contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no liability for payments to beneficiaries
as they have been assumed by the respective superannuation schemes. The only liability outstanding at
balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset.

Employee Benefits

These benefits accrue for employees as a result of services provided up to the reporting date that remain
unpaid. Long term employee benefits are measured at present value and short term employee benefits are
measured at nominal amounts.

No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave taken
in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement of sick leave.

Liability for salaries and wages are measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at remuneration
rates current at reporting date. The annual leave liability is expected to be payable within 12 months and is
measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid.

The liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed five years of service in
accordance with Accounting Policy Framework IV Financial Asset and Liability Framework. An actuarial
assessment of Long Service Leave undertaken by the Department of Treasury and Finance based on a
significant sample of employees throughout the South Australian public sector determined that the liability
measured using the short hand method was not materially different from the liability measured using the
present value of expected future payments.

In the 2006 financial year, the long service leave benchmark contained in the Accounting Policy Framework
IV Financial Asset and Liability Framework remained unchanged at seven years. The AEC has adopted five
years as the benchmark for the measurement of the long service leave liability as of 2006, as this better
reflects the AEC’s past experience of employee retention and the taking of leave.

The current component of long service leave is determined on what was taken during the current financial
year and based on estimates of long service leave due to be taken during the 12 months ended
30 June 2007.

Administered Items

The AEC includes a schedule of administered items as a note to the accounts as it is considered that
administered transactions and balances are insignificant in relation to the AEC’s overall financial
performance and position, in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework II General Purpose Financial
Reporting Framework APS 3.10.2.

The AEC receives gross box office receipts from its ticketing agency, and holds those receipts in a separate
Event Funds bank account. In any instance where a show does not proceed, those monies are returned to
the ticketing agency and refunded to patrons. Alternatively, the monies are paid to promoters, the AEC and
other service providers.
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11.

Adelaide Entertainments Corporation

Financial Risk Management
The Corporation is exposed to a variety of financial risks, market risk (foreign exchange and price), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Risk management is carried out by Corporate Services and risk management policies and practices are in
accordance with Australian Risk Management Standards and internal written policies approved by the Board.

The Corporation has non-interest bearing assets (cash on hand and on call and receivables) and liabilities
(payables) and interest bearing assets (held to maturity investments).

The Corporation’s exposure to foreign exchange risk and cash flow interest risk is minimal.

The Corporation has no significant concentration of credit risk. The Corporation has policies and procedures in
place to ensure that transactions occur with customers with appropriate credit history.

Changes in Accounting Policies
The AEC has adopted the AIFRS for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006. The adoption of AIFRS has not
resulted in any material adjustments to the comparative amounts.

A number of Australian Accounting Standards have been issued or amended and are applicable to the Corporation
but are not yet effective. The Corporation has assessed the impact of the new and amended standards and there
will be no impact on the accounting policies of the Corporation.

Segment Information
The principal activity of the Corporation is to manage and operate the Adelaide Entertainment Centre.

Revenues from Fees and Charges 2006 2005

Fees and charges received/receivable from entities external to the $'000 $'000
SA Government:

Merchandise revenues 253 214

Ticket sales revenues 104 558

Total Fees and Charges - Non-SA Government Entities 357 772

Total Fees and Charges 357 772

Revenues from the Provisions of Services
Services received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government:
Trading Activities:

Corporate suite revenue 1494 1461
Equipment hire 209 160
Recoveries 1 057 1029
Venue hire 1 493 2 029

Total Revenues from the Provision of Services from Entities External to
the SA Government 4 253 4 679

Services received/receivable from entities within SA Government:

Venue hire 196 -
Total Services received/Receivable from Entities within SA Government 196 -
Total Revenues from the Provision of Services 4 449 4 679

Revenues from Sales
Sales revenues received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government:

Beverages 1151 1152
Food 1947 1934
Sales Revenue Received/Receivable from Entities External to 3098 3086
the SA Government
Total Revenue from Sales 3 098 3 086
Interest Revenues
Interest received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government 132 134
Interest received/receivable from entities within the SA Government 71 66
Total Interest Revenues 203 200
Revenues from SA Government
Revenues from SA Government:
Appropriations for Emergency Services Levy 36 35
Appropriations for capital - 750
Total Revenues from SA Government 36 785
Net Gain from Disposal of Assets
Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds from disposal 18 2
Less net book value of assets disposed (2) -
Net Gain from Disposal of Plant and Equipment 16 2
Total Net Gain from Disposal of Assets 16 2
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12, Other Revenue/Income 2006 2005
Contributions from entities external to the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Trading Activities:

Car park revenue 181 157

Inside charges 395 379

Other revenue 608 159

Total Other Revenues from Trading Activities 1184 695
Property Management Activities:

Other revenue 29 25

Total Other Revenues from Property Management Activities 29 25

Total Other Revenues from Entities External to the SA Government 1213 720

13. Employee Benefits Cost
Trading Activities:

Salaries and wages 3 283 3167
Other staff related expenses 151 67
Long service leave 229 14
Annual Leave 114 119
Employment on-costs - Superannuation 301 273
Employment on-costs - Other 365 298
Board fees 76 78
Total Employee Benefits Costs from Trading Activities 4 519 4 016
Property Management Activities:
Salaries and wages 204 191
Long service leave 1 -
Annual leave 6 -
Total Employee Benefits Costs from Property Management Activities 211 191
Total Employee Benefits Costs 4 730 4 207
During the year payments made to entities within SA Government include employment on-costs - other $336 000
($276 000).
Remuneration of Employees 2006 2005
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable falls within Number of Number of
the following bands: Employees Employees
$100 000 to $109 999 1 2
$140 000 to $149 999 1 1
$150 000 to $159 999 1 -
$170 000 to $179 999 1 -
$230 000 to $239 999 - 1
Total Number of Employees 4 4

The table includes all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. Remuneration
of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation contributions, fringe
benefits tax and any other salary sacrifice benefits. The total remuneration received by these employees for the
year was $577 000 ($580 000).

Board of Directors
The following Directors served on the Board of the AEC during the year:

R Foord (Chairman) G Wallace
J Bell G Pitt

A Herald J Staugas
W Spurr*

* W Spurr is a Government employee.

Members of the Board received Director’s fees as shown in the following table:

2006 2005

Number of Number of

Members Members

$0 - $10 000 1 5
$10 001 - $20 000 6 4

The aggregate amount of remuneration received, or due and receivable, by AEC Directors in connection with the
management of the AEC was $71 000 ($71 000). Of this amount, $5 000 ($6 000) was paid to a superannuation
plan.

Related Party Disclosure

From time to time, Board members receive tickets to shows or events held at the Adelaide Entertainment Centre
as part of their involvement in the execution of office in liaising with external parties.
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14. Raw Materials and Consumables Used 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Food and beverage purchase 969 954
Consumables used 96 94
1 065 1 048

15. Supplies and Services

Supplies and Services
Trading Activities:
Supplies and services provided by entities within the SA Government:

Insurance 113 115
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 113 115
Supplies and services provided by entities external to the SA Government:
Artist costs 101 347
Contractors 138 193
Equipment hire 75 92
Legal 28 72
Linen and laundry 72 71
Printing and stationery 43 47
Repairs and maintenance 76 41
Utilities 122 120
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 655 983
Total Supplies and Services from Trading Activities 768 1 098
Property Management Activities:
Supplies and services provided by entities within the SA Government:
Utilities 133 122
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 133 122
Supplies and services provided by entities external to the SA Government:
Repairs and maintenance 348 424
Utilities 223 191
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 571 615
Total Supplies and Services from Property Management Activities 704 737
Total Supplies and Services 1472 1835

The total supplies and services amount disclosed include GST amounts non-recoverable from the ATO due to the
Corporation not holding a valid tax invoice or payments relate to third party arrangements.

16. Depreciation Expense
Depreciation:
Trading Activities:

Plant and equipment 245 197
Total Depreciation from Trading Activities 245 197
Property Management Activities:
Buildings 1727 1701
Total Depreciation from Property Management Activities 1727 1701
Total Depreciation 1972 1 898
17. Other Expenses
Other expense paid/payable to entities external to the SA Government:
Bad and doubtful debts expense 1 (1)
Other 389 514
Total Other Expenses - Non-SA Government Entities 390 513
Total Other Expenses from Trading Activities 390 513
Property Management Activities:
Other 97 121
Total Other Expenses from Property Management Activities 97 121
Total Other Expenses - Non-SA Government Entities 487 634
Total Other Expenses 487 634
The number and dollar amount of consultancies 2006 2006 2005 2005
paid/payable (included in supplies and services Number $'000 Number $’000
expense) that fell within the following bands:
Below $10 000 3 4 3 14
Between $10 000 and $50 000 1 14 - -
Above $50 000 - - - -
Total Paid/Payable to the Consultants Engaged 4 18 3 14
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18. Remuneration of Auditors 2006 2005
$'000 $'000

Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department 26 26

Total Audit Fees - SA Government Entities 26 26

Other Services
No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department.

19. Receivables
Current:

Receivables 294 219
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (8) (8)
Accrued revenues 10 18
Prepayments 138 245
GST receivable 6 14

Total Current Receivables 440 488

Government/Non-Government Receivables:
Receivables from SA Government Entities:
Accrued revenues 6 6

Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 6 6

Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities:

Receivables 294 219
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (8) (8)
Accrued revenues 4 12
Prepayments 138 245
GST receivable 6 14
Total Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities 434 482
Total Receivables 440 488

Interest Rate and Credit Risk
Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been received.

Receivables are normally settled within 30 days. Trade receivables, prepayments and accrued revenues are
non-interest bearing.

Other than recognised in the provision for doubtful debts, it is not anticipated that counterparties will fail to
discharge their obligations. The carrying amount of receivables approximates net fair value due to being
receivable on demand. In addition, there is no concentration of credit risk.

Bad and Doubtful Debts
The Corporation has recognised a bad and doubtful debt expense of $1 000 ($1 000) in the Income Statement.
20. Inventories 2006 2005
Current - Inventories held for resale: $'000 $’000
Beverages 68 98
Food 10 17
Total Inventories held for Resale 78 115

Inventory Wastage
The Corporation has recognised an inventory wastage expense of $12 000 ($7 000) in the Income Statement.

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current:
Cash at bank 1242 1981
Cash on deposit 1294 1229
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2536 3210

Government/Non-Government Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents held with SA Government entities:

Cash on deposit - Investments with SAFA 1294 1229
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents held with SA Government Entities 1294 1229

Cash and Cash Equivalents Held with Non SA Government Entities:
Cash at bank 1242 1981
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents held with non-SA Government Entities 1242 1981
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2536 3210

Total Cash on Deposit:
Represented by:

Cash Management Fund 1294 1229
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22,

23.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

Adelaide Entertainments Corporation

The cash deposits are carried at cost in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework IV Financial Asset and

Liability Framework APS 2.1.

They are on-call and carry an average variable interest rate of 5.64 percent

(5.51 percent). The SAFA Cash Management Fund is a pooled investment portfolio comprising cash and short-
term money market securities of high credit quality and marketability. The portfolio return is calculated daily,
being the total earnings on the portfolio’s investments from the close of business on the previous day. Interest is

accrued daily and distributed monthly.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Land and Buildings:
Land at fair value
Buildings at fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Total Land and Buildings
Building Improvements:
Building improvements at fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Total Building Improvements
Plant and Equipment:
Plant and equipment at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment
Work in progress

Total Property, Plant and Equipment

Valuation of Land and Buildings

2006 2005
$'000 $'000

16 050 16 050
67 415 67 415
(31 328) (29 611)
52 137 53 854
748 66
(10) 1)
738 65
3431 2 955

(2 328) (2 186)
1103 769
435 168

54 413 54 856

The valuation of land and buildings was performed by valuers Edward Rushton Australia Pty Ltd, an independent
valuer, as at 30 June 2004. The valuer arrived at fair value based on recent market transactions for similar land
and buildings in the area taking into account zoning and restricted use.

Work in Progress

Work in Progress relates to building works on the Port Road shops.

Impairment

There were no indications of impairment of property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2006.

Reconciliation of Non-Current Assets

The following table shows the movement of property, plant and equipment during 2005-06.

Building Plant and Work in 2006
Land Buildings Improvements Equipment Progress Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 16 050 37 804 65 769 168 54 856
Additions - - 642 454 435 1531
Assets transferred from WIP - - 40 128 (168) -
Disposals eg sales, write off - - - (2) - (2)
Revaluation increment/(decrement) - - - - - -
Depreciation - (1717) (9) (246) - (1972)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 16 050 36 087 738 1103 435 54 413
Payables 2006 2005
Current: $'000 $’000
Creditors 397 417
Accrued expenses 667 492
Income received in advance 370 325
Employee on-costs 46 33
Total Current Payables 1 480 1267
Non-Current:
Employee on-costs 18 15
Total Non-Current Payables 18 15
Total Payables 1498 1282
Government/Non-Government Payables:
Payables to SA Government Entities:
Creditors 26 -
Accrued expenses 34 32
Total Payables to SA Government Entities 60 32
Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Creditors 371 417
Accrued expenses 633 460
Income received in advance 370 325
Employee on-costs 64 48
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities 1438 1250
Total Payables 1498 1282
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Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Creditors and accruals are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid. Sundry creditors are normally settled within
30 days. Employment on-costs are settled when the respective employee benefit that they relate to is discharged.
All payables are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of payables approximates net fair value due to the
amounts being payable on demand.

24, Employee Benefits 2006 2005
Current: $'000 $'000
Annual leave 110 128
Short-term long-service leave 126 14
Accrued salaries and wages 42 70
Total Current Employee Benefits 278 212
Non-Current:
Long-term long-service leave 112 87
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits 112 87
Total Employee Benefits 390 299

In the 2006 financial year, the long service leave benchmark contained in the Accounting Policy Framework IV
Financial Asset and Liability Framework remained unchanged at seven years, based on an actuarial assessment.
The AEC has adopted five years as the benchmark for the measurement of the long service leave liability as of
2006, as this better reflects the AEC’s past experience of employee retention and the taking of leave.

The total employee benefits and related on-costs are aggregated as follows:

2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
Accrued Salaries and Wages:
On-costs included in payables 23 7 7
Provision for employee benefits 42 70
Total Accrued Salaries and Wages 49 77
Annual Leave:
On-costs included in payables 23 18 23
Provision for employee benefits 110 128
Total Annual Leave 128 151
Long Service Leave:
On-costs included in payables - Current 23 21 3
Provision for employee benefits - Current 126 14
Total Long Service Leave - Current 147 17
On-costs included in payables - Non-current 23 18 15
Provision for employee benefits - Non-current 112 87
Total Long Service Leave - Non-current 130 102
Total Long Service Leave 277 119
25. Provisions
Dividend

No dividend has been declared or paid in the financial year.

26. Commitments
Capital Commitments
As at 30 June, the AEC had commitments associated with the AEC’s ongoing business operations and capital
purchases, reflected by purchase orders issued but not filled and letters of intent. Capital expenditure contracted
for at the reporting date but are not recognised as liabilities in the financial report, are payable as follows:

2006 2005

$'000 $'000

Within one year 450 760
Later than one year but not longer than five years - -
Later than five years - -
450 760

The Corporation’s capital commitments are for the purchase and installation of Arena Screens of $350 000, the
purchase of new tables and trestles for $50 000 and the completion of building renovations on the Port Road
shops.

Remuneration Commitments
Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under employment contracts in existence at the
reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:

2006 2005

$'000 $'000

Within one year 353 88
Later than one year but not longer than five years 174 -
527 88

Amounts disclosed include commitments arising form executive and other service contracts. The Corporation does
not offer remuneration contracts greater than five years.
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Other Commitments 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Within one year 56 43

Later than one year but not longer than five years - -
Later than five years - -

56 43

The Corporation’s other commitments are for ongoing business operations, predominantly for various rebranding
projects such as web design and sales brochures.

Administered Items

Event Funds

The AEC includes a schedule of administered items as a note to the accounts as it is considered that administered
transactions and balances are insignificant in relation to the AEC’s overall financial performance and position, in
accordance with Accounting Policy Framework 11 General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework APS 3.10.2.

The AEC receives gross box office receipts from its ticketing agency, and holds those receipts in a separate Event
Funds bank account. In any instance where a show does not proceed, those monies are returned to the ticketing
agency and refunded to patrons. Alternatively, the monies are paid to promoters, the AEC and other service
providers.

2006 2005
Administered Revenues: $'000 $'000

Gross box office receipts 16 462 20 312

Interest earned on event funds 284 259
Total Administered Revenues 16 746 20 571

Administered Expenses:

Settlements paid 12 580 18 186
Total Administered Expenses 12 580 18 186
Movement in Administered Items during the Year 4 166 2 385

Administered Assets:

Cash at bank 7 361 3195

Total Administered Assets 7 361 3195
Administered Liabilities:

Funds held in trust 7 361 3195

Total Administered Liabilities 7 361 3195
Movement in administered items during the year 4 166 2 385
Total administered assets held at 1 July 3195 810

Total Administered Assets held at 30 June 7 361 3195

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
The Corporation is not aware of any contingent assets.

A claim against the Corporation was lodged during the 2004-05 financial year. This matter was resolved during
the financial year and was covered by the Insurers of the AEC.

The Corporation is not aware of any contingent liabilities this financial year.
The Corporation has made no guarantees.

Cash Flow Reconciliation
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash Flow Statement 2536 3210
Balance Sheet 2536 3210

Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Net Loss

Net cash provided by operating activities 839 1260
Non-Cash Items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (1972) (1899)
Net gain from disposal of assets 16 2
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables (48) 152
Increase (Decrease) in inventories (37) 23
(Increase) Decrease in payables (216) (431)
(Increase) Decrease in provisions (91) (53)
Net Loss (1 509) (946)
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ADELAIDE FESTIVAL CENTRE TRUST

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE

Establishment

The Trust is a Body Corporate established pursuant to the Adelaide Festival Centre Trust Act 1971 (the Act).

Regulations have been enacted under the Public Corporations Act 1993 requiring that certain provisions of
that Act be applied to the Trust. The applied provisions relate mainly to the governance and performance
aspects of the Trust’s operations.

Functions

The Trust is charged with the responsibility of encouraging and facilitating artistic, cultural and performing
arts activities throughout the State; and controlling, managing and maintaining the Adelaide Festival Centre
and Her Majesty’s Theatre.

In essence, the Trust is a presenter of arts programs and it aims to provide a balance of art forms for a
variety of tastes and age levels. The major components of the Trust’s operations include:

management of various theatre facilities including the Adelaide Festival Centre complex comprising
the Festival Theatre, the Space Theatre, the Amphitheatre and the Playhouse in addition to Her
Majesty’s Theatre;

programming activities relating to the staging of various theatrical productions in Adelaide either as a
producer or presenter;

operation of the BASS ticketing system pursuant to a licence agreement;
operating the car park located within the Adelaide Festival Centre complex;
utilising the services of contractors to operate catering facilities on its behalf;

operating a scenery building and a stage engineering workshop.

Structure

The structure of the Trust is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

The Trust has eight trustees and is subject to the general control and direction of the Minister for the Arts. To
assist in its deliberations the Trust has established certain committees.

Adelaide Festival
Centre Trust

Chief Executive
Officer

Adelaide Festival
Centre Foundation

Programming and
Marketing

Venue Operations
and Services

Corporate Services

Finance and Audit Committee which focuses on matters of a financial and audit nature.
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AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 25(2) of the Adelaide Festival Centre Trust Act 1971 and subsection 31(1)(b) of the Public Finance
and Audit Act 1987 provide for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of the Adelaide Festival Centre Trust
for each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to assess
the controls exercised by the Adelaide Festival Centre Trust in relation to the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the
Financial Management Framework as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 2 Financial Management Policies.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an audit opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.

During 2005-06, specific areas of audit attention included:

expenditure

revenue

payroll

ticketing operations
contract management
fixed assets

general ledger
computing environment.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS
Audit Opinions
Audit of the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly in accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions promulgated
under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, applicable Accounting Standards and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the financial position of the Adelaide Festival
Centre Trust as at 30 June 2006, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Adelaide Festival Centre Trust in relation to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities,
except for the matters raised in relation to control environment; expenditure processing; fixed assets stock
takes; and review of access levels within Masterpiece as outlined under ‘Audit Communications to
Management’, are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Adelaide
Festival Centre Trust have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Audit Communications to Management

Matters arising during the course of the audit were detailed in a management letter to the Chief Executive
Officer in July 2006. The response to the management letter was received in August 2006. Major matters
raised with the Trust are discussed herein.

Control Environment

In past years, Audit has reported opportunities to improve the Trust’s control environment. In 2005-06 Audit
noted that, there remained a need to improve aspects of the Trust’s control environment.

The Trust’s ‘Handbook of Accounting Guidelines and Work Instructions’ detail its policies and procedures
which in the main, establishes the foundations for a satisfactory control environment. However, consistent
with prior year findings, the 2005-06 audit revealed a number of instances where key controls were not being
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performed by officers as required. Audit recommended that the Trust implement appropriate mechanisms to
ensure failures in the control environment are identified and addressed.

Expenditure Processing

Consistent with matters raised in the prior year’s report, Audit found that expenditure processing by the Trust
is such that individual officers were solely responsible for all expenditure entry processes from batching,
checking the validity/approval of invoices to posting the expenditure for automatic payment. Notwithstanding
the initial approval of a separate financial delegate, it was noted that expenditure transactions processed by
an accounts payable officer were not subject to review by any other officer. Audit considered that this
presents a risk that invalid expenditure or errors could be processed without detection.

It was recommended that the Trust implement procedures to ensure that invoices processed into the
accounts payable subsidiary system are independently reviewed for accuracy and validity.

The Trust responded that it was unable to find a suitable process that it could employ.

Fixed Assets Stock Takes

The Trust had not performed stock takes to verify the validity and completeness of the information
maintained in the Trust’s asset register. Audit recommended that procedures be undertaken by the Trust to
ensure the existence of assets recognised in the asset register. As these assets represent material balances

in the Trust’s financial report, Audit undertook additional testing to ensure the validity of assets recognised.

The Trust responded that it will review assets during 2006-07 and that it would develop procedures to be
included in its policy and procedure document.

Review of Access Levels within Masterpiece
The regular review of individual access levels to key financial systems is an important control to ensure that
user access is consistent with job requirements and that an appropriate degree of segregation of duties is

maintained. The 2005-06 audit could not verify that this control had been performed.

The Trust responded that arrangements would be made to ensure the performance of the review.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT

Highlights of Financial Report (Consolidated)

2006 2005 Percentage

$'million $'million Change
EXPENSES
Employee expenses 11.5 12.5 (8)
Depreciation 4.9 4.9 -
Other expenses 13.0 14.5 (10)
Total Expenses 29.4 31.9 (8)
INCOME
User charges and interest 16.6 18.2 (9)
Resources received free of charge - 2.9 -
Total Income 16.6 21.1 (21)
Net Cost of Providing Services 12.8 10.9 17
REVENUES FROM SA GOVERNMENT
Revenues from SA Government 10.9 8.4 30
Net Result (1.9) (2.5) -
Net Cash Flows from Operations 4.8 (0.6) -
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2006 2005 Percentage
$'million $'million Change
ASSETS
Current assets 10.6 5.0 112
Non-current assets 91.0 77.6 17
Total Assets 101.6 82.6 23
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 8.0 6.3 27
Non-current liabilities 28.4 27.3 4
Total Liabilities 36.4 33.6 8
EQUITY 65.2 49.0 33

Income Statement

User Charges and Interest

User charges and interest includes numerous revenue generating activities including: theatre hire; BASS
ticketing sales; scenery building and stage engineering; catering associated with cafes, bars and restaurants;
programming activities including box office sales; car parking charges; and interest on cash balances.

User fees and interest decreased by $1.6 million to $16.6 million reflecting changes and movements in a
number of the Trust’s revenue generating activities. Major changes and movements were as follows:

Programming activity decreased during 2005-06 resulting in an decrease in revenue from box office
sales and also for revenue related to the recoup of associated programming expenditure. This
decreased activity has also resulted in a decrease in expenditure.

Revenue associated with BASS ticketing sales decreased during 2005-06. This decrease is partly the
result of the loss of a ticketing contract with Adelaide Entertainment Centre in October 2005.

In September 2004 the Trust entered into changed catering contract arrangements. Under the
current arrangements contractors are charged a monthly fee. Prior to this date (ie the first quarter of
the 2004-05 year) gross catering revenues and expenses were recognised in the Trust’s accounts. As
a result catering revenues recognised in the financial statements have decreased with a proportionate
decrease in catering related expenses.

The preceding items are somewhat offset by improved revenue in the Trust’'s scenery and stage
engineering workshop. This increase in activity also resulted in increased expenditure.

Resources Received Free of Charge

During 2004-05 the Trust’s income included a non-operating item recognising the addition of an asset
(a pedestrian bridge built as part of the Riverbank project) received free of charge amounting to $2.9 million.
The Trust did not receive assets free of charge in 2005-06.

Income

A structural analysis of income for the Trust in the five years to 2006 is presented in the following chart.
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Revenues from SA Government

Revenue from SA Government in 2005-06 includes a grant of $1.9 million received on 29 June 2006 but paid
to support the Trust’s operating budget for 2006-07. This is a grant received in advance of requirements.
The Trust has not received advanced funding in previous years. Without this grant revenues from
SA Government would be comparable with prior years.

Expenses

Expenses reduced by $2.6 million to $29.4 million due mainly to the following changes/movements in
activities:

Employment related expenses reduced by $1.0 million

Catering related expenses reduced by $400 000

Programming activity reduced by $1.4 million; offset by

Increase in scenery and stage engineering workshop expenditure of $300 000.

These items were discussed under ‘User Charges and Interest’'.
Net Cost of Services and Net Result

The net cost of services in 2005-06 was $12.8 million, compared to $10.9 million for 2004-05. The increase
in part reflects a large non-operating revenue of $2.9 million in 2004-05 being the value of resources received
free of charge.

The following chart shows the net cost of services and net result for the four years to 2005-06.
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The chart shows the net cost of services in 2006 is the highest of the four years. In 2005, the figure is
reduced by non-operating revenue of $2.9 million for assets received free of charge. Without this, the 2005
net cost of services would be the highest and 2006 an improvement on the previous year. The chart also
shows that revenues from SA Government have been insufficient to cover the net cost of services in any of
the four years resulting in net deficits for all years.

The net result for 2005-06 is improved by $1.9 million in revenue from SA Government received on
29 June 2006 as described earlier. In the absence of this amount, the net result for 2005-06 would have
been a deficit of $3.9 million.

Balance Sheet
Current Assets and Liabilities — Solvency

As at 30 June 2006 current assets, $10.6 million, exceeded current liabilities, $8.0 million, by $2.6 million.
This is a changed position from the prior year where current liabilities exceeded current assets. This liquidity
position was achieved principally through the following items:

. $1.9 million advance on 2006-07 grant funding received on 29 June 2006 (refer to comments under
Revenues from SA Government).

. Restructure of borrowings from South Australian Financing Authority removing the need for annual
repayments of borrowings of $900 000 which were previously included in current liabilities.
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The short-term financial position of the Trust was the subject of review by a consultant in June 2006 aimed at
verifying the Trust’s 2006-07 draft budget and cash position. It is intended that this review be followed by a
second stage review, (the subject of a further consultancy) to be a comprehensive review of the Trust’'s
legislation and operating model.

Non-Current Assets

Non-current assets, $91 million, dominate the Trust’s asset balances. Land and buildings amount to
$78.4 million, 86 percent, of non-current assets. The major movement in non-current asset balances during
2005-06 was a revaluation of all non-current assets except for Works of Art as at 30 June 2006. This
revaluation resulted in a $18.1 million increase in non-current assets and a corresponding increase in the
asset revaluation reserve. For detailed asset movements, reference should be made to Notes 15 and 16 of
the Trust’s financial report.

For the four years to 2006, a structural analysis of assets and liabilities is shown in the following chart.
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Cash Flow Statement

The following table summarises the net cash flows for the four years to 2006.

2006 2005 2004 2003
$'million $'million $'million $'million

Net Cash Flows
Operations 4.8 (0.6) 0.1 2.1
Investing (0.1) (0.6) (0.8) (8.5)
Financing - (0.8) (0.4) (0.8)
Change in Cash 4.7 (2.0) (1.1) (7.2)
Cash at 30 June 8.6 3.9 5.9 7.0

Notwithstanding the net deficit result of $1.9 million for 2005-06, net cash inflow provided by operating
activities was $4.8 million.

The table highlights a large increase in cash as at 30 June 2006. This increase resulted primarily from an

increase in funds held on behalf of promoters, $1.9 million, and receipt of $1.9 million from the
SA Government on 29 June 2006.
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Income Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2006

EXPENSES:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation
Borrowing costs
Net loss from disposal of assets
Total Expenses
INCOME:
User charges
Resources received free of charge
Interest
Total Income
Net Cost of providing Services

REVENUES FROM SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenues from SA Government
NET RESULT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER

Note

Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
11485 12452 11480 12411
10909 12614 10794 12 467
4 853 4 883 4 853 4 883
2105 1966 2105 1966
- 29 - 29
29 352 31944 29 232 31756
16 133 17634 15943 17 266
- 2 859 41 3421
439 595 405 539
16 572 21088 16 389 21 226
12780 10856 12843 10530
10 851 8 369 10 851 8 319
(1929) (2487) (1992) (2211)
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2006

Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
Cash 11 8 635 3 906 8 155 3 589
Receivables 12 1617 945 1615 844
Inventories 13 65 72 65 72
Other 14 323 53 323 53
Total Current Assets 10 640 4 976 10 158 4 558
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Land and buildings 78 365 66 218 78 365 66 218
Plant and equipment 4 971 3784 4 971 3784
Leasehold improvements 878 879 878 879
Works of art 6 800 6 765 6 800 6 765
Total Non-Current Assets 15,16 91 014 77 646 91 014 77 646
Total Assets 101 654 82622 101172 82 204
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 17 6 226 3634 6 225 3634
Borrowings 18,28 - 926 - 926
Employee benefits 19 1214 1377 1214 1377
Other 20 538 365 538 365
Total Current Liabilities 7 978 6 302 7 977 6 302
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 17 125 122 125 122
Borrowings 18,28 27 250 26 237 27 250 26 237
Employee benefits 19 1072 933 1072 933
Total Non-Current Liabilities 28 447 27 292 28 447 27 292
Total Liabilities 36 425 33 594 36 424 33 594
NET ASSETS 65 229 49 028 64 748 48 610
EQUITY:
Reserves 21 66 069 47 939 66 069 47 939
Accumulated (Deficit) Surplus (840) 1 089 (1321) 671
TOTAL EQUITY 65 229 49 028 64 748 48 610
Commitments 22
Contingent Liabilities 23
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Balance at 30 June 2004

Gain on revaluation of works of art during 2004-05

Net Income recognised directly in Equity
for 2004-05

Loss for the period

Total Recognised Income and Expenses
for 2004-05

Balance at 30 June 2005

Gain on revaluation of non-current assets
during 2005-06

Net Income recognised directly in Equity
for 2005-06

Loss for the period

Total Recognised Income and Expense
for 2005-06

Balance at 30 June 2006

Asset
Revaluation Retained

Reserve Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
46 804 3576 50 380
1135 - 1135
1135 - 1135
- (2 487) (2 487)
1135 (2 487) (1 352)
47 939 1 089 49 028
18 130 - 18 130
18 130 - 18 130
- (1 929) (1 929)
18 130 (1929) 16 201
66 069 (840) 65 229
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows
ACTIVITIES: (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH OUTFLOWS: Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Interest paid (1 892) (1 966) (1 892) (1 966)
Employee benefit payments (11 233) (12 080) (11 233) (12 080)
Supplies and services (10 789) (13 125) (10 810) (12 796)
Decrease in funds held on behalf of
promoters - (296) - (296)
GST payments on purchases (1 004) (1 153) (1 004) (1 153)
GST remitted to ATO (297) (369) (297) (369)
Cash used in Operations (25 215) (28 989) (25 236) (28 660)
CASH INFLOWS:
Receipts from patrons/customers 15 500 17 995 15 350 17 727
Interest received 425 578 392 522
Increase in funds held on behalf of
promoters 1949 - 1 949 -
GST receipts on sales 1241 1378 1241 1378
GST received from ATO 74 107 74 107
Cash generated from
Operations 19 189 20 058 19 006 19 734
CASH FLOWS FROM GOVERNMENT:
Receipts from SA Government 10 851 8 369 10 851 8 320
Cash generated from
SA Government 10 851 8 369 10 851 8 320
Net Cash provided by (used in)
Operating Activities 4 825 (562) 4 621 (606)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment and works of art (96) (641) (55) (79)
Cash used in Investing
Activities (96) (641) (55) (79)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Repayment of Borrowings - (775) - (775)
Cash used in Financing
Activities - (775) - (775)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 4729 (1978) 4 566 (1 460)
CASH AT 1 JULY 3 906 5 884 3 589 5 049
CASH AT 30 JUNE 11 8 635 3906 8 155 3 589
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Adelaide Festival Centre Trust Objectives
The objectives of the Adelaide Festival Centre Trust (the Trust) are to:

(a)
(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)

encourage and facilitate artistic, cultural and performing arts activities throughout the State;

be responsible for the care, control, management, maintenance and improvement of the Adelaide Festival
Centre and its facilities;

provide expert advisory, consultative, managerial or support services to persons associated with artistic,
cultural or performing arts activities;

promote the involvement of young people and their families and extend activities into the school sector;
and

provide professional development opportunities for emerging talent.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Basis of Accounting

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, Treasurer’s Instructions and
Accounting Policy Statements promulgated under the provision of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987,
and other mandatory reporting requirements. The financial report has been prepared on the basis of
historical costs and does not take into account changing money values except where it is specifically stated.

Changes in Accounting Policy

First Time Adoption of AIFRS

These financial statements are the first statements to be prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents
to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied in preparing these statements.

The adoption of AIFRS has not resulted in any adjustments to the financial report. In addition, a number of
Australian Accounting Standards have been issued or amended and are applicable to the Trust but are not
yet effective. The Trust has assessed the impact of the new and amended standards and there will be no
impact on the accounting policies of the Trust.

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition

Assets are initially recorded at cost or at the value of any liabilities assumed, plus any incidental cost
involved with the acquisition. Where assets are acquired at no value, or minimal value, they are recorded
at their fair value in the Balance Sheet.

Adelaide Festival Centre Trust capitalises all non-current physical assets with a value of $10 000 or greater
in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework (APF) III Asset Accounting Framework.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all entities controlled by the
Trust as at 30 June 2006, and the results of all controlled entities for the year then ended. The effects of all
transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are eliminated in full. The controlled entity is listed
at Note 31.

Revaluation of Non-Current Assets
In accordance with APF III Asset Accounting Framework:

. all non-current tangible assets are valued at written down current cost (a proxy for the fair value
method of valuation).

. revaluation of non-current assets or group of assets is only performed when its fair value at the
time of acquisition is greater than $1 million and estimated useful life is greater than three years.

Every three years, Adelaide Festival Centre Trust revalues its land, buildings, leasehold improvements and
works of art. However, if at any time management considers that the carrying amount of an asset class
materially differs from its fair value then the asset class will be revalued regardless of when the last
valuation took place. Non-current physical assets that are acquired between revaluations are held at cost
until the next valuation, where they are revalued to fair value.

Land and Buildings

The Her Majesty’s Theatre and Adelaide Festival Centre sites are specialised assets because they are
encumbered by heritage listed structures and the latter is also constructed on ‘Parklands’, a designation
under statute which would preclude sale and development. The land values consequently reflect these
impediments to ownership and development.

Comparative Amounts

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in these financial
statements where required.
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9)

(h)

(i)

ad)

(k)

)

Adelaide Festival Centre Trust
Depreciation
All depreciable plant and equipment, buildings and leasehold improvements are depreciated to estimated
residual value over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method of allocation. Land and Works
of Art are not depreciated.
Depreciation rates are reviewed annually.

Depreciation for non-current assets is determined as follows:

Asset Class Depreciation Method Useful Life Years
Buildings (substructure) Straight line 60
Buildings (finishes) Straight line 15
Buildings (fittings and services) Straight line 25
Leasehold improvements Straight line 10
Plant and equipment Straight line 10-25

Employee Benefits

Provision has been made in the financial report for the Trust’s liability for employee benefits arising from
services rendered by employees as at the reporting date. These benefits include accrued salaries and
wages, annual leave and long service leave. Related on-costs consequential to the employment of the
employees have been included in payables in accordance with APF IV Financial Asset and Liability
Framework APS 5 ‘Employee Benefits'.

Accrued Salaries and Wages
Accrued salaries and wages represents the amount of salaries and wages for services rendered by
employees that are unpaid as at reporting date.

Annual Leave

Employee benefits for annual leave have been calculated by multiplying each employee’s benefits by the
remuneration rate expected when the leave is taken. The estimated rate of salary inflation is 4 percent.
When leave loadings are paid these are included in the calculation.

Sick Leave
Employee sick leave benefits are non-vesting. No sick leave liability has been recorded as it is probable
that sick leave taken in future periods will be less than the sick leave benefit accrued in those periods.

Long Service Leave

In calculating long service leave, the Trust has used a benchmark of 7 years, based on an actuarial
assessment undertaken by the Department of Treasury and Finance. The long service leave benefit
estimated to be paid within the next 12 months of balance date is calculated by multiplying each
employee’s benefits by the remuneration rate expected when the leave is taken. The estimated rate of
salary inflation is 4 percent.

Superannuation

Contributions are made by the Trust to a number of State Government and externally managed
superannuation schemes. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no
liability for payments to beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the superannuation schemes. The
only liability outstanding at balance date relates to contributions due but not yet paid to the superannuation
schemes. The total superannuation contributions paid this financial year was $832 000.

Workers Compensation

Contributions are made by the Trust to the WorkCover Corporation to provide insurance coverage in
relation to workers compensation. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There
is no liability for payments to claimants as they have been assumed by WorkCover Corporation.

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Adelaide Festival Centre Trust determines the provision for doubtful debts based on a review of balances
within trade receivables that are unlikely to be collected. These are generally receivables that are 90 days
or more overdue.

Inventories
Inventories are maintained for set building, production and merchandising activities and are valued at cost.

Income and Expenses

Operating Grants

Grants, subsidies and funding for community service obligations received from SA Government are
recognised as revenues when the Trust obtains control over the assets. Control over these revenues is
normally obtained upon receipt and they are accounted for in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 3
Appropriation.

Catering Revenues and Expenses

The Trust has a contractual arrangement in place for the provision of catering services. In 2004-05 catering
arrangements were significantly restructured from October 2004, revenue is based on a turnover fee.
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Assets Received/Provided Free of Charge
Assets received/provided free of charge are recorded as revenue and expenditure in the Income Statement
at their fair value.

Other Revenues
The Trust’s policy is to recognise revenue when a good is supplied or service completed.

(m) Income Tax Status
The activities of the entity are exempt from income tax.

(n) Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)
In accordance with the requirements of Interpretation 1031 Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax
(GST) revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except that:

. the amount of GST incurred by the Trust as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of
expense; and receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included;

. the net GST receivable/payable to the Australian Taxation Office has been recognised as a
receivable/payable in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are reported on a gross basis in the Cash Flow Statement. The GST component of the cash
flows arising from investing or financing activities, which are recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian
Taxation Office have however been classified as operating cash flows.

(o) Segment Information
The Trust has not established any partnership or body corporate to carry out any of its business operations.
Business operations are conducted in the one business and geographical segment.

(p) Rounding
Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

3. SA Government Grants
Included in Revenues from Ordinary Activities were the following Government Grants:

Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
Operating Grants Received: $'000 $’000 $'000 $’000
Operating base 9 348 6 866 9 348 6 816
Debt servicing - Interest 1503 1 503 1503 1 503
Total State Government Operating Grants 10 851 8 369 10 851 8 319

In June 2006 the AFCT received a grant of $1.924 million to be spent on operating activities in 2006-07.

4. Resources Received Free of Charge
Pedestrian Bridge Disability Access Ramp and other
infrastructure - 2 859 - 2 859
Curtain - - - 300
Grand piano - - - 190
Indigenous art work - - 41 72
- 2 859 41 3421
5. Interest
Interest from entities within the SA Government 439 595 405 539
6. Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets
Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds from disposal - - - -
Net book value of assets disposed - 29 - 29
Net Loss from Disposal of Plant and Equipment - (29) - (29)
7. Employee Expenses
Salaries and wages 8 790 9 745 8 785 9713
Long service leave 258 194 258 193
Annual leave 663 612 663 609
Employment on-costs - Superannuation 829 875 829 872
Employment on-costs - Other 663 721 663 719
Board Fees 75 76 75 76
Other 207 229 207 229
11 485 12 452 11 480 12 411
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

Supplies and Services
Supplies and Services provided by entities within the
SA Government:
Contractors
Artistic production expenses
Utilities
Transaction processing fees
Premises rental
Insurance
Equipment
Other
Total Supplies and Services -
SA Government Entities

Supplies and Services provided by entities external to the

SA Government:
Supplies
Contractors
Artistic production expenses
Utilities
Transaction processing fees
Travel and accommodation
Premises rental
Insurance
Doubtful debts
Equipment
Other
Total Supplies and Services -
Non-SA Government Entities

Total Supplies and Services

Depreciation Expense
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Total Depreciation Expense

Borrowing costs
Interest paid
Total Borrowing Costs

Cash
Cash at bank and on hand

Adelaide Festival Centre Trust

Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
80 111 80 111
30 - 30 -
260 285 260 285
183 150 183 150
133 - 133 -
238 247 238 247
69 - 69 -
95 - 95 -
1 088 793 1 088 793
1611 1409 1542 1409
404 674 383 645
1 689 2 994 1 689 2994
1 365 1 508 1 364 1 508
559 843 559 843
336 210 335 207
776 885 776 885
15 15 15 14
85 - 85 -
827 760 827 760
2154 2523 2131 2 409
9 821 11 821 9 706 11 674
10 909 12 614 10 794 12 467
3 362 3318 3 362 3318
1 362 1436 1362 1436
129 129 129 129
4 853 4 883 4 853 4 883
2105 1 966 2 105 1 966
2105 1 966 2 105 1 966
8 635 3 906 8 155 3 589
8 635 3906 8 155 3 589

Cash includes cash on hand and deposits held at call that are used in the cash management function on a day to

day basis.

Receivables
Trade debtors - SA Government entities
Interest Receivable

Total Receivables from SA Government

Trade debtors - Non-SA Government entities
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Total Receivables from Non-SA Government

Total Receivables

Inventories
Raw materials

Other Current Assets
Prepayments
Work in progress
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82 146 82 146
37 24 37 24
119 170 119 170
1651 864 1 649 763
153 89 153 89
1498 775 1496 674
1617 945 1615 844
65 72 65 72
65 72 65 72
11 - 11 -
312 53 312 53
323 53 323 53
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15.

16.

17.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Leasehold
Improvements and Works of Art
Land and Buildings:
Freehold Land:
At independent valuation 2006
Buildings:
At independent valuation 2006
Less: Accumulated depreciation

At cost
Total Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment:
At independent valuation 2006
Less: Accumulated depreciation

At cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Disposals
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total Plant and Equipment
Leasehold Improvements:
At independent valuation 2006
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total Leasehold Improvements
Works of Art:
At independent valuation 2005
At cost
Total Works of Art
Total Property, Plant and Equipment,

Leasehold Improvements and Works of Art

Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
5 895 7 670 5 895 7 670
146 980 117 610 146 980 117 610
(74 510) (61 942) (74 510) (61 942)
72 470 55 668 72 470 55 668
- 2 880 - 2 880
78 365 66 218 78 365 66 218
21 198 17 458 21 198 17 458
(16 227) (14 193) (16 227) (14 193)
4 971 3 265 4 971 3 265
- 548 - 548
- 548 - 548
- (57) - (57)
- 28 - 28
- (29) - (29)
4 971 3784 4 971 3784
1758 1330 1758 1 330
(880) (451) (880) (451)
878 879 878 879
6 765 6 765 6 765 6 765
35 - 35 -
6 800 6 765 6 800 6 765
91 014 77 646 91 014 77 646

The Trust’s land and buildings and leasehold improvements valuation was undertaken at 30 June 2006 by
Mr Martin S Burns MBA., B.App.Sc. Property Resource Management of Liquid Pacific.
revalued as at 30 June 2006 by Mr Martin S Burns of Liquid Pacific. Works of Art were valued by James F B Bruce
Valuer MSAV of Theodore Bruce Auctions Pty Ltd as at 30 June 2005.

Plant and Equipment was

Asset Movement Schedule Leasehold
Freehold Plant and Works Improve- 2006
Land Buildings Equipment of Art ments Total
Gross Amount: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 July 7 670 120 490 17 949 6 765 1 330 154 204
Additions - - 55 35 - 90
Disposals - - - - - -
Revaluations (1775) 26 490 3194 - 428 28 337
Balance at 30 June 5 895 146 980 21198 6 800 1758 182 631
Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance 1 July - 61 942 14 165 - 451 76 558
Depreciation Expense - 3362 1362 - 129 4 853
Revaluations - 9 206 700 - 300 10 206
Balance at 30 June - 74 510 16 227 - 880 91 617
Net Book Value 5 895 72 470 4971 6 800 878 91 014
Payables Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
Current Payables - SA Government Entities: $'000 $'000 $’000 $’000
Unsecured creditors and accruals 1 068 894 1 068 894
Employee related expenses 74 - 74 -
1142 894 1142 894
Current Payables - Other Non-SA Government Entities:
Unsecured creditors and accruals 5 000 2 606 4 999 2 606
Employee related expenses 84 134 84 134
5 084 2 740 5 083 2 740
Total Current Payables 6 226 3634 6 225 3634
Non-Current Liabilities - SA Government Entities:
Employee related expenses 84 - 84 -
Non-Current Liabilities - Other Non-SA Government
Entities:
Employee related expenses 41 122 41 122
Total Non-Current Liabilities 125 122 125 122
Total Payables 6 351 3756 6 350 3756
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Borrowings

Current Liabilities:
Borrowings from government

Non-Current Liabilities:
Borrowings from government

Total

Employee Benefits
Current Liabilities:
Provision for annual leave
Provision for long service leave
Payroll accruals
Provision for retrospective adjustment for
enterprise bargaining

Non-Current Liabilities:
Provision for long service leave
Total Provision for Employee Benefits

Other Current Liabilities
Venue hire deposits
Revenue in advance

Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserve:

Land:
Opening balance
Movement
Closing balance

Buildings:
Opening balance
Movement
Closing balance

Plant and Equipment:
Opening balance
Movement
Closing balance

Works of Art
Opening balance
Revaluation
Closing balance

Leasehold Improvements:
Opening balance
Revaluation
Closing balance

Total:
Opening balance
Revaluation

Closing Balance

Commitments
(a) Operating Leases

Commitments under non-cancellable operating

leases at reporting date are as follows:
Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Total

Equipment leases are for fixed lease periods.

There are no contingent rental payments.

There are options to extend the leases.

Adelaide Festival Centre Trust

Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
- 926 - 926
- 926 - 926
27 250 26 237 27 250 26 237
27 250 27 163 27 250 27 163
691 662 691 662
205 196 205 196
318 283 318 283
- 236 - 236
1214 1377 1214 1377
1072 933 1072 933
2 286 2 310 2 286 2 310
240 140 240 140
298 225 298 225
538 365 538 365
7 670 7 670 7 670 7 670
(1775) - (1775) -
5 895 7 670 5 895 7 670
28 130 28 130 28 130 28 130
17 284 - 17 284 -
45 414 28 130 45 414 28 130
5973 5973 5973 5973
2493 - 2 493 -
8 466 5973 8 466 5973
6 166 5031 6 166 5031
- 1135 - 1135
6 166 6 166 6 166 6 166
128 - 128 -
128 - 128 -
47 939 46 804 47 939 46 804
18 130 1135 18 130 1135
66 069 47 939 66 069 47 939
80 54 80 54
109 35 109 35
189 89 189 89

Motor vehicle leases are for lease periods of two to three years.

Rental payments are fixed.
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23.

24.

25.

(b) Remuneration Commitments
Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under employment contracts in existence
at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:
2006
Consolidated AFCT
$'000 $'000
Within one year 2765 2 765
Later than one year and not later than five years 1939 1939
Total 4 704 4 704
Amounts disclosed include commitments arising from executive and other service contracts.
The Trust does not offer remuneration contracts greater than five years.
(c) Other Commitments
Commitments under non-cancellable maintenance agreements
at reporting date are as follows:
Not later than one year 411 411
Later than one year and not later than five years 127 127
Total Other Commitments 538 538
Contingent Liabilities
As at balance date there were no contingent liabilities or contingent assets.
Cash Flow Reconciliation Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at year end as per: $'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
Cash Flow Statement 8 635 3 906 8 155 3 589
Balance Sheet 8 635 3 906 8 155 3 589
Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by
Operating Activities to Net Cost of providing
Services
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 4 825 (562) 4 621 (606)
Less Revenues from SA Government (10 851) (8 369) (10 851) (8 319)
Add/Less Non-Cash Items:
Depreciation (4 853) (4 883) (4 853) (4 883)
Resources free of charge - 2 859 41 3421
Cost of restructure of loan (87) - (87) -
Net loss on disposal of assets - (29) - (29)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables 671 (337) 771 (438)
(Decrease) in inventories (7) (94) (7) (94)
Increase (Decrease) in other current assets 270 52 270 52
(Increase) Decrease in payables (2 599) 820 (2 599) 679
(Increase) Decrease in other current liabilities (173) 67 (173) 67
(Increase) Decrease in employee benefits 24 (380) 24 (380)
Net Cost of providing Services (12 780) (10 856) (12 843) (10 530)
Remuneration to Auditors and Consultants
Remuneration to auditors:
Auditing the financial report 84 115 84 112
Other auditing services - 18 - 18
84 133 84 130
Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
Number of Number of Number of Number of
Number of Consultants: Consultants Consultants Consultants Consultants
Under $10 001 1 1 1 1
$10 001 - $50 000 1 - 1 -
2 1 2 1
Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
Payments to Consultants: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Under $10 001 6 4 6 4
$10 001 - $50 000 10 - 10 -
16 4 16 4
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26.

27.

28.

Remuneration of Employees

The number of employees whose annual remuneration was over $100 000 fell

within the following bands:
$100 000 - $109 999
$110 000 - $119 999
$120 000 - $129 999
$130 000 - $139 999
$140 000 - $149 999
$160 000 - $169 999
$190 000 - $199 999
$200 000 - $209 999
$220 000 - $229 999

Adelaide Festival Centre Trust

2006 2005
Number of Number of
Employees Employees

2 2
1 1
- 1
1 1
1 1
1 -
1 1
- 1
1 -

The aggregate of the remuneration referred to in the table above for all employees is $1 198 000 ($1 129 000).

Trustees’ Remuneration and Related Party Disclosures

Trustees’ Remuneration

The number of Trustees with income in the following bands was:

$0 - $9 999
$10 000 - $19 999

2006 2005
Number of Number of
Trustees Trustees

7 6

1 2

The aggregate of the remuneration referred to in the above table for Trustees is $75 000 ($76 000) which includes

superannuation of $4 000 ($5 000).

Related Party Disclosures

The members of the Trust are appointed by the Governor in accordance with the provisions of the Adelaide Festival

Centre Trust Act 1971.

During the year the following persons occupied the position of Trustee of the Adelaide Festival Centre Trust:

Mr Richard Ryan AO
Mr Peter Goers

Ms Anne Moran

Ms Carolyn Cordeaux

Ms Joanne Staugas
Mrs Fiona Adler
Mr Ian Kowalick

Mr Barry Fitzpatrick AM (commenced 15 December 2005)

The Trustees of the Trust, or their director related entities, have transactions with the Trust that occur within a
normal employee, customer or supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable than those with
which it is reasonably expected the entity would have adopted if the transactions were undertaken with any other
entity at arm’s length in similar circumstances.

As a part of the duties of office, from time to time, Trustees receive complimentary tickets to shows and events
conducted by or through the Trust. These benefits serve to involve the Trustees in the product and business that is
being managed and/or involve the execution of office in liaison with external parties.

Financial Instruments
Terms and Conditions

Accounting Policies and Methods

Nature of Underlying Instrument

Financial Instruments Note
Financial Assets

Cash 11
Receivables 12

Financial Liabilities

Financial assets are recognised when
control over future economic benefits
is established and the amount of the
benefit can be reliably measured.

Deposits are recognised at their
nominal amount. Interest is credited
to revenue as it accrues.

These receivables are recognised at
the nominal amounts due less any
provision for bad and doubtful debts.
Collectability of debts is reviewed at
balance date. Provisions are made
when collection of the debt is judged
to be less than likely.

Financial liabilities are recognised
when a present obligation to another
party is entered into and the amount
of the liability can be reliably
measured.
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Credit terms are net 30 days. The
carrying amount of receivables
approximates net fair value due to
being receivable on demand. The
Trust’s maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date in relation
to financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as indicated
in the Balance Sheet. The Trust has
no significant exposure to any
concentrations of credit risk.
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29.

30.

31.

Terms and Conditions (continued)

Accounting Policies and Methods

Nature of Underlying Instrument

Financial Instruments Note
Trade creditors 17
Other liabilities 20
Borrowings 18

Employee Benefits and Related On-Cost Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Provision for annual leave (refer Note 19)
Provision for long service leave (refer Note 19)

Creditors and accruals are recognised
at their nominal amounts, being the
amounts at which the liabilities will
be settled. Liabilities are recognised
to the extent that the goods or
services have been received.

Monies held in trust being deposits
held for other entities and revenues
earned in advance are recognised as
liabilities.

Borrowings are recognised in
accordance with APF 1V Financial
Asset and Liability Framework at
their nominal amounts.

Payroll accruals (accounted for in provisions refer

Note 19)

On-costs (accounted for in payables refer Note 17)

Non-Current Liabilities:

Provision for long service leave (refer Note 19)
On-Costs (accounted for in payables refer Note 17)

Settlement is made net 30 days. All
payables are non-interest bearing.
The carrying amount of payable
approximates net fair value due to
being payable on demand.

The Trust holds monies on behalf of
other entities and revenues earned
in advance.

The interest rate is determined by
the Treasurer on borrowings from
the Department of Treasury and
Finance. There are two elements to
these borrowings, one with no
maturity date (interest paid
quarterly), $19.8 million and a
second borrowing with a maturity
date in 2015 (interest paid
monthly), $7.5 million.

Aggregate Employee Benefits and Related

On-Cost Liabilities

Economic Dependency

Consolidated AFCT
2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
691 662 691 662
205 196 205 196
318 283 318 283
158 134 158 134
1372 1275 1372 1275
1072 933 1072 933
125 122 125 122
1197 1 055 1197 1 055
2569 2 330 2569 2 330

A significant proportion of revenue is derived from government, without which the Adelaide Festival Centre Trust
would not be able to continue its operations. Revenue from government grants was $10.9 million in 2005-06.

Controlled Entity

The consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2006 include the following controlled entity:

Name of Controlled Entity

The Adelaide Festival Centre Foundation Incorporated

Place of Incorporation

Australia
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ADELAIDE FESTIVAL CORPORATION

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE
Establishment

The Adelaide Festival Corporation is a body corporate established pursuant to the Adelaide Festival
Corporation Act 1998. The Corporation is an instrumentality of the Crown.

Functions
The functions of the Corporation, as set out in section 5 of the Act, are to:

. conduct in Adelaide and other parts of the State the multifaceted arts event that is known as the
Adelaide Festival of Arts;

. continue to further develop the Adelaide Festival of Arts as an event of international standing and
excellence;

. conduct or promote other events and activities;

. provide advisory, consultative, managerial and support services within areas of the Corporation’s
expertise;

. undertake other activities that promote the arts or public interest in the arts, or that otherwise involve

appropriate use of its resources;

. carry out other functions assigned to the Corporation by or under this or any other Act, or by the
Minister.

The Adelaide Festival of Arts is a biennial event with 2006 being a Festival year.
Structure

The structure of the Adelaide Festival Corporation is illustrated in the following organisational chart.

Minister for the Arts

Artistic Director Board

General Manager

Executive Producer

Financial Controller Development
- Writers Week Manager

- Festival of Ideas

Program Manager Marketing Manager
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AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority

Audit of the Financial Report

The Auditor-General audits the accounts of the Adelaide Festival Corporation pursuant to subsection 31(1)(b)
of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and subsection 19(3) of the Adelaide Festival Corporation Act 1998.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to assess
the controls exercised by the Adelaide Festival Corporation in relation to the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the
Financial Management Framework as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 2 Financial Management Policies.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily towards obtaining sufficient
evidence to enable an audit opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal
controls.

During 2005-06, specific areas of audit attention included:

revenue, including cash receipting and debtors

expenditure, including accounts payable and, salaries and wages
general ledger

contracts

budgetary control.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS
Audit Opinions
Audit of the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Treasurer’'s Instructions
promulgated under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, applicable Accounting Standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the financial position of the Adelaide
Festival Corporation as at 30 June 2006, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Adelaide Festival Corporation in relation to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities
are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Adelaide Festival
Corporation have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Audit Communications to Management

Matters arising during the course of the audit were detailed in a management letter to the General Manager.

A satisfactory response was received to the matters raised in the management letter.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT

Given the biennial nature of the Adelaide Festival of Arts, the financial results for the event are recorded
mainly over a cycle of two financial years.

In reviewing the financial performance of the Corporation it should be noted that, although the predominant
role of the Corporation is to conduct the Adelaide Festival of Arts, its functions also extend to the promotion
and conduct of other festivals and events such as ‘Writers’ Week’ and the ‘Festival of Ideas’. The Income
Statement includes the expenses and income associated with these events as well as the Adelaide Festival of
Arts.
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The following interpretation and analysis is based on the biennial financial results of the Corporation.
A comparison of the last two biennial periods is provided in Note 22.

Biennial Operating Result

As shown in Note 22, the biennial result for the Corporation for the 2005 and 2006 financial years was a
deficit of $288 000 as compared to a surplus of $430 000 for the previous biennial period.

Income

For the 2006 biennial period, income totalled $14.4 million, an increase of $2.7 million compared to the
previous biennial period. The increase is mainly due to increases in:

. grants from government of $1.1 million;
. Box Office income of $393 000;

. sponsorship of $700 000.

Expenses

Expenses increased by $3.4 million to $14.7 million and is mainly attributable to increases in:

. marketing expenses of $443 000;
. the cost of programmed events of $2.3 million;
. administration expenses of $336 000.

Operating income and expenses for the 2004 and 2006 biennial periods are shown in the following table:

2006 2004

Income $'million percent $'million percent
Grants from Government 6.6 46 5.5 47
Box Office 2,5 17 2.1 18
Sponsorship 2.7 19 2.2 19
Sponsorship - Contra 0.7 5 0.5 4
Other 1.9 13 1.4 12

Total 14.4 100 11.7 100
Expenses
Programmed events 6.9 47 4.6 41
Employee costs 3.8 26 3.6 32
Marketing 1.7 11 1.3 11
Administration 1.6 11 1.3 11
Other 0.7 5 0.5 5

Total 14.7 100 11.3 100

Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2006, the Corporation had a net asset deficiency of $76 000 as compared to a net asset surplus

of $1.9 million at the same time last year. The fluctuation in the net assets reflects the biennial nature of the
Adelaide Festival of Arts.
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Adelaide Festival Corporation

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
Note $'000 $’000
EXPENSES:
Employee expenses 2373 1414
Supplies and Services:
Administration and marketing expenses 3 2 758 911
Programmed events 4 6 764 488
Total supplies and services 5 9 522 1399
Total Expenses 11 895 2 813
INCOME:
Grants from Non-SA Government 6 313 180
Box office 2463 -
Interest 158 73
Sponsorship - Corporate 1014 368
Sponsorship - Government 720 575
Other income 7 1765 202
Total Income 6 433 1398
Net Cost of Providing Services (5 462) (1415)
Revenues from SA Government 6 3 502 3 087
NET RESULT (1 960) 1672
NET RESULT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER (1 960) 1672
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2006

2006 2005
ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 8 38 1908
Receivables 9 554 234
Total Current Assets 592 2142

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

Plant and equipment 10 291 301

Total Non-Current Assets 291 301

Total Assets 883 2 443
LIABILITIES:

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Payables 11 722 246
Provision for employee benefits 12 57 85
Total Current Liabilities 779 331

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Payables 11 139 179

Provision for employee benefits 12 41 49

Total Non-Current Liabilities 180 228

Total Liabilities 959 559

NET ASSETS (76) 1 884
EQUITY:

Retained earnings (76) 1 884
TOTAL EQUITY (76) 1 884
Commitments for expenditure 16
Contingent assets and liabilities 17

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2006
Retained
Earnings
$'000
Balance at 30 June 2004 212
Net Result for 2004-05 1672
Balance at 30 June 2005 1 884
Net Result for 2005-06 (1 960)
Balance at 30 June 2006 (76)
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Note $'000 $'000
CASH INFLOWS:
Receipts from Government 3502 3 607
Receipts from patrons, sponsors, donors and others 5 064 677
Receipts from Commonwealth 231 180
Interest received 158 73
GST receipts on sales 318 139
GST input tax credits 191 132
GST received from ATO 57 56
Total Inflows from Operating Activities 9 521 4 864
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Employee payments (2 426) (1 369)
Supplies and services (8 339) (1163)
GST payments on purchases (617) (145)
GST remitted to ATO - (125)
Total Outflows from Operating Activities (11 382) (2 802)
Net Cash (used in) provided by Operating Activities 13 (1861) 2 062

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:

Leasehold improvements 10 - (316)
Purchase of plant and equipment (9) (10)
Total Outflows from Investing Activities (9) (326)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (9) (326)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD (1 870) 1736
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY 1908 172
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 8 38 1908

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Functions of the Adelaide Festival Corporation
The functions of the Adelaide Festival Corporation, as prescribed under the Adelaide Festival Corporation Act 1998,

are to:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

()

conduct in Adelaide and other parts of the State the multifaceted arts event that is known as the Adelaide
Festival of Arts;

continue and further develop the Adelaide Festival of Arts as an event of international standing and
excellence;

conduct or promote other events and activities;

provide advisory, consultative, managerial or support services within areas of the Corporation's expertise;
undertake other activities that promote the arts or public interest in the arts, or that otherwise involve an
appropriate use of its resources; and

carry out other functions assigned to the Corporation by or under the Adelaide Festival Corporation
Act 1998 or any other Act, or by the Minister.
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Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Basis of Accounting

The general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with the Treasurer's Instructions and
Accounting Policy Statements promulgated under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987,
applicable Australian Accounting Standards, applicable Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and other
mandatory reporting requirements. The report has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in
accordance with conventional historical cost principles except where stated.

These statements are the first statements to be prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS).

The adoption of AIFRS has not resulted in any adjustments to the financial report.

The financial report is presented in Australian currency and all amounts have been rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars ($'000).

Foreign Exchange
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at rates of exchange applicable at the date the foreign
currency is acquired. Gains or losses arising from translation are taken directly to revenues or expenses.

Employee Benefits

Provision has been made in the financial report for the Corporation's liability for employee entitlements
arising from services rendered by employees to balance date. Related on-costs consequential to the
employment of employees have been included in payables.

Salaries and Wages
Salaries and wages have been recognised as the amount unpaid at the reporting date and have been
calculated at nominal amounts based on current wage and salary rates.

Annual Leave
Provision has been made for the unused component of annual leave at balance date. The provision has
been calculated at nominal amounts based on current salary rates plus a provision for increase of 4 percent.

Sick Leave
No provision has been made in respect of sick leave. As sick leave taken by employees is considered to be
taken from the current year's accrual, no liability is recognised.

Long Service Leave

Provision has been made for employee entitlements to long service leave based on a benchmark of seven
years service and represents the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made for those
entitlements. This provision has been calculated at nominal amounts based on current salary rates.

Superannuation

Contributions are made by the Corporation to a number of State Government and externally managed
superannuation schemes. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no
liability for payments to beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the superannuation schemes. The
only liability outstanding at balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid to the
superannuation schemes. The amount paid, or due and payable for superannuation contributions was
$178 000.

Workers Compensation

Contributions are made by the Corporation to the WorkCover Corporation to provide insurance coverage in
relation to workers compensation. These contributions are treated as an expense as they occur. There is
no liability to claimants as they have been assumed by WorkCover Corporation.

Income Tax
The income of the Adelaide Festival Corporation is exempt from income tax.

Plant and Equipment
Office furniture and equipment is valued at cost.

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a
manner which reflects the consumption of their service potential. Depreciation of office furniture and
equipment is calculated using the straight line method of allocation over a useful life of four years and is
recognised from the date of acquisition.

Leasehold Improvements
Leasehold Improvements have been valued at cost and amortised over the length of the lease (six years).

Deferred Rent Incentive

The Corporation received a rent incentive on its new premises lease, to be taken as a rent free period within
the first two years of the lease. The benefit of this will be recorded as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term on a straight line basis.
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2.10 Revenue Recognition
Operating and Performing Arts Grants
In accordance with Department of Treasury and Finance Accounting Policy Framework V Income
Framework, all grants are recognised as revenue when received.
Sponsorship, Sundry Income and Interest
All income of this nature is recognised as revenue as it accrues.
Donations
All income of this nature is recognised as revenue when received.
2.11 Economic Dependency
The normal business activity of the Adelaide Festival Corporation is dependent on the contribution of grants
from the State at the appropriate levels. The State Government has advised that funding will be
maintained and accordingly this financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis.
2.12 Comparative Figures
Where applicable, comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation and
classification in the current financial year.
2.13 Program Information
The principal activity of the Corporation is to conduct the Adelaide Festival of Arts.
2.14 Changes in Accounting Policies
A number of Australian Accounting Standards have been issued or amended and are applicable to the
Corporation but are not yet effective. The Corporation has assessed the impact of the new and amended
standards and there will be no impact on the accounting policies of the Corporation.
3. Administration and Marketing Expenses 2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
Marketing 1575 139
Development 270 90
Insurance 143 3
Communications 53 47
Depreciation/amortisation 10 64 58
Operating leases 40 18
Artistic Directorate 15 119
Other expenses 598 437
2 758 911
4. Programmed Events
Festival of Arts 2006 6 319 248
Writers’ Week 2006 369 -
Festival of Ideas 2005 76 227
Festival of Arts 2004 - 13
6 764 488
5. Supplies and Services
Supplies and services provided by entities within the SA Government:
Insurance 143 3
Audit 25 21
Motor vehicle expenses 34 9
Other 4 4
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 206 37
Supplies and services provided by entities external to the SA Government:
Administration and marketing 2 552 876
Programmed events 6 764 486
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 9 316 1362
Total Supplies and Services 9 522 1399
6. Grants from Government
Grants from SA Government 3 502 3 087
Commonwealth grants 231 180
Grants from overseas governments 82 -
Grants from Non-SA Government 313 180
7. Other Income
Sponsorship - Contra 684 -
Sundry 659 120
Book and merchandise sales 318 -
Friends membership 67 31
Donations 37 51
1765 202
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12.

Adelaide Festival Corporation

Reconciliation of Cash
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash on hand, at bank and on deposit.

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Cash on hand 1 1
Cash at bank 36 100
SAFA deposit 1 1 807
38 1908
Receivables
Trade debtors 373 77
Prepayments and accruals 181 157
554 234
Plant and Equipment
(a) Office equipment and furniture at cost 323 269
Less: Accumulated depreciation 260 249
Written Down Value 63 20
(b) Leasehold improvements 316 316
Less: Amortisation of leasehold improvements 88 35
Written Down Value 228 281
Total Plant and Equipment Written Down Value 291 301
(c) Reconciliation of Carrying Amounts of Plant and Equipment
Balance at 1 July 585 259
Add: Additions 54 10
Add: Leasehold improvements - 316
Balance at 30 June 639 585
Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance at 1 July 284 226
Add: Amortisation expense (Leasehold improvements) 53 35
Add: Depreciation expense (Plant and equipment) 11 23
Balance at 30 June 348 284
Net Book Value 291 301
Payables
Current:
Trade creditors and accruals 672 194
Employee on-costs 10 12
Deferred rent incentive 40 40
722 246
Non-Current:
Employee on-costs 7 7
Deferred rent incentive 132 172
139 179
Employee Benefits
(a) Employee Benefits
Current:
Accrued salaries and wages 26 50
Annual leave 31 35
57 85
Non-Current:
Long service leave 41 49
41 49
(b) Employee Benefits and Related On-cost Liabilities
Accrued Salaries:
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 11) 5 7
Provision for employee benefits - Current (Note 12(a)) 26 50
31 57
Annual Leave:
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 11) 5 5
Provision for employee benefits - Current (Note 12(a)) 31 35
36 40
Long Service Leave:
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 11) - -
Provision for employee benefits - Current (Note 12(a)) - -
On-costs included in payables - Non-Current (Note 11) 7 7
Provision for employee benefits - Non-Current (Note 12(a)) 41 49
48 56
Aggregate Employee Benefits and Related On-cost Liabilities 115 153
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13. Reconciliation of Net Result to Net Cash (used in) provided by 2006 2005
Operating Activities $'000 $’000
Net result (1 960) 1672
Items not involving cash:

Depreciation/amortisation 64 58
Prepaid rent 96 62
Deferred rent incentive - (212)
Contra asset received (45) -
Bad and doubtful debts - 2

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in receivables (416) 124
Increase (Decrease) in payables 436 323
Increase (Decrease) in provision for employee benefits (36) 33
Net Cash (used in) provided by Operating Activities (1 861) 2 062

14. Remuneration to Auditors
The amount due to and receivable by the Auditor-General's Department for auditing the accounts for the year was
$25 300 ($20 900).

The auditors provided no other services.

15. Consultancies
During the year, the Board engaged consultants to assist in its operation. The costs of these consultancies was
$800 ($11 906).

2006 2005

Number of Number of

The number of consultancies which fell within the following bands were: Consultancies Consultancies

$Nil - $9 999 1 2

16. Commitments for Expenditure 2006 2005

Operating Leases: $'000 $'000
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting

date are payable as follows:

Not later than one year 34 41

Later than one year and not later than five years 37 88

71 129

These operating lease commitments are not recognised in the financial report as liabilities.
The equipment leases are non-cancellable, payable monthly in advance.

The current property lease commenced 1 November 2004 for a six year period. The gross rental payable is
$132 210 plus indexation of 4 percent per annum. Property lease commitments have been excluded from the
above figures.

A fit out incentive of $238 000 was included in the lease to be taken as a rent free period within the first two years
of the term of the lease. (Refer Note 2.9).

17. Contingent Assets and Liabilities
There are no known contingent assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2006.
18. Remuneration of Employees 2006 2005
The number of employees whose total remuneration fell within the Number of Number of
following bands: Employees Employees

$100 000 - $109 999
$110 000 - $119 999
$130 000 - $139 999
$140 000 - $149 999
$150 000 - $159 999

[ S T
LR RN

The aggregate remuneration referred to in the above table for employees who received remuneration of $100 000
or more during the year is $528 000 ($605 000).

19. Remuneration of Board Members 2006 2005
Remuneration of the Board Members fell between the following bands: Number of Number of
Members Members

$Nil 1 1

$1 - $9 999 6 6

$10 000 - $19 999 1 1

The aggregate remuneration referred to in the above table for Board Members is $72 000 ($72 000).

As at 30 June 2006 one member of the Board, who is a government employee, received no sitting fees from the
Corporation.
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21.

22,

Financial Instruments
(a) Terms, Conditions and Accounting Policies

Accounting Policies and Methods
(including recognition criteria and

Adelaide Festival Corporation

Nature of underlying instrument
(including significant terms and
conditions affecting the amount,

Financial Instrument Note measurement basis) timing and certainty of cash flows)

Financial Assets:

Cash on hand and at bank 8 Deposits are recognised at their nominal All deposited funds attract interest.

and deposit amounts. Interest is credited to income as it Rates are determined by the bank and

accrues. SAFA at their discretion. The interest

rate as at 30 June 2006 was 1 percent
at Adelaide Bank, 4 percent at Bank SA
and 5.83 percent at SAFA. Interest is
paid monthly.

Receivables 9 Receivables are recognised at their nominal Standard credit terms are 30 days.

amounts. Amounts are recognised when
services are provided. Collectability of debts is
assessed at balance date with any bad debts
being written off prior to balance date.

Financial Liabilities:

Payables 11 Creditors are recognised at their nominal
amounts. Liabilities are recognised once the
goods or services have been received.

Creditors are generally paid within
30 days.

(b) Interest Rate Risk 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
2006 2005 2006 2005 Average Average
Floating Floating Non- Non- Effective Effective
Financial Instrument Interest Interest Interest Interest 2006 2005 Interest Interest
Rate Rate Bearing Bearing Total Total Rate Rate
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Percent Percent
Financial Assets:
Cash at bank 8 36 100 - - 36 100 1.5 4.0
SAFA deposit 8 1 1807 - - 1 1 807 5.7 5.6
Cash on hand 8 - - 1 1 1 1 - -
Receivables 9 - - 554 234 554 234 - -
Total 37 1907 555 235 592 2142
Financial Liabilities:
Payables 11 - - 861 425 861 425 - -
Total - - 861 425 861 425

(c) Net Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The net fair values of the financial assets and liabilities in this report approximate their carrying value.

(d) Credit Risk Exposure

The maximum credit risk exposure at reporting date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset

and financial liability is the amount as indicated in the Balance Sheet.

Related Party Disclosure

The Board members are appointed by the Governor in accordance with the Adelaide Festival Corporation Act 1998.

During the period, the following persons occupied the position of Board members of the Adelaide Festival

Corporation:

Mr R Adler AO (Chair) Mr L Warren

Mr C Dunsford (Chair Finance Committee) Ms S Sdraulig
Ms M Oates Ms Amanda Blair
Mr R Angove AM Mr Brett Rowse

As part of the duties of office, from time to time, Board Members receive complimentary tickets to shows or events
conducted by the Adelaide Festival Corporation. These benefits serve to involve the Board Members in the product
and business that is being managed and/or involve the execution of office in liaison with external parties.

Comparison of Biennial Periods

The following table highlights the operating result of the Corporation with comparisons of the biennial period
1 July 2002 to 30 June 2004 and 1 July 2004 to 30 June 2006 which covers the periods of operation relating to the

Adelaide Bank Festival of Arts and other projects.

Revenues:
Grants from Government
Other grants
Box office
Sponsorship
Interest
Donations
Other income
Total Revenues
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Financial Years Financial Years
2005 and 2006 2003 and 2004

$'000 $'000
6 589 5 534
493 383

2 463 2 070
2677 2711
231 116
88 153
1879 738
14 420 11 705
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22, Comparison of Biennial Periods (continued)

Expenses:

Corporate Surplus (Deficit) from Biennial Period Operations

*

Administration

Development

Marketing

Festival of Ideas

Programmed events

Employee costs
Total Expenses

Financial Years
2005 and 2006

Financial Years
2003 and 2004

$'000 $'000
1595 1259
360 216
1714 1271
303 337

6 949 4634
3 787 3 558
14 708 11 275
*(288) 430

The two financial years reported in the Income Statement cover the whole of the period of the development
and presentation of the Adelaide Bank Festival of Arts, resulting in an overall deficit for the 2006 biennial

Festival of $288 000.

An accumulated operating surplus of $212 000 was brought forward from 2004, resulting in a net deficit of
$76 000 as at 30 June 2006 (as compared to a break-even budget outcome), which will be carried forward to

the 2008 biennial Festival.
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DEPARTMENT FOR ADMINISTRATIVE AND INFORMATION SERVICES

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE
Establishment

The Department for Administrative and Information Services (DAIS) is an Administrative Unit established
under the Public Sector Management Act 1995.

Functions
DAIS is the portfolio based agency that provides support to the Minister for Administrative Services and

Government Enterprises, the Minister for Industrial Relations and the Minister for Recreation Sport and
Racing. During 2005-06 DAIS had responsibility for a diverse range of government activities including:

. project risk management, building asset management, procurement and contract services;
. capital building works and major projects delivery;

. information technology policy, support and management services;

. internal services to government, for example forensic services and fleet management;

. land valuation, survey and registration;

. workplace registration and regulation and industrial relations services;

. administration and assistance to the recreation, sport and racing industries;

. public sector workforce relations.

Structure

The structure of DAIS, highlighting the major business units, is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

Chief Executive

Internal Audit Office of th_e Chief
Executive
Government ICT Buildin Office for Procursetriteent and Public Sector Commercial and
X 9 Recreation and Office for Racing . Workforce Government SafeWork SA
Services Management Business N N
Sport Relations Services
Development
- . Corporate and Land Services
— Facilities Services — X —
Support Services Group
|| Accommodation —— Contract Services — Service SA

Services

— Project Services — Fleet SA

—— Forensic Science

Audit Committee
DAIS has an Audit Committee which was operative during the financial year. The broad functions of the Audit

Committee are to oversee financial reporting processes and monitor and evaluate: risk management
activities; internal control framework and processes; and audit activities.
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Changes to Functions and Structure
During the year the following changes to the functions of DAIS were effected:

. Transfer of the Office for Infrastructure Development to the Department for Transport, Energy and
Infrastructure on 1 July 2005.

. Transfer to DAIS on 1 July 2005 of employees of the Department for Transport, Energy and
Infrastructure who hold a position at the Transport SA Call Centre or at a Transport SA Customer
Service Centre at Mt Gambier; Berri; Kadina; Murray Bridge; Port Pirie or Adelaide.

. Transfer to DAIS on 1 January 2006 of specific WorkCover employees to give effect to the
Occupational Health Safety (SafeWork SA) Amendment Act 2005. This Act consolidated all
occupational health and safety administration into DAIS.

The details of the above transfers, including the financial effect, are outlined in Note 8 to the DAIS financial
statements.

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 31(1)(b) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to audit the
accounts of the Department for Administrative and Information Services for each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to assess
the controls exercised by the Department for Administrative and Information Services in relation to the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of
liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the
Financial Management Framework as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 2 Financial Management Policies.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered the major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient
evidence to enable an audit opinion to be formed on the financial statements and internal controls.

The audit considered the diverse and self contained nature of the activities of the functional areas of DAIS
and the separate financial accounting systems and processes. The audit of the various functional areas
assessed whether financial systems and controls assured the integrity of financial transaction processing and
preparation of financial statement information. This included consideration of the diverse nature and risks of
those areas, integrity of the stand alone and subsidiary financial systems and the materiality of the financial
operations of that area compared with DAIS’ overall operations and financial statements. The audit also
included a review of risks and controls for certain key information systems and related computer processing
environments.

In broad terms the scope of the audit included:

. revenue, expenditure, and payroll cycles;

. maintenance of the general ledger and associated reconciliations and subsidiary systems;

. asset and liability identification, valuation and management;

. management of properties, motor vehicle fleet and other assets;

. management of whole-of-government contracts, including maintenance and information technology

projects and initiatives;

. capital works and maintenance services.
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AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS
Audit Opinions
Audit of the Financial Report

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly in accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions promulgated
under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, applicable Accounting Standards and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the financial position of the Department for
Administrative and Information Services as at 30 June 2006, the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended.

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department for Administrative and Information Services in
relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the
incurring of liabilities, except for the matters raised in relation to: Across Government Contract Management;
Supply SA; Facilities Management Contract; Facilities Asset Management Information System; Electronic
Facilities Management System; Masterpiece accounts payable; E-purchase; Office Accommodation Group
(OAG); Office for Recreation and Sport; Service SA; management and control of information technology
systems operations; CaseMan; SACREDD DNA Database System; and Complete Human Resource
Management System, as outlined under ‘Audit Communications to Management’, are sufficient to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Department for Administrative and Information
Services have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Audit Communications to Management

Matters arising during the course of the audit were detailed in management letters to the Chief Executive.
Major matters raised with DAIS and the related responses are considered hereafter.

Across Government Contracts Management
2004-05 Audit Findings

DAIS’ Contract Services business unit manage a range of Across Government Contracts. In 2004-05 Audit
reviewed the overall contract management framework (policies and procedures) for Across Government
Contracts, and the contract management practices. The 2004-05 audit revealed that while Contract Services
had established some mechanisms for contract management, there was no overall documented
policy/framework that outlined the management arrangements (eg risk management, reporting, performance
assessment, contract compliance) for Across Government Contracts. In addition, examples were noted where
contract management practices were not comprehensive, complete and adequately documented. Further,
there was no documented assessment of the reliability of information provided by the contractors.

DAIS responded that the implementation of a contract management framework is being progressed and that
consideration will be given to exercising the audit right included in contracts to provide greater confidence in
the reliability of information provided by contractors.

2005-06 Audit Findings

During 2005-06 considerable effort has been directed toward improving contract management practices. This
has included the development and implementation of a comprehensive Strategic Contract Management
Framework (SCMF). The SCMF addresses records management, risk management and contract management
plans. In addition, SCMF includes extensive guidelines, tools and templates to support the contract
management process.

In February 2006, Internal Audit reported on a review of Contract Services which included a review of
contract management. Internal Audit commented on improvements made and observed that the SCMF was
relatively silent on the internal control process for the approval of the Contract Management Plan and the
controls for monitoring compliance with the framework. Further, the contract management plans did not
specifically detail all the risks and made general references to what was still required in respect of risks and
consequences of contractors not providing reliable information.

The 2005-06 external audit revealed that monitoring and reporting requirements for management oversight

of across Government contracts were not clearly established and included in the SCMF. In addition, controls
over the completeness and accuracy of information used for contract management could be improved.
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Departmental Response

The response indicated that: formal management reporting and monitoring will be established and addressed
as part of the SCMF; internal controls over data reliability and completeness would be implemented; and a
formal process for considering the reliability of information provided by contractors would be assessed
through the risk management plans for all contracts.

Master Media Contract

The audit of across Government contracts included examination of the Master Media Agency (MMA) contract.
The Cabinet submission indicated that the Department for Premier and Cabinet (DPC) was the contract
manager. At the time of the audit, both DPC and Contact Services were using detailed contract management
plans for this contract.

Audit considered that there was potential to rationalise contract management activities for this contract from
a Whole of Government perspective.

Departmental Response
The response indicated that DAIS considered the current arrangements are effective, however Contract
Services agreed to work with DPC to resolve responsibilities for the contract ensuring the most efficient
approach is undertaken.

Supply SA

In February 2006, Internal Audit reported on a review of Contract Services which included a review of
Supply SA. Internal Audit raised issues with Supply SA’s:

. level of documented and authorised policy and procedures for a range of Supply SA areas and internal
controls;

. back up and restoration of Advanta data and business continuity planning;

. adequacy of access levels (segregation of duties) within Advanta;

. internal controls over purchase order approval, special purchases, product master file maintenance

and e-Store activities.

The external audit of Supply SA for 2005-06 noted similar control issues to that raised by Internal Audit,
particularly for the level of documented policies and procedures and the internal controls.

Departmental Response
The response indicated planned action to address all issues raised.
Facilities Management Contract

In 2004-05 an Internal Audit review of the Facilities Asset Management Information System (FAMIS)
identified that a documented contract management framework for the Facilities Maintenance Contract was not
used increasing the likelihood of key contractual obligations, risks and rights being overlooked. Audit agreed
with the Internal Audit observations and considers the use of a structured framework to manage the risks to
government for large complicated contracts improves the control environment.

The DAIS response to the 2004-05 audit advised that it is planned a framework including policies, procedures
and processes for managing the contract will be developed from the beginning of 2006, for adoption at the
commencement of the planned new arrangements for facilities management.

In December 2005 Cabinet provided approval to enter into a single consolidated contract to undertake
Facilities Management Services commencing on 1 July 2006. The estimated upper limit contract value was
$900 million and a likely estimated value of $500 million over nine years.

As the new contract arrangements did not commence until July 2006, the observations from the 2004-05
audit were also applicable to the 2005-06 year.
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Facilities Asset Management Information System (FAMIS)

The 2004-05 audit identified concerns with the internal control environment over FAMIS and its associated
computer processing environment (CPE) and concluded that the CPE does not provide reasonable assurance
on the completeness and integrity of information processed by FAMIS. That conclusion was based on key
weaknesses in the operational areas of policy/procedural documentation, user access privileges, password
controls, logging and monitoring of database access and use, and controls over application change
management.

The response indicated that DAIS is actively pursuing the development of a replacement application for FAMIS
that will support the new Facilities Management contracts to be in place in July 2006. There will be a
particular focus on ensuring the findings of the audit and associated recommendations are incorporated in the
design of the replacement system. DAIS considered that, on a risk basis, the appropriate course of action is
to invest in design of the replacement application rather than in the legacy FAMIS application.

As the replacement application has not been implemented (see below) the observations from the 2004-05
audit were also applicable to the 2005-06 year.

Electronic Facilities Management System (e-FM)

In December 2005, as a part of the new arrangements for facilities management, Cabinet approved the
development of e-FM to replace FAMIS at an estimated cost of $1.985 million. The Cabinet submission
indicated that the build in-house option is preferred as it provides the only viable opportunity to satisfy
contractual, participating agency and system compliance requirements within the timeframe available before
July 2006.

During 2005-06, Audit sought to review the project management process used to manage the design,
building and implementation of e-FM and confirm that the FAMIS audit issues (see above) had been
considered in e-FM. An e-FM Board was established to manage and oversee the project and a project
manager and team were appointed. However, at commencement of the review (early March 2006), it was
apparent the project was experiencing difficulties and important staff changes. Audit observed that control
processes followed for managing the project appeared less rigorous than for normal IT projects. Audit was
advised that some of the project management processes required by DAIS policy and procedures were
modified to meet the short timeframe available (ie seven months).

Audit also observed that the e-FM Board had (separately) identified concerns with the project and had
consequently initiated a ‘health check’ report on the project and replaced the e-FM project manager. Further,
due to concerns identified by the e-FM Board, progress with the e-FM project was deferred and alternatives
were being examined with a view to establishing a future course of action.

In June 2006, DAIS formally advised Audit of the decision to defer further development of the in-house
system. It was also advised by DAIS that the business requirements specification document needed to be
further developed and that the project could not be completed within the approved program and budget. At
the time of preparation of this Report, DAIS was assessing various options for the proposed information
technology solution and intended to subsequently provide an update to Cabinet. The Department continues
to use the FAMIS system.

Observations and comments on the e-FM project are also included in Part A of this Report.

Masterpiece Accounts Payable (MPAP)

Over the past few years Audit has raised several concerns with the MPAP control environment. In response,
DAIS initiated action to address the control concerns, including progressively rolling out E-Purchase across
DAIS and revising the processes and documentation for invoices processed through Masterpiece.

Audit was advised that the majority of transactions previously processed through MPAP are now processed
through E-Purchase. Notwithstanding, a large dollar value of transactions were still processed by direct input
into MPAP. A significant component of these transactions are large non-purchase order type transactions

(eg Treasury and Finance, Commonwealth Bank, EDS, Telstra, etc).

The 2005-06 audit of the MPAP control environment within Support Services revealed some areas where
controls could be improved, these included:

. completing and authorising the control framework and related policies and procedures;

. reviewing controls to ensure input is valid (ie bona fide);
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. complying with established procedures for transaction processing and vendor master file
maintenance.

In addition, the audit identified internal controls over credit cards, including compliance with the Treasurer’s
Instructions and internal DAIS policies, could be improved.

Departmental Response

The response indicated planned action on the matters raised. For the review of input for validity, DAIS
considered that adequate controls were in place, even though Audit’'s view was that the established control
environment may not identify non-bona fide transactions before a payment is made.

E-Purchase
Previous Audits

Over the past few years Audit has raised several concerns with the expenditure control environment. In
response, DAIS initiated action to address the control concerns, including progressively rolling out E-Purchase
across DAIS and revising the processes and documentation for invoices processed through Masterpiece.
E-Purchase is an Internet-based software application used for the purchase of goods and services across
DAIS.

E-Purchase was rolled out to business units during 2005. E-Purchase contains inbuilt controls to ensure that
only valid transactions are processed by limiting the functions of individual users. Internal Audit completed a
review of E-Purchase in March 2005. As at June 2005 most matters raised by Internal Audit were still to be
addressed.

2005-06 Audit

Audit was advised that the majority (in excess of 90 percent) of transactions previously processed through
MPAP are now processed through E-Purchase.

The 2005-06 audit (conducted during December 2005 and January 2006) revealed that further effort had
been made to improve the controls over the E-Purchase processes with most of the matters raised by Internal
Audit being addressed. The audit also identified several areas of concern with the E-Purchase system,
including: segregation of duties in purchasing; use of appropriate delegation for purchase approval; review of
system access; and review of system administrator activity.

In addition, Audit identified examples where E-Purchase procurement practices and compliance with
guidelines could be improved. The audit revealed that the systematic analysis and reporting of E-Purchase
information for compliance and strategic procurement purposes could be improved.

DAIS has continued to modify the control environment over E-Purchase since the completion of the audit.
Notwithstanding those changes, the observations on the control environment for the first six months
concluded that the controls could be improved.

Departmental Response

The response indicated action being taken to improve the control environment for E-Purchase, including
revising delegations, modifying the approval process, assessing procedures for reviewing users’ access rights
and revising system administrator duties. In addition, the response indicated further investigation was
required to determine the best way forward for meaningful analysis in the areas of procurement practice and
potential procurement initiatives.

Office Accommodation Group (OAG)

The Office Accommodation Management Information System (OAMIS) was implemented in 2003 and is used
to manage revenue, expenditure and fixed assets for commercial properties. Previous years’ audits identified
concerns over the financial processes and internal controls as well as security and operational controls for the
OAMIS computer processing environment.

OAG Financial Processes and Controls

The 2005-06 audit revealed that while some of the previously raised control issues were addressed, there
were some areas which had not been completed at the time of audit. The main matters were:

. procedures for some important control activities had not been documented;
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. controls aimed at ensuring rental income is complete and accurate had commenced but were
incomplete at the time of audit;

. long outstanding variances between OAMIS and the General Ledger was still to be resolved.

In addition, due to the withdrawal of Treasurer’s Instruction 16 Office Accommodation, Office Fitout and
Decommissioning Works, the status and requirement for a Memorandum of Understanding with Government
agencies requires clarification.

The Departmental response indicated action planned and taken to address the matters raised.
OAMIS Information Technology and Security and Operations

Last year's Report indicated that a follow-up review had been conducted of the OAMIS Information
Technology and Security and Operations during 2004-05. The findings of that review were communicated to
DAIS in late August 2005 and were at that time under consideration by the Department.

The findings of the review covered the need for development of some key system documentation, a detailed
review of configuration weaknesses and user privilege arrangements for the database, OAMIS server
maintenance, and determination of logging and review requirements.

DAIS advised in September 2005 that it had completed certain documentation, undertaken a review into
configuration and user privilege weaknesses and implemented certain remedial action, improved server
maintenance and was working with other users of the system to scope customisation required for an
appropriate audit log facility.

Office for Recreation and Sport (ORS)

ORS is responsible for managing a range of unique and diverse contracts that support and promote the
objectives of ORS. In previous years Audit has commented on the lack of a structured framework and
contract register to manage contract obligations and risks.

Since the 2004-05 audit, ORS has developed a Contract Management Framework (CMF) together with the
Legal Agreements Database (LAD) to manage contractual obligations. These were established from
June 2005 and reporting for contractual management as required by CMF commenced from January 2006.

The 2005-06 audit revealed there was insufficient control over the completeness and accuracy of information
included in the LAD, some management activities envisaged by the CMF weren’t conducted and some
evidence of other management activities was not retained.

Departmental Response
The response indicated that action planned to address the matters raised.
Service SA

Service SA provides receipting services for a range of clients. Monies received by Service SA are banked into
the Service SA bank account and disbursed to clients. The 2004-05 audit revealed that the Service SA bank
reconciliation was not complete because the individual items that comprise the variance between the
receipting (and disbursing) system and the bank statement were not identified. DAIS responded that issues
surrounding the Service SA reconciliations will be taken up and adequate procedures should be identified by
the beginning of 2005-06, with implementation following as soon as practicable thereafter.

The 2005-06 audit revealed that additional procedures had been implemented to identify reconciliation items.
Notwithstanding these additional procedures, there remained an unexplained component of the reconciliation.
Audit was advised that a business case to improve the bank reconciliation process was being developed.

In addition, the audit revealed that controls over disbursements could be improved and that Service Level
Agreements for Service SA’s two key clients had not been finalised.

Departmental Response
The response indicated that a business case for automating the bank reconciliation process would be
completed in early 2006-07 with project finalisation anticipated over the next 12 months, depending on

funding approval. The response also indicated that the Service Level Agreements were expected to be
finalised over the next 12 months.
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Management and Control of Information Technology and Systems Operations

In May 2006, Audit obtained information on DAIS ICT strategic planning and other matters such as security
policy and procedures and business continuity arrangements. Examination of the information provided,
showed that the following matters had not reached a stage of finalisation.

ICT Strategic Planning

A draft ICT Strategic Plan for 2005-06 had been submitted to the Departmental Executive for noting. Full
implementation of the ICT Plan had been impacted by the concurrent restructure of the Business Services
business unit. The Plan remained to be finalised and formally endorsed.

A risk management framework had been established with formal reporting to the DAIS Audit and Risk
Management Committee. While certain business units had completed a formal risk assessment, overall the
completion of assessments would take 24 months and was planned to commence in May 2006.

Security Policy and Procedures

DAIS had developed an Information Security Management System (ISMS) covering policy and procedures as
part of its compliance with the government-mandated Information Security Management Framework (ISMF).
The ISMS was approved with effect from April 2006, subject to incorporation of some changes. The ISMS was
yet to be fully implemented.

Business Continuity Planning
Specific business continuity planning arrangements relating to ICT transition had been completed.

DAIS advised that business continuity plans would be further developed to extend the work done for ICT
transition, and to define the relationship of the business continuity plan process with the ISMS. This had not
been completed at the time of the audit.

The status of these matters will be further examined by Audit in 2006-07.
CaseMan (Forensic Branch)

The CaseMan system is used, amongst other tasks, to ensure the chain of evidence is correctly recorded for
criminal proceedings. My last year's Report provided commentary on Audit’s follow-up review of corrective
actions being implemented by the Department in relation to a number of matters raised by Audit. That
follow-up review identified some specific matters that remained to be fully actioned, including: the
development of key policies and procedures, improvements in access security and integrity, finalisation of
contract arrangements with the support vendor and formal disaster recovery and business continuity
planning.

The CaseMan system was also the subject of further commentary in my Supplementary Report of November
2005 to Parliament titled ‘Government Management and the Security Associated with Personal and Sensitive
Information’. The main outstanding issues addressed in the November 2005 Report to Parliament related to
matters of contractual arrangements with the external system support provider, formalisation of policy and
procedures regarding security and control matters, and computing system configuration and maintenance. In
addition the business plan arrangements for ongoing operation of the system required to be addressed.

In June 2006, Audit sought a further update regarding the corrective actions being implemented by the
Department.

In its response, DAIS provided certain formal policy/procedure documentation and advised that formal
disaster recovery and business continuity planning and a new physical security system are scheduled to be
completed by the end of 2006.

At the time of preparation of this Report, Audit had commenced a review of the actions implemented to date.
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SACREDD DNA Database System (Forensic Science)

The South Australian Criminal Reference and Evidence DNA Database (SACREDD) system is a Laboratory
Information Management System which tracks and manages samples through the entire analytical process
and allows for the searching and matching of nominated DNA profiles.

The SACREDD system is operated by Forensic Science SA, under delegations and a Memorandum of
Understanding with the South Australian Commissioner of Police.

My 2004-05 Report provided specific commentary on Audit’s review of the SACREDD system and its computer
processing environment, including aspects of compliance of the system with legislation.

The SACREDD system was also the subject of further commentary in my Supplementary Report of November
2005 to Parliament titled ‘Government Management and the Security Associated with Personal and Sensitive
Information’. That Report provided an update position on corrective actions being taken by DAIS in respect of
the SACREDD system.

Audit commentary in that Supplementary Report identified a number of important matters of principle and
practice that were required to be addressed to meet the expected high standards of management and
operational control for such a critical system as the SACREDD DNA database system. These matters related
to compliance with governing legislation, effectiveness of the administrative arrangements between the
agencies involved in the management of the DNA database system, and security and control issues associated
with maintaining the integrity of the system and information, including proper custody and use of system
information.

In June 2006, Audit sought an update regarding the corrective actions being implemented by the Department.
In its response, DAIS advised of the following actions completed and in progress to address the matters:

. Revision of the memorandum of understanding with the South Australian Commissioner of Police.

. A legislative submission being prepared by the Police Department for Government consideration to
address certain matters.

. Implementation of revised arrangements for legal advice.

. Agreement of an external audit specification plan under the management of the Police Department.
. Implementation of web based facilities to aid in the destruction/removal of electronic records.

. Improved measures to ensure the security of system information on the computing facilities.

At the time of preparation of this Report, Audit had commenced a review of the actions implemented to date.
Complete Human Resource Management System (CHRIS)

The Complete Human Resource Information System (CHRIS) is a human resource management and payroll
system. CHRIS is processed at a bureau service managed by an external service provider. DAIS is responsible
for managing the contract and operation of CHRIS on behalf of a number of participating agencies of
government. Under a separate arrangement, the Department of Health (DH) manages CHRIS on behalf the
Health sector.

The 2004-05 Report included commentary on a review of the system managed by DAIS. The review also
addressed compliance by both parties to the Bureau Service Agreement (BSA) between the Minister for
Administrative Services and the external service provider. The salient observations arising from the 2005
Audit review related to variations to the Bureau Service Agreement, outstanding issues from a 2003 external
consultancy security review, applicability of DAIS security patch management policy and procedures to the
external service provider, testing of the external service provider Disaster Recovery and Business Resumption
Plan, and the establishment and testing of a business continuity plan for DAIS Central Support Unit (CSU) and
Payroll and Employee Services (PAES) CHRIS.

Further, Audit observed that regular security assessments have not been conducted subsequent to 2003 by
DAIS and DH of the external service provider CHRIS operational environments to confirm that hardware,
software and general computer controls comply with the Information Security Management Framework.

Last year’s report also advised that the Department indicated action was being taken to address all matters
raised by Audit.
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A review of the resolution of action items from the 2005 review revealed that, while certain areas have been
satisfactorily addressed there remain important matters where remedial action was in progress (ie not
complete), notably:

. DAIS was consulting with DH to complete a security review of the external service provider in the
2006 calendar year;

. DAIS CSU Disaster Recovery Plan was to be updated;

. DAIS CSU was continuing to liaise with government agencies for agency specific business continuity
plans;

. DAIS PAES was progressing the development of its business continuity plan.

The resolution status of these matters will be reviewed in 2006-07.
Information Technology Reviews in Progress
Land Services Group - Land Ownership and Tenure System

The Land Ownership and Tenure System (LOTS) primarily records land information. Information from LOTS is
provided to government and non-government users either by Internet access, by dial up/direct connection
(LOTS enquiries) or over the counter.

In June 2006, Audit commenced a review of key aspects of the LOTS system. The review scope covers the
access security and integrity arrangements for the LOTS system and computer processing environment, key
aspects of the change management process, and verification of the adequacy of backup of software and data
for the LOTS system. It also includes consideration of the interfaces with some other entities and systems,
the flow of data, and reconciliations between certain systems and overall processing.

At the time of preparation of this Report Audit was finalising the review phase of the audit process. Any
matters of consequence arising out of the completion of the audit will be the subject of comment in a
subsequent Report to Parliament.

EDS (Australia) Managed Computing Facilities

A number of mainframe and mid-range computing environments are located at EDS (Australia) Limited (EDS)
processing bureau at Glenside. These computers process major systems in many areas of government.

DAIS is the agency responsible for the overall contract management of these arrangements with EDS.

Audit has an ongoing review program for the controls over the management of agency systems and computer
processing environments at the EDS Glenside site.

In July 2006, Audit commenced reviews of two specific computer processing environments at EDS Glenside.
The first environment relates to the Department of Education and Children’s Services Human Resources
Management System. The second environment relates to the Department for Families and Communities’
SysH mainframe partition which principally supports the housing applications of the South Australian Housing
Trust and the Financial Management System of the Department for Families and Communities.

At the time of preparation of this Report Audit was finalising the review phase of the audit process. Any
matters of consequence arising out of the completion of the audit will be the subject of comment in a
subsequent Report to Parliament.

State Procurement Changes
State Procurement Board

The State Procurement Act 2004 (the Act) was proclaimed on 15 September 2005 to come into operation on
4 QOctober 2005. The Act also repealed the State Supply Act 1985. The new act resulted from the
Government’s *10 Point Plan for Honesty and Accountability in Government’, which included the commitment
to modernise the State Supply Act 1985. The Act establishes the State Procurement Board (the Board) and
states it is the same body corporate as the State Supply Board established under State Supply Act 1985. New
Board members were appointed with the commencement of the Act.
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Under the Act the Chief Executive of DAIS (or his nominee) is the presiding member. The Contract Services
business unit of DAIS provides the administrative and operational resources to support the operation of the
Board.

The main function of the Board under the Act is ‘to facilitate strategic procurement by public authorities by
setting the strategic direction of procurement practices across government’ whereas the main function under
the previous State Supply Act 1985 was to ‘undertake, make arrangements for or control the supply
operations of public authorities’. The aim of the change was for the Board to focus more on setting the
strategic direction of procurement across Government rather than the approval of individual transactions. Also
refer the discussion under the item State Procurement Reform below.

State Procurement Reform

To bring into effect the State Procurement Act 2004, in June 2005, Cabinet approved the implementation of a
procurement reform strategy in two phases. It was envisaged that, by December 2006, agencies will be able
to undertake the majority of their procurements within their own delegations with the State Procurement
Board (the Board) undertaking a mainly oversight and review role.

Stage one of the program included the promulgation of new procurement policies and guidelines and approval
of increased procurement authorities (up to $11 million). Agencies were required to submit an application to
the Board for an increased procurement delegation, which included a self assessment of procurement
capabilities and an action plan to address any short fall in capabilities against the self-assessment standards
established. The Board undertook a due diligence review of each application to ensure that it reflected the
operations of the agency. Each Chief Executive was required to present and discuss their agency’s capability
to the Board before an increased delegation was provided.

Stage two of the program includes a review of stage one reforms, consideration of further proposed reforms
and the development of a submission to cabinet on future reform. At the time of the preparation of this
report an independent review of stage one of the procurement reform strategy was underway. This review is
planned to inform the priorities of stage two of the reform strategy.

In line with the reform strategy, the Board’s functions include ‘to investigate and keep under review levels of
compliance with the Boards procurement policies, principles, guidelines, standards and directions’. The Board
advised existing policies require annual certification by Chief Executives that agencies comply with the Board’s
policies and designated delegations. Further the Board advised that additional planned measures include
developing a framework for determining the extent of further work required to monitor compliance with Board
policies by public authorities and reviewing the current reporting policy to include processes used by public
authorities to monitor compliance with Board policies.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT

Highlights of Financial Report

2006 2005 Percentage
$'million $'million Change
INCOME
Fees and charges 422 403 5
Appropriation for operating purposes 167 155 8
Other Income 9 19 (53)
Total Revenue 598 577 4
EXPENSES
Employee expenses 150 131 15
Supplies and Services 324 327 (1)
Depreciation and Amortisation 65 67 (3)
Other expenses 49 46 (7)
Total expenses 588 571 3
Result before restructure and tax 10 6 67
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2006 2005 Percentage

$'million $’'million Change
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 86 51 69
ASSETS
Current Assets 264 237 11
Non-Current Assets 799 783
Total Assets 1 063 1020 4
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 202 218 7
Non-Current Liabilities 181 153 18
Total Liabilities 383 371 3
EQUITY 680 649 5

Income Statement
Revenues

The main source of revenue for the Department is from goods and services provided to other Government
agencies and appropriation.

A structural analysis of these revenues (excluding revenues from Government) for the two years to 2006 is
presented in the following chart.

500
400
$89M $90M
)]
S 300 $51M $54M
=
@ 200 |
$20M $37M
100 sooH $77M
AV $64M
O 1
2005 2006

O Other

O1IT and Telecommunication
B Rental Income

B Service Provision

O Fleet Hire

O Maintenance Services

The chart highlights the changes in the revenue streams, with the most significant being:

. maintenance services decreased by $23 million in 2006 due mainly to additional Government funding
for client agencies in 2005 for school and other public buildings maintenance;

. fleet hire increased by $8 million due mainly to additional vehicles being required by client agencies
and increased hire rates;

. service provision fees increased due mainly to the transfer of Transport SA Customer Service Centres
and occupational health and safety functions to the Department (refer to Notes 2.2 and 8).
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Expenses

For the two years to 2006, a structural analysis of the main operating expense items is shown in the following
chart.
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Other includes contractors, borrowing, motor vehicle, grants, warehouse goods and accommodation
expenses.

The main factors contributing to the increase in expenses are:

. employee expenses increased by $19 million, due mainly to the transfer of staff to the Department
(refer Notes 2.2 and 8);
. repairs and maintenance decreased by $12 million, due mainly to additional work undertaken for

client agencies in 2005 (refer to comments under revenues).

The increase in other expenses of $18 million is due mainly to a combination of:

. the donation of the Southern Sports Complex to the South Adelaide Football Club of $6 million
in 2006;

. the impairment expense of fleet assets of $11 million in 2006, arising from reduction in residual
(resale) value of vehicles;

. increase in contractors expense of $7 million due mainly to internal information technology projects;

. increase in motor vehicle expenses of $4 million due mainly to increased fuel costs;

. decrease in borrowing costs of $4 million due to a reduction of loans in late 2005;

. decrease of $6 million in the recreational sport grant programs.

Net Cost of Services

The following chart shows the operating revenues, operating expenses and net cost of services for the two
years to 2006.
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Balance Sheet

For the two years to 2006, a structural analysis of assets and liabilities is shown in the following chart.
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Cash

The Department holds significant cash, which in 2006 amounted to $59 million ($70 million), representing
22 percent (30 percent) of total current assets. The decrease in cash is discussed under the Cash Flow
Statement analysis below.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is the most significant item in the Balance Sheet. In 2006 this item amounted
to $848 million ($821 million), and 80 percent of total assets. Major asset holdings at 30 June 2006 were:
Commercial properties $209 million; Residential Properties $211 million; Motor Vehicles $194 million;
Sporting Stadia and Recreational Facilities $126 million; and the Government Radio Network $63 million.
Liabilities

Total liabilities amounted to $383 million of which $244 million are borrowings and $77 million are payables.

Cash Flow Statement

The following table summarises the net cash flows for the two years to 2006.

2006 2005
Net Cash Flows $'million $'million
Operations 86 51
Investing (106) (111)
Financing 9 (31)
Change In Cash (11) (91)
Cash At 30 June 59 70

The Department’s cash flows from its operations have increased by $35 million due mainly to increased

appropriation and fees and charges.

Investing activities included purchases of property, plant and equipment of $180 million related mainly to the
purchase of vehicles and a commercial property and proceeds primarily from the sale of vehicles.

Financing activities included dividend to Government of $17 million ($15 million), and repayment of
borrowings of $118 million ($119 million). In addition new borrowings were $136 million ($117 million).
These new borrowings were used mainly to purchase property plant and equipment (mostly motor vehicles).
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Sub program Financial Analysis

The tables below indicate that, while some sub programs generate large revenue flows (eg Commercial
Property Management, Building Services and Light Motor Vehicle Fleet) they also have matching expenses.

Note 28 to the financial statements provides a description/objective and financial details of the sub programs
of the Department.

Total Income (excluding appropriation and grants) by Sub program

2006 2005
Sub program $'million $'million
SafeWork SA 13 8
Recreation and Sport 4 3
Building Services 81 96
Commercial Property Management 116 110
Information and Communication Technology Services 63 61
Land Services 26 20
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet 84 78
Shared Corporate Services 29 18
Intra-Agency Services 3 8
Other Total 57 49
Inter-program eliminations (50) (35)
Total 426 416
Total Expenses by Sub program

2006 2005
Sub program $'million $'million
SafeWork SA 30 22
Recreation and Sport 40 46
Building Services 87 97
Commercial Property Management 106 105
Information and Communication Technology Services 77 84
Land Services 38 39
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet 96 78
Shared Corporate Services 37 32
Intra-Agency Services 31 18
Other Total 96 85
Inter-program eliminations (50) (35)
Total 588 571
Net Cost of Providing Services by Sub program

2006 2005
Sub program $'million $'million
SafeWork SA 17 14
Recreation and Sport 36 43
Building Services 6 1
Commercial Property Management (10) (5)
Information and Communication Technology Services 14 23
Land Services 12 19
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet 12 -
Shared Corporate Services 8 14
Intra-Agency Services 28 10
Other Total 39 36
Total 162 155
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Major factors affecting sub program activity for the year were:

SafeWork: increased activity reflects the transfer of functions and staff from WorkCover (refer Notes
2.2 and Note 9);

Office of Recreation and Sport: decrease in expenditure is due mainly to a reduction in the grants
expenditure;

Building Services: decreased in activity is due mainly to extra Government funding in 2005 for school
and other public buildings maintenance;

Commercial Properties Management: increase in income is due mainly to increases in rental income
rates;

Information Technology and Information Services: decreased expenditure due to additional software
licence purchases for across the Government use in 2005;

Land Services: increased income is due mainly to increased transaction activity;

Light Motor Vehicle Fleet: increase in income is due mainly to increases in the fleet size and hire
rates. The increase in expenses is due mainly to increases in fuel costs and depreciation, and the
impairment of fleet assets (refer above).

Shared Corporate Services: increase is due mainly to internal information technology projects and
changed internal charging regime.

Administered Items

The Department for Administrative and Information services administers several funds and activities on behalf
of Government. Details of these are provided in the Administered Items financial statements and related

notes.

Total administered income was $366 million ($261 million) and total administered expenses amounted to
$362 million ($250 million). The main administered activities were:

Service SA monies received on behalf of (and passed on to) other agencies amounting to $216 million
($55 million). The increase in activity is due to the transfer of Transport SA Customer Service Centre
to the Department on 1 July 2005 - refer to Note 2.2 of the Department’s financial statements;

collecting regulatory fees relating to land administration and forwarding these fees to Consolidated
Account amounting to $103 million ($98 million);

holding funds on behalf of the State Procurement Board for the purchase and sale of gaming
machines. Total activity for the year was $22 million ($23 million).
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
EXPENSES: Note $'000 $'000
Employee expenses 5 149 530 131 130
Supplies and services 5.2 324 024 326 588
Depreciation and amortisation 5.3 64 577 67 267
Grants and subsidies 5.4 13 645 20 119
Borrowing costs 13 809 17 678
Other expenses 5.5 22 231 8 395
Total Expenses 587 816 571177
INCOME:
Fees and charges 7.1 421 746 403 249
Interest 7.2 2 299 8 023
Other income 7.3 1788 4 653
Total Income 425 833 415 925
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES 161 983 155 252
REVENUES FROM SA GOVERNMENT 7.4 171 516 161 641
NET RESULT BEFORE RESTRUCTURE 9 533 6 389
(Decrease) Increase in net assets due to administrative restructure 8 (934) (8 913)
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE 8 599 (2 524)
Income tax equivalent 2758 3376
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE AND TAX 5841 (5900)

NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE AND TAX IS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2006

2006 2005
CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 9 59 307 69 815
Receivables 10 84 943 76 122
Inventories 11 2484 2071
Property, plant and equipment 16 96 689 70 248
Other current assets 17 7 900 10 376
251 323 228 632
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 13 12 525 8 590
Total Current Assets 263 848 237 222
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Financial assets 12 5332 5738
Property, plant and equipment 16 751 506 750 839
Capital works in progress 15 30 892 22 319
Intangible assets 14 11 024 2 800
Other non-current assets 17 973 1 346
Total Non-Current Assets 799 727 783 042
Total Assets 1 063 575 1 020 264
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 18 73 702 74 014
Short-term borrowings 19 101 070 117 847
Short-term employee benefits 20 14 578 12 791
Short-term provisions 21 1863 3 865
Other current liabilities 22 7 958 7 364
199 171 215 881
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets
classified as held for sale 2 860 2 215
Total Current Liabilities 202 031 218 096
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 18 3 057 3 348
Long-term borrowings 19 142 947 117 631
Long-term employee benefits 20 32 394 29 625
Long-term provisions 21 2 865 2 691
Total Non-Current Liabilities 181 263 153 295
Total Liabilities 383 294 371 391
NET ASSETS 680 281 648 873
EQUITY:
Contributed capital 23.1 217 710 209 710
Reserves 23.3 311 490 284 401
Retained earnings 23.2 146 605 153 006
675 805 647 117
Amounts recognised directly in equity relating to non-current
assets classified as held for sale 23.4 4 476 1756
TOTAL EQUITY 680 281 648 873

THE TOTAL EQUITY IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER
Commitments 25,26
Contingent Liabilities 29
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005

Note $'000 $'000

Total Equity at 1 July 23 648 873 605 626
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings recognised directly in equity 34 964 77 532
Net Result after Restructure and Tax for the Year 5 841 (5 900)
Total Recognised Income/Expense for the Year 40 805 71 632
Equity contribution from SA Government 8 000 10 455
Repayment of equity contribution to SA Government - (23 636)
Dividend to SA Government (17 397) (15 204)
Net transactions with SA Government as owner (9 397) (28 385)
Total Equity at 30 June 680 281 648 873

87



Administrative and Information Services

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Employee payments
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Borrowing costs
GST payments on purchases
GST remitted to ATO
Construction work payments
Departmental restructuring
Cash used in Operating Activities
CASH INFLOWS:
Fees and charges
Receipts from Commonwealth
Construction work reimbursement
Interest received
GST receipts on receivables
GST input tax credits
Cash generated from Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM SA GOVERNMENT:
Receipts from SA Government
Payments to SA Government
Cash generated from SA Government
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Cash used in Investing Activities
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from repayment of leased assets
Cash generated from Investing Activities
Net Cash used in Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Dividends to Government
Return of equity
Repayment of borrowings
Cash used in Financing Activities
CASH INFLOWS:

Capital contributions from Government (not operations)

Proceeds from borrowings
Increase prepayment of MV Fleet operating expenses
Cash generated from Financing Activities

Net Cash provided by (used in) Financing Activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

Note

24(b)

24(a)

2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)
$'000 $'000
(152 467) (134 600)
(484 785) (475 958)
(15 145) (20 350)
(14 214) (17 836)
(75 517) (75 716)
(2 857) (270)
(63 494) (89 974)
(646) (9 383)
(809 125) (824 086)
575 646 555 173
809 672

60 185 73 965
2791 8 425

69 773 64 392

8 602 8 668
717 806 711 295
186 513 168 454
(8 935) (5 018)
177 578 163 436
86 259 50 645
(179 901) (145 292)
(179 901) (145 292)
74 157 33 359

- 479

74 157 33 838
(105 744) (111 454)
(17 397) (15 204)
- (23 619)

(117 917) (119 400)
(135 314) (158 223)
8 000 10 439
136 292 117 034

- 23

144 292 127 496
8 978 (30 727)

(10 507) (91 536)
69 815 161 351
59 307 69 815
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Role of the Department

Strategic Context

The Department for Administrative and Information Services (DAIS) performs a broad range of responsibilities on
behalf of the state government that deliver economic and social benefits to other state government agencies,
industry and the general community through the following programs:

Industrial Relations

Employee Advocacy

Recreation Sport and Racing

Building Management

Contract and procurement Services

Information and Communication Technology Services
Community Services

Support Services to Government, and

Intra Agency Support Services

These support the delivery of the Government's broader strategic priorities, such as community services, project
management, contract management, e-business, shared services and management of information technology and
government assets.

DAIS provides direct support to the Minister for Administrative Services, the Minister for Industrial Relations, and
the Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing. In addition to the Ministers, DAIS' key stakeholders include the
Government of South Australia, government agencies, key industry groups, government boards, committees and
members of the public.

Governance Arrangements

The Departmental Executive Group oversees the Department’s operations. The group is chaired by the Chief
Executive and comprises eight Executive Directors who are responsible for one or more programs or sub-programs
and the Chief Financial Officer. This group meets on a weekly basis to discuss strategic, policy, management and
administrative matters of relevance to the Department.

The principal registered office is Level 2, Wakefield House, 30 Wakefield Street, Adelaide SA 5000. Telephone
number is 08 8226 5000.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Accounting
Accounting Standards
The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with:

. Treasurer's Instructions (TI) and Accounting Policy Statements (APS) promulgated under the
provision of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987,
. applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS).

These Financial Statements are the first statements to be prepared in accordance with Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). AASB 1 First-time Adoption of
Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied in preparing these
statements. Previous Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Australian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (AGAAP).

The Reconciliation explaining the transition to AIFRS as at 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005 are at Note 4.

The Department's Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been
prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost convention, except for certain assets
that were valued in accordance with the valuation policy applicable. The Cash Flow Statement has been
prepared on a cash basis.

Reporting Period
The financial report has been prepared for the period 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2006. It is based on a
12 month operating cycle and presented in Australian currency.

Comparative Information
The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific APS or AAS have required a change.

Note 4 provides a detailed analysis of comparative amounts that have been reclassified as a result of
harmonisation with AIFRS.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Reporting Entity
The Department for Administrative and Information Services produces both Departmental and Administered
financial statements:

o The Departmental financial statements include the use of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
controlled or incurred by the Department in its own right.
o The Administered financial statements include the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which

the Department administers on behalf of the SA Government but does not control.

Transferred Functions
On 1 July 2005 the Office for Infrastructure Development was transferred to the Department for Transport,
Energy and Infrastructure (Gazette date of 18 April 2005).

On 1 July 2005, the Department, through its business unit Service SA assumed responsibility for the
operation of Transport SA Customer Service Centres located at Mt Gambier, Naracoorte, Berri, Kadina,
Murray Bridge, Port Pirie, Adelaide CBD (North Terrace) and the Transport SA Call Centre. The expansion
strategy was approved by Cabinet on 7 March 2005 and is in line with the South Australian Strategic Plan
priority to extend Service SA across the State. This activity is shown as an Administered Item (refer Note
A2.1).

On 24 October 2005 the Minster for Industrial Relations announced that Workplace Services, a business unit
of the Department and the Government’s existing occupational health and safety agency would be known as
SafeWork SA. It's primary role is to promote and encourage safe, fair and productive working lives in
South Australia by working with employers, employees, unions and industry representatives.

Taxation Equivalents

The activities of the Department are exempt from Commonwealth income tax but subject to other taxes
such as fringe benefits tax, payroll tax, goods and services tax and other State and Local Government
taxes.

In accordance with the National Competition Policy principles, several business units engage in trading
activities in competition with private sector enterprises and are liable for equivalent tax payments to the
South Australian Government.

Income Taxation Equivalents are required to be paid by the following business units of the Department:

Fleet SA

Building Management

Building Maintenance

SA Government Employee Residential Properties
SA Government Commercial Properties.
Government Supplies Warehouse (Supply SA)

In relation to Income taxation equivalents the 'Accounting Profits' model is applied. Under the Accounting
Profits Model, income tax expense is calculated separately for each business unit by applying the income
tax rate (currently 30 percent) to the individual business unit's accounting profit for the year.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
In accordance with the requirements of Interpretation 1031 Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax
(GST) revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except that:

. the amount of GST incurred by the Department as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the
Australian Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of
an item of expense;

. receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net GST due from the Australian Taxation Office has been recognised as a receivable in the Balance
Sheet. The Department prepares a Business Activity Statement on behalf of its administered entities under
the grouping provisions of the GST legislation. Under these provisions, the Department is liable for the
payments and entitled to the receipt of GST. As such the GST applicable to these entities forms part of the
Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement of the Department.

Income and Expenses

Income and Expenses are recognised in the Department’s Income Statement when and only when it is
probable that the flow of economic benefits to or from the Department has occurred and can be reliably
measured.

Income and Expenses have been classified according to their nature in accordance with Accounting Policy
Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework APS 3.5 and have not been offset unless
required or permitted by a specific accounting standard.

Fees and Charges

The Department derives the majority of its revenue from fees and commissions for services rendered to
other State Government Agencies on a cost recovery basis.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11
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Supplies and Services
The majority of expenditure incurred is associated with the Department's service provision function to other
State Government Agencies.

Grants and Subsidies

Grants, subsidies and transfers are amounts provided by the Department, to entities for general assistance
or for a particular purpose. They may be for capital or recurrent purposes and the name or category
reflects the use of the grant. They are usually subject to terms and conditions set out in the contract,
correspondence, or by legislation.

Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government

Appropriation

Appropriations for program funding are recognised as revenues when the Department obtains control over
the funds. Control over appropriations is normally obtained upon their receipt and are accounted for in
accordance with Treasurer's Instruction 3 Appropriation.

Where money has been appropriated in the form of an equity contribution, the Treasurer has acquired a
financial interest in the net assets of the Department and it is recorded as contributed capital.

Grants and Transfers
Grants and transfers represent revenues collected on behalf of or passed on from another SA Government
agencies for funding purposes.

Current and Non-Current Items

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. The Department has a
clearly identifiable operating cycle of 12 months. Therefore, the assets and liabilities that will be realised as
part of the normal operating cycle are classified as current assets or current liabilities. All other assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash at bank and deposits at call that are
readily converted to cash and are used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis. Cash is
measured at nominal value.

Cash Alignment Policy

During 2004-05 an amount of $110.8 million in surplus working cash was returned to the Consolidated
Account as part of the Government’s Cash Alignment Policy. In accordance with the provisions of the policy,
the Department nominated for the amount to be applied as follows:

. Reduction in debt $87.2 million
. Return of Equity $23.6 million
Receivables

Receivables include amounts receivable from trade and accruals.

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of selling goods and services to other agencies and to the
public. Trade receivables are generally receivable within 30 days after the issue of an invoice and or the
goods/services have been provided under a contractual arrangement.

A provision is raised for any doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at balance date.
Bad debts are written off in the period in which they are identified and deemed irrecoverable.

Loan receivables — In accordance with Accounting Policy Statements contained in Accounting Policy
Framework IV Financial Asset and Liability Framework, the Department measures financial assets and loans
at historical cost, except for interest free loans, which are measured at the present value of expected
repayments.

Finance lease receivable — The Department has entered into a nhumber of finance lease arrangements for
the purpose of providing housing accommodation for government agencies. These leases have been
brought to account in the Balance Sheet and accounted for in accordance with AASB 117 Leases.

Inventories

Inventories are mainly general Stock on Hand (other than those held for distribution at no or nominal
consideration) held in the government supplies warehouse (Supply SA) and are valued at the lower of
average cost or net realisable value, using the average weighted cost method.

The amount of any inventory write-down to net realisable value/replacement cost or inventory losses are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurred. Any write-down reversals are
recognised as an expense reduction.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than
continuing use. An impairment loss of $0.6 million has been recognised on the initial written down value of
motor vehicle prior to the transfer to assets held for sale. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
not depreciated or amortised.
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2.12

2.13

Project/Contract Management and Associated Agency Relationships
The Department acts as agent on behalf of other SA Government agencies for the provision of project and
contract management services.

The Department acts as project manager for the construction of major capital works as well as minor and
maintenance works (facilities management contract). Profits on contracts are brought to account on the
percentage of completion basis, as determined by the current engineering estimates. Where losses are
foreseeable, such losses are provided in full based on current engineering estimates. The total volume of
the projects managed during the year is:

. Major works $101.7 million ($119.7 million)
. Facilities management $97.2 million ($111.3 million)

Work in progress is stated at cost plus profit recognised to date less progress billings to the agencies.
Excess of progress billings against cost plus profit is disclosed as other liabilities.

The Department acts as contract manager for the EDS contract. The total value of contracts managed
during the year was $74.5 million ($74.1 million).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Acquisition and Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at cost in the Balance Sheet except for items costing
less than $10 000, which are expensed in the year of acquisition. Where acquired for no value, or minimal
value, non-current assets are recorded at their fair value in the Balance Sheet. If acquired as part of a
restructuring of administrative arrangements, the assets are recorded at the amount recorded by the
transferor prior to transfer.

Revaluations in General

In accordance with the requirements of AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and Accounting Policy
Framework III Asset Accounting Framework, all non-current tangible assets, subsequent to initial
recognition, are carried at valuation. Revaluations have been undertaken for all assets that satisfy
APSs 2.15 and 3.3 revaluation thresholds in accordance with fair value methodology. The revaluation
thresholds require a non-current asset or class of non-current assets to be re-valued when the fair value at
the time of acquisition is greater than $1 million and has an estimated useful life greater than 3 years.
Under fair value methodology, the assets are valued at the amount for which an asset could be exchanged
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Valuation Methodology - Property, Plant and Equipment

. Recreation, Sporting and Stadia Infrastructure is revalued to fair value at least every three years.
The latest independent valuations were made at 30 June 2005.

. Commercial Properties are revalued to fair value every two years.

. Residential Properties, inclusive of fit outs, are revalued to fair value annually using estimated

values provided by the Valuer-General and then adjusted by management for the average
gains/losses experienced over an average of the previous four years. The adjustment rate used for
the reporting period is an increase of 10.2 percent (increase of 4.9 percent in 2004-05).

. Office Fit outs are valued at cost.

. Plant and Equipment is brought to account at cost. PABX equipment is independently revalued to
fair value. Independent valuations were obtained as at 30 June 2005.

. Motor Vehicles owned by the Department are brought to account at cost.

. Government Radio Network assets were independently revalued to fair value as at 30 June 2005.

Impairment

All non-current tangible and intangible assets are tested for indication of impairment at each reporting date.
Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. An amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. Impairment is
generally limited to where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated or where the replacement cost
is falling.

For revalued assets an impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation reserve.

Disposal

Income (Loss) from disposal of property, plant and equipment, including re-valued assets, is determined as
the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the proceeds from
disposal. When revalued assets are sold, the revaluation increments are transferred to retained earnings in
accordance with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework APS 3.11.

Depreciation and Amortisation

All non-current assets, having a limited useful life, are depreciated/amortised using the straight-line method
over their useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their service potential, commencing
from the time the asset is held ready for use.

The useful lives of all major assets held by the Department are reassessed on an annual basis, while land is
not depreciated.
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Depreciation and Amortisation (continued)
The following range of years are generally used for the life of assets:

Buildings and Fitouts: Years
Recreation, sporting and stadia infrastructure 3-72
Commercial and heritage properties 40
Residential properties 66
Office fit outs 3-10

Plant and equipment:

Computers 3-5
PABX 3-7
Transmission equipment 5-20
State core net 3-5
Office equipment 5
Sporting equipment 2-10
Scientific equipment 3-10
Other equipment 3-10

Motor vehicles 2-4

Intangibles 5

Government radio network:

Buildings and towers/masts 30-40
Data and voice network equipment 10-15
Other plant and equipment 3-10

Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance and is measured at
cost. The intangible assets of the Department are primarily software.

The acquisition of or internal development of software is capitalised when the expenditure meets the
definition and recognition criteria of an intangible asset outlined in AASB 138 Intangible Assets and when
the amount of expenditure is greater than or equal to $10 000, in accordance with Accounting Policy
Framework III Asset Accounting Framework paragraph APS 2.15. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful life.

Costs associated with researching or maintaining the software are expensed in accordance with AASB 138
and Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework APS 12.

Payables
Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received that are unpaid at the end of the
reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received relating to the Department’s normal
operations.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period, which are
unpaid at balance date and where an invoice has not been received.

All payables are measured at their nominal amount and are normally settled within 30 days in accordance
with TI 11 Payment of Creditors’ Accounts after the Department receives an invoice.

Employment on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave.

The Department makes contributions to several superannuation schemes operated by the State
Government. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no liability for
payments to beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the respective superannuation schemes. The only
liability outstanding at balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid to the South
Australian Superannuation Board.

Client Advances

Prior to 2004-05, the Department had entered into advance payment arrangements with specific agencies
for minor and major works undertaken on their behalf. At 30 June 2006 the balance has all been cleared to
$nil ($1.343 million).

Incentives Monies Owing

The Department's Commercial Property Management program receives incentive payments from building
owners that are applied towards the office fit out costs on behalf of other agencies. The amounts received
are initially recorded in the balance sheet until completion with any unspent amounts transferred to the
Income Statement as revenues or expenses. The balance of monies unspent on open fit out works at the
end of the financial year is included as lease incentive owing in the Balance Sheet.

EDS Centre Incentives

During the 1998-99 to 2001-02 financial years monies were receipted into the Department’s operating
account on behalf of the Minister for Administrative Services for the management and administration of the
design and construction of the EDS fit out works. Approval is required from the Minister before these
monies can be committed for expenditure in relation to fit out works in the EDS Centre.

93



Administrative and Information Services

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Income Received in Advance
Income received in advance has been recognised where monies have been received but work has not been
performed as at 30 June 2006.

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Borrowings are recognised when issued at the amount of the net proceeds received and carried at cost less
any repayments until the loan is settled.

Light Motor Vehicles - Loan Arrangements with SAFA

Arrangements for the ongoing acquisition of motor vehicles had been approved with the South Australian
Financing Authority since 2003. Funding has been provided through a loan facility direct to Fleet SA,
through the Minister for Administrative Services. The vehicles purchases are financed on a credit foncier
basis of three year fixed periods from October 2005 with balances of loans maturing in either two or three
years. During the reporting period an amount of $136.3 million ($117.5 million) was borrowed.

Other Loans
This represents loans underwritten by the Department as guarantor to external organisations. These are
recognised as liabilities because the Department is servicing the interest payments and loan repayments.

Employee Benefits
These benefits accrue for employees as a result of services provided up to the reporting date that remain
unpaid.

No provision has been made for sick leave as sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave taken in
future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement to sick leave.

The liability for salary and wages is measured as the amount unpaid at reporting date at remuneration rates
current at reporting date. The annual leave liability is expected to be payable within 12 months and is
measured at the nominal amount expected to be paid.

The liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed seven years of service as
advised in Accounting Policy Framework IV Financial Asset and Liability Framework. An actuarial
assessment of long service leave undertaken by the Department of Treasury and Finance based on a
significant sample of employees throughout the South Australian public sector determined that the liability
measured using the short hand method was not materially different from the liability measured using the
present value of expected future payments. This calculation is consistent with the Department's experience
of employee retention and leave taken.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Department has a present legal, equitable or constructive obligation to
make a future sacrifice of economic benefits as a result of a past transaction or event, and it is probable
that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will arise and a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
However the amount or timing of the present obligation is uncertain.

Workers Compensation
The Department is responsible for all Workers Compensation with an actuarial estimate of the outstanding
liability as at 30 June 2006 provided by a consulting actuary through the Public Sector Injury Prevention
and Management Unit.

The Department'’s liability of $4 million reflects an apportionment of the whole-of-government estimate of
Workers Compensation liability according to the Public Sector Injury Prevention and Management Unit
experience of claim numbers and payments over the period 1 July 1987 to 30 June 2006. A separate
valuation of the liabilities of this Department has not been undertaken.

The whole-of-government estimate can be found in a report prepared by Taylor Fry Consulting Actuaries,
dated 24 July 2006, and submitted to the Public Sector Injury Prevention and Management Unit of the
Department.

This report conforms to WorkCover Guidelines for Actuaries, AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and Professional Standard PS 300 Actuarial Reports and Advice on General Insurance
Technical Liabilities, of the Institute of Actuaries of Australia.

Restructuring Costs

The Department had established a provision for restructuring costs arising from an inter-Departmental
transfer of land administration and infrastructure systems from the Department of Environment and
Heritage (DEH) in 2003-04 to recognise the financial effect of implementing the LASAFT plan, which has
been completed in 2005-06 and the remaining provision has been reversed.

Procurement of Testing Services - Removal of Underground Fuel Tanks and Site Remediation

A provision of $0.764 million was established for the procurement of testing services (relating to the costs
associated with the removal of underground fuel tanks previously owned by Mobil Australia including the
remediation of sites). The procurement specifically includes the provision of assessment, drilling and
analytical services.
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Leases

The Department has made a distinction between finance leases and operating leases in accordance with
AASB 117. Finance leases effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially all risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of leased non-current assets. In operating leases, the lessor effectively
retains all such risks and benefits.

The Department as Lessee

(a)

(b)

Operating Leases

The Department’s operating leases include office accommodation and state government car parking
facilities. These operating lease payments are expensed in the period they are incurred, and are
representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets.

Numerous lease arrangements have been entered into with private sector organisations for office
accommodation in which the terms range from monthly to 10 years. Generally leases are for a fixed
term. Terms for renewal generally range from monthly up to 5 years.

The operating lease in relation to state government car parking facilities remains in a hold over
period while negotiations are conducted for the future provision of these facilities.

Finance Leases

The Department has entered into finance leases. The leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of minimum lease payments at the beginning of the lease term and a liability recognised at the same
time and for the same amount. The discount rate used is the interest rate implicit in the lease term.
Leased assets are amortised over the period of the lease term. Minimum lease payments are
allocated between interest expense and reduction of the lease liability, according to the interest rate
implicit in the lease. Lease liabilities are classified as both current and non-current.

The Department expenses contingent rental payments in the reporting period in which they are
incurred, similar to interest expenses. Contingent rentals arise from a movement in the base lease
payment as a result of factors occurring subsequent to the inception of the lease. Increases or
decreases in lease payments arising from subsequent changes to factors after the inception of the
lease are excluded from the minimum lease payments.

(i) Light Motor Vehicles - Arrangements with CBA
In May 1996, the Government sold and leased back its light motor vehicle fleet through an
arrangement managed by the Commonwealth Bank of Australia (CBA). The term of the facility
was for a 15-year period, which included a 7-year wind down.

In April 2003 a voluntary termination effective over a 24-month period from 10 July 2003 to
10 July 2005 was agreed ahead of the contemplated 2011 expiry.

On 11 July 2005, outstanding principal of $13.6 million for 636 motor vehicles was fully paid.

(ii) Plant and Equipment
The Department has progressively taken up numerous leases with EDS for information
technology computer hardware and associated software. The lease terms are generally three or
five years and are non-cancellable. At the end of the lease term, ownership is transferred to
the Department upon payment of a nominal sum.

(iii) Accommodation Leases
The Department is responsible for the finance lease in relation to office accommodation for the
Roma Mitchell House, North Terrace. The lease, which commenced in July 1987, is for a term of
forty years with ownership transferring on payment of a nominal sum at the end of the period
and includes a halfway buy-out option at 1 July 2007.

Under the lease arrangements, a contingent rental is paid for the building based on the Adelaide
Consumer Price Index. Contingent rental payments for 2005-06 were $1.51 million
($1.44 million).

The Department as Lessor

(@)

(b)

Operating Leases

The Department leases motor vehicles to the SA Government and space in commercial property to
external parties through operating leases. Income from operating leases is recognised as rental
income in the period incurred, and is representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the
leased assets.

Finance Leases

The Department provides housing services through mortgaging the owned residential properties to
country employees of the SA Government. The Department recognises assets held under finance
lease in the Balance Sheet and presents them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. Finance lease income is recognised based on the periodic rate of return on
the lessor’s net investment in the finance lease. Lease payments are applied against the gross
investment in the lease to reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income.
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3.

Financial Risk Management

The Department has significant non-interest bearing assets (mainly receivables) and liabilities (mainly payables)
and interest bearing assets (cash) and liabilities (mainly borrowing from the SA Government) that bear certain
interest-rate risk (Note 27). The Department’s exposure to market risk and cash flow risk is minimal.

The Department has no significant credit risk. The financial assets are generally the carrying amount, net of any
provision of doubtful debts. The Department has policies and procedures in place to ensure that transactions occur
with appropriate credit history.

In relation to liquidity/funding risk, the continued existence of the Department in its present form, and with its
present programs, is dependent on Government policy and on continuing appropriation by Parliament for the
Department’s administration programs.

Changes in Accounting Policy

Explanation of transition to Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(AIFRS)

The Department has adopted the AIFRS for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006 and following is its
impact.

4.1 (a) Reconciliation of Equity Reported under previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to
Equity under AIFRS

01.07.2004 30.06.2005
Previous Previous
AGAAP Adjustments AIFRS AGAAP Adjustments AIFRS
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Current Assets b,c 245 957 61 830 307 787 158 384 78 838 237 222
Non-Current Assets a,b,c 751 123 (78 810) 672 313 879 505 (96 463) 783 042
Current Liabilities b 121 739 - 121 739 218 096 - 218 096
Non-Current Liabilities 252 735 - 252 735 153 295 - 153 295
Equity:

Contributed capital 222 891 - 222 891 209 710 - 209 710
Retained earnings 182 830 - 182 830 158 132 - 158 132
(a) Intangible assets a - (5 889) (5 889) - (1337) (1337)
(b) Discounted loan d - (957) (957) - - -
(c) Correction of errors e - (3 789) (3 789) - (3 789) (3 789)
Asset revaluation reserve b,e 210 572 (7 613) 202 959 292 343 (13 767) 278 576
Other reserves e 6 313 1268 7 581 6 313 1268 7 581
Total Equity 622 606 (16 980) 605 626 666 498 (17 625) 648 873
Net Result after Restructure - - - (11 409) 5 509 (5900)

4.1 (b) Reconciliation of Profit for the year ended 30 June 2005

Previous

AGAAP Adjustments AIFRS
Expenses: Note $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee benefits costs 131 130 - 131 130
Supplies and services b,f 405 169 (78 581) 326 588
Depreciation and amortisation expense b 67 734 (467) 67 267
Grants and subsidies f 25914 (5 795) 20 119
Borrowing costs d 18 635 (957) 17 678
Other expenses 8 395 - 8 395
Total Income f (490 421) 74 496 (415 925)
Net Cost of Providing Services 166 556 (11 304) 155 252
Revenues from SA Government f (167 436) 5795 (161 641)
(Decrease) in net assets due to administrative restructure 8913 - 8913
Income tax equivalent 3376 - 3376
Net Result after Restructure and Tax (11 409) 5509 (5900)

The adoption of AIFRS has the following adjustments to the Income Statement or Balance Sheet but no
adjustment in Cash Flow Statement.

(a) AASB 138 Intangible Assets
The Department no longer capitalises research costs in relation to research and development
projects.

(i) 1 July 2004
The Department had de-recognised $5.889 million research costs from its Capital WIP and
Property, Plant and Equipment. Retained earnings were decreased by the same amount, of
which $4.117 million was expensed during 2004-05.

(ii) 30 June 2005
The Department de-recognised $1.337 million research costs from its Capital WIP and Property,
Plant and Equipment. Retained earnings were decreased by the same amount, of which
$4.117 million were written back to offset expenses as they had been adjusted to retained
earnings at the date of transition at 1 July 2004. Depreciation of $0.467 million was written
back due to the de-recognition of the research costs.
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AASB 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
The Department has identified certain non-current assets that are held for sale. They are the Tram
Barn land, some residential properties and motor vehicles.

(i) 1 July 2004
Total non-current assets of $6.724 million that were transferred to held for sale comprised of
Tram Barn land $5.09 million, residential properties $1.165 million and motor vehicles
$0.469 million. The revaluation $1.765 million of the Tram Barn land in 2004-05 was re-stated
on 1 July 2004. Related liabilities were assumed nil as it is immaterial.

(ii) 30 June 2005
Total non-current assets $8.59 million that were transferred to held for sale comprised of Tram
Barn land $5.09 million (which was sold during current financial year), residential properties
$1.165 million and motor vehicles $2.335 million (refer Note 13).

AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statement

The Department has reclassified motor vehicles of net written value of $70.2 million ($55.1 million at
1 July 2004) that are to be sold within 12 months after the reporting date to current Property, Plant
and Equipment.

AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework IV Financial Asset and Liability APS 6.3 and
AASB 139, the Department reported interest free loan at the net present value of expected future
cash payments discounted at the prevailing interest rate suggested in Accounting Policy
Framework 1V Financial Asset and Liability Framework APS 6.3 during 2004-05. The impact before
the date of transition (loan reduction of $0.957 million) have been recognised directly in retained
earnings at the date of transition to AIFRS at 1 July 2004.

Correction of Errors made under Previous AGAAP

The Department had included lands and related revaluation over which it has no control from periods
prior to 1 July 2004. Furthermore, expenses for period prior to 1 July 2004 were included in capital
reserves. Comparatives have been adjusted to reflect the correction of the errors at the date of
transit at 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005.

(i) 1 July 2004
Total Land of $11.890 million and Asset Revaluation Reserves of $9.369 million have been
reversed and net reduction to Retained Earnings was $2.521 million. Prior period expense of
$1.268 million was reversed from Capital Reserve to Retained Earnings. Total impact to
retained earnings is $3.789 million.

(ii) 30 June 2005
Total Land and related Asset Revaluation Reserves of $4.398 million has been reversed.

Others

The major change is the treatment of accounting policy changes under AIFRS. These now apply
retrospectively except for specific exemptions in accordance with another standard. The resulting
adjustments arising from events and transactions before date of transition to AIFRS have been
recognised directly in retained earnings at the date of transition to AIFRS.

The estimates applied by the Department under AIFRS are consistent with the estimates applied
under previous AGAAP, after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies. The
adjustments from any changes in estimates are reflected in the Income Statement.

The Department acts as an agent for other SA Government agencies on the management of the EDS
contract. Prior to 1 July 2005, the Department recorded gross revenues and expenses. Due to
limited guidance available in the Accounting Policy Framework, AIFRS standards and AAS 29
Financial Reporting by Government Departments, the Department sought expert external accounting
advice and has adopted guidance from the US jurisdiction on accounting for agency-type
relationships whereby only the management fee is recorded as income. As a result, total income
and supplies and services expenses have been adjusted down by $74.5 million during 2004-05.
There was no effect on retained earnings.

The Department has received appropriation on behalf of other State Government agencies and
recorded gross receipts as appropriation and the payments as transfers out prior to 1 July 2005. As
the Department does not control these funds, they are no longer included in the financial
statements. An amount of $5.8 million was removed from appropriation income and transfer
payments in 2004-05.

The Department has not adopted Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease during the current financial year. The Department will apply Interpretation 4 on the basis of
facts and circumstances that existed as of 1 July 2006. Implementation of such is not expected to
change the accounting for any of the Department’s arrangements.
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5. Expenses 2006 2005
5.1 Employee Benefits Costs Note $'000 $'000

Payments to parties external to SA Government:
Wages and salaries 2.20 110 897 98 749
TVSP 5.1.1 1719 -
Long service leave 4 951 4 621
Annual leave 10171 9 508

Payments to SA Government:

Employment on-cost - Superannuation 13720 11 381
Employment on-cost - Other 8 072 6 871
Total Employee Expenses 149 530 131 130

5.1.1 Targeted Voluntary Separation Packages (TVSPs)

TVSP paid to employees during the reporting period 1719 -

Annual and long service leave paid/accrued during the reporting
period 524 214
Recovered from the Department of the Premier and Cabinet - (705)
Recovered from the Department of Treasury and Finance (1719) -
524 (491)

Number of employees that were paid TVSPs during the reporting period were 21 (nil).

Annual leave of $89 000 and long service leave of $63 000 were paid to employees who took the
TVSP during the year.

5.1.2 Remuneration of Employees
Amounts received or receivable by employees of the Department whose remuneration is greater
than $100 000. The amounts of salaries and related payments, superannuation benefits and motor
vehicle benefits were $15.1 million($13.3 million).

2006 2005

The number of employees of the Department whose remuneration Number of Number of
falls within the following bands for the year ended were: Employees Employees
$100 000 - $109 999 39 20
$110 000 - $119 999 9 15
$120 000 - $129 999 13 13
$130 000 - $139 999 13 9
$140 000 - $149 999 4 3
$150 000 - $159 999 7 7
$160 000 - $169 999 1 4
$170 000 - $179 999 3 2
$180 000 - $189 999 2 3
$190 000 - $199 999 2 2
$200 000 - $209 999 2 1
$210 000 - $219 999 1 3
$220 000 - $229 999 5 3
$230 000 - $239 999 2 -
$250 000 - $259 999 - 2
$260 000 - $269 999 3 1
$270 000 - $279 999 1 2
$280 000 - $289 999 - 1
$290 000 - $299 999 1 -
108 91

The number of full time equivalent employees at reporting date is 2 136.7 (1 991.2).

Note 2006 2005
5.2 Supplies and Services 2.5 $'000 $'000
Supplies and services provided by entities within the
SA Government:
Information Technology and telecommunications expenses 740 2481
Insurance 4 034 7 729
Repairs and maintenance 1100 2 599
Rent 6 159 6 083
Consultancy, contractors and temp staff 949 372
Accommodation 6 874 7 407
Motor vehicles expenses 2 086 2074
Cost of goods 136 576
Others 5 868 4 783
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 27 946 34 104
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Note 2006 2005
5.2 Supplies and Services (continued) 2.5 $'000 $'000
Supplies and services provided by entities external to the :
SA Government
Information Technology and telecommunications expenses 50 478 57 543
Repairs and maintenance 73 804 84 683
Rent 67 195 63 625
Consultancy, contractors and temp staff 22 732 16 755
Accommodation 15 649 14 550
Motor vehicles expenses 19914 16 306
Cost of goods 14 500 16 032
Others 31 806 22 990
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 296 078 292 484
Total Supplies and Services 324 024 326 588

The number and dollar amount of consultancies paid/payable that fell within the following bands:

2006 2006 2005 2005
Number $'000 Number $’000
Below $10 000 72 229 118 280
Between $10 000 and $50 000 18 430 19 453
Above $50 000 7 1484 5 1043
Total Paid/Payable to the Consultants
Engaged 97 2143 142 1776
5.3 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses Note 2006 2005
Amortisation: 2.13 $'000 $’000
Leased plant and equipment 338 406
Leased buildings 469 507
Leased fleet vehicle - 14 461
Intangible assets 2 624 396
Total Amortisation 3431 15770
Depreciation:
Building, plant and equipment and fitouts 26 004 26 592
Motor vehicles 35 142 24 905
Total Depreciation 61 146 51 497
Total Amortisation and Depreciation 64 577 67 267
5.4 Grants and Subsidies 2.5
Grants and subsidies paid/payable to entities external to
the SA Government:
Recurrent 8 908 10 174
Capital 2982 6 967
Others 1755 2978
Total Grants and Subsidies 13 645 20 119
5.5 Other Expenses
All other expenses paid/payable to entities
external to SA Government:
Bad and doubtful debts (write-back) expenses (361) 1352
Guarantee payments - 4 815
Loss from disposal of assets 3 465 -
Impairment loss (a) 11 487 -
Write-off of fixed assets 475 808
Revaluation decrement - 865
Relief for bush fire 876 555
Donation of assets (b) 6 289 -
Total Other Expenses 22 231 8 395

(a) Impairment loss during 2005-06 represents drop in residual values in the fleet vehicles on hand.
(b) Donation of assets represents the release of the Southern Sports Complex to South Adelaide Football
Club on a 99 year lease.

Auditor’'s Remuneration 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department 669 587

The Auditor-General’s Department received no other benefits.
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7. Income Note 2006 2005
7.1 Revenues from Fees and Charges 2.5 $'000 $'000
Fees and charges received/receivable from entities within the
SA Government:

Regulatory fees 12 166 9 383
Maintenance services 62 255 83 724
Fleet management 76 744 69 072
IT and Telecommunication services 52 920 51 198
Service provision fees 20 834 6 555
Rental income 87 213 83 034
Sales of goods 12 949 11 338
Others 41 410 37 254
Total Fees and Charges - SA Government Entities 366 491 351 558

Fees and charges received/receivable from entities external
to the SA Government:

Regulatory fees 5915 5 686
Maintenance services 1643 3222
IT and Telecommunication services 1174 53
Service provision fees 16 477 13 585
Rental income 16 747 16 549
Sales of goods 5 339 4 269
Others 7 960 8 327
Total Fees and Charges - Non-SA Government

Entities 55 255 51 691
Total Fees and Charges 421 746 403 249

7.2 Interest Revenues
Interest from entities within the SA Government 2 299 8 023

Total Interest Received 2 299 8 023

7.3 Other Income

Gain from disposal of assets - 3982
Grant revenue from external parties 979 -
Commonwealth revenue 809 671
Total Other Income 1788 4 653
7.4 Revenues from SA Government 2.6
Appropriations pursuant to Appropriation Act 172 767 161 444
Less: Appropriation for other government agencies:

Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation
Fund 3 882 5 795
Major Administrative Project 1 000 -
State Procurement Board 447 436
Net Appropriations of the Department 167 438 155 213
Intra-government transfers 4 078 6 428
Total Revenue from SA Government 171 516 161 641

8. Net Revenues (Expenses) from Restructuring
The net revenues (expenses) relating to the restructuring of
administrative arrangements are as follows:

(a) Office for Infrastructure Development 205 -
(b) Transport SA Customer Service Centres (1139) -
(c) SafeWork SA - -
(d) Department for Aboriginal Affairs and Reconciliation - (9 241)
(e) Land Administration Systems and Functions - 328
(934) (8 913)

(a) Office for Infrastructure Development (OFID)
On 18 April 2005, the Government announced the transfer of the Office for Infrastructure Development to
the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure (DTEI). For accounting and reporting purposes
the transfer of net liabilities of $0.205 million was effective on 1 July 2005.

The following assets and liabilities were transferred from the Department: 2006 2005
Assets: $'000 $'000
Current assets (643) -
Non-current assets (17) -
Total Assets (660) -
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Office for Infrastructure Development (OFID) (continued) 2006 2005
Liabilities: $'000 $'000
Current liabilities 252 -
Non-current liabilities 613 -
Total Liabilities 865 -

Net Liabilities 205 -

Transport SA Customer Service Centres

On 7 March 2005, Cabinet approved a joint Service SA Expansion submission in line with the South
Australian Strategic Plan priority action to extend Service SA across South Australia. The submission has
enabled Service SA to assume 7 Transport SA Customer Service Centres. For accounting and reporting
purposes the transfer of net liabilities of $1.139 million was effective on 1 July 2005.

The following liabilities were transferred to the Department: 2006 2005

Liabilities: $'000 $'000

Current liabilities 413 -

Non-current liabilities 726 -

Total Liabilities 1139 -

Net Liabilities 1139 -
SafeWork SA

On 1 December 2005, in accordance with Ministerial Instruction, all the existing occupational health and
safety functions performed by WorkCover were transferred to SafeWork SA (formerly known as Workplace
Services). For financial accounting and reporting purposes the transfer of the WorkCover functions and
staff was effective 1 January 2006.

The following assets and liabilities were transferred to the Department: 2006 2005
Assets: $'000 $'000
Current assets 519 -
Total Assets 519 -

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 214 -
Non-current liabilities 305 -
Total Liabilities 519 -

Net Liabilities - -

Department for Aboriginal Affairs and Reconciliation (2005 comparative only)

On 11 March 2004, the Government announced the transfer of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs and
Reconciliation to the Department for Families and Communities. For accounting and reporting purposes the
transfer of net assets of $9.241 million is effective on 1 July 2004.

The following assets and liabilities were transferred to the Department: 2005
Assets: $’000
Current assets (9 758)
Non-current assets (868)
Total Assets (10 626)
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 1 385
Total Liabilities 1 385
Net Assets (9 241)

Land Administration Systems and Functions (2005 Comparative Only)

During 2004-05, additional land administration plant and equipment assets were identified as having been
physically transferred to DAIS on 1 September 2003 that were not taken into account in determining the
gain on restructure in the previous reporting period. This resulted in an additional net gain of
$0.328 million to the Department.

The following assets were transferred to the Department: 2005
Assets: $’000
Non-current assets 328
Total Assets 328

Net Assets 328
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Note 2006 2005

9. Cash 2.8 $'000 $'000
Deposit with the Treasurer* 58 995 69 550

Imprest account/cash on hand 312 265

Total Cash 59 307 69 815

* Deposits with the Treasurer include Funds $6.5 million ($1.5 million) held in the Accrual Appropriation Account.
The balances of these funds are not available for general use and used in accordance with the Treasurer’'s/Under
Treasurer’s approval.

Note 2006 2005
10. Receivables 2.9 $'000 $'000
Current:
Trade debtors 47 568 45 602
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 558 1 086
47 010 44 516
Finance lease receivable 2.22,25.2 424 513
GST receivable 2 347 4 316
Workers compensation recoveries 29 31
Accrued revenue 35 003 26 123
Accrued interest income 130 623
Total Current Receivables 84 943 76 122
Receivables from SA Government Entities:
Trade debtors and finance lease receivable 40 876 38 821
Accrued revenues 32 628 25 454
Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 73 504 64 275
Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities:
Trade debtors 6 558 6 208
Accrued revenues 2 505 1292
GST receivable 2 347 4 316
Workers compensation recoveries 29 31
Total Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities 11 439 11 847
Total Current Receivables 84 943 76 122
11. Inventories 2.10
Current:
Other than those held for distribution 2484 2 071
Total Current Inventories 2 484 2071
12. Non-Current Financial Assets 2.9
Receivable from Non-SA Government entities:
Loans 1276 1248
Workers compensation recoveries 90 101
Finance lease receivable from SA Government entities 25.2 3 966 4 389
Total Non-Current Financial Assets 5332 5738
13. Non-Current Assets Classified as held for Sale 2.11
Land 4 281 5415
Buildings 3544 840
Motor vehicles 4 700 2 335
Total Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 12 525 8 590

Land and Buildings to be disposed in 2006-07 included mainly 2 (1) commercial properties of 81 Osmond Terrace
and West Lakes Boulevard and 38 (14) residential properties.

14. Intangible Assets 2.14
Computer software:
Internally developed computer software 12 925 3024
Accumulated amortisation (3 422) (1182)
Other computer software 12 428 11 481
Accumulated amortisation (10 907) (10 523)
Total Intangible Assets 11 024 2 800

The internally developed computer software primarily relates to the Department’s Strategic Asset Management
Information System (SAMIS) which has a remaining useful life of four years and a carrying amount of
$7.036 million.
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Intangible Assets (continued)
The following table shows the movements of intangibles:

Internally
Developed Other Total
Computer Computer Intangible
Software Software Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount as at 1 July 1 842 958 2 800
Additions 915 710 1625
Transfer from WIP 8 987 237 9 224
Depreciation and amortisation (2 241) (383) (2 624)
Carrying Amount as at 30 June 9 503 1522 11 025
Capital Works in Progress
The following table shows the movements of Capital Works in Progress:
Buildings &
Improve- Govt Total
ments & Plant & Radio Capital
Fit Outs Equipment Network WIP
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount as at 1 July 9 388 11 328 1 603 22 319
Additions 15 555 4 876 4 828 25 259
Transfer to PPE (1107) (2 641) (3714) (7 462)
Transfer to intangibles - (9 224) - (9 224)
Carrying Amount as at 30 June 23 836 4 339 2717 30 892
2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
Property, Plant and Equipment 2.13
Current:
Motor Vehicles
At cost 120177 87 588
Less: Accumulated depreciation 14 855 17 340
Less: Impairment Loss 8 633 -
96 689 70 248
Non-Current:
(a) Land, Buildings and Fitouts
Land, Buildings and Improvements - At valuation:
Land 154 846 147 215
Buildings and facilities 400 038 369 419
Less: Accumulated depreciation 8 085 2134
546 799 514 500
Fit Outs:
In owned buildings - At cost 2177 2 069
Less: Accumulated depreciation 1953 1824
224 245
In leased buildings - At cost 20 816 19 554
Less: Accumulated depreciation 11 543 9 659
9 273 9 895
Total Fit Outs 9 497 10 140
Total Land, Buildings and Fitouts 556 296 524 640
(b) Assets under Finance Lease 2.22
Motor Vehicles:
At valuation - 111 278
Less: Accumulated amortisation - 97 636
- 13 642
Accommodation:
At valuation 19 300 19 300
Less: Accumulated amortisation 468 -
18 832 19 300
Plant and Equipment:
At valuation 3 989 3087
Less: Accumulated amortisation 2714 2 835
1275 252
Total Assets under Finance Lease 20 107 33 194
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17.

2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
(c) Plant and Equipment 2.13
At cost 25 369 24 676
At valuation 3122 3122
Less: Accumulated depreciation 14 668 15 002
13 823 12 796
(d) Government Radio Network 2.13
At cost 3594 -
At valuation 70 292 70 292
Less: Accumulated depreciation 10 397 -
63 489 70 292
(e) Motor Vehicles 2.13
At cost 119 003 118 688
Less: Accumulated depreciation 19 021 8771
Less: Impairment loss 2191 -
97 791 109 917
Total Non-Current Property, Plant and Equipment 751 506 750 839
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 848 195 821 087
The following table shows the movements of property, plant and equipment:
Assets
Buildings & Under
Improve- Finance
Land ments Fit Outs Lease
$'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
Carrying amount as at 1 July 147 215 367 285 10 140 33 194
Additions 2 075 17 121 1557 1362
Assets classified as held for sale (4 281) (3 544) - -
Disposals (1659) (5 470) - (13 642)
Transfer from WIP - 322 785 -
Revaluation increment (decrement) 11 496 24 879 - -
Impairment loss - - - -
Restructure transfer - - (18) -
Depreciation and amortisation - (8 640) (2 967) (807)
Others - - - -
Carrying Amount as at 30 June 154 846 391 953 9 497 20 107
2006
Total
Govt Property
Plant & Motor Radio Plant &
Equipment Vehicles Network Equipment
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount as at 1 July 12 796 180 165 70 292 821 087
Additions 3012 137 850 - 162 977
Assets classified as held for sale - (4 700) - (12 525)
Disposals - (72 206) - (92977)
Transfer from WIP 2 641 - 3714 7 462
Revaluation increment (decrement) - - (120) 36 255
Impairment loss - (11 487) - (11 487)
Restructure transfer - - - (18)
Depreciation and amortisation (4 000) (35 142) (10 397) (61 953)
Others (626) - - (626)
Carrying Amount as at 30 June 13 823 194 480 63 489 848 195
Other Assets 2006 2005
Current: Note $'000 $'000
Prepaid expenses 7 900 6 300
Contracts work in progress* 2.12 - 4 076
Total Current Other Assets 7 900 10 376
Non-Current:
Prepaid expenses 973 1 346
Total Non-Current Other Assets 973 1 346
Total Other Assets 8 873 11 722

*  Contract work for SA Government entities
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18.

19.

20.

21.

Administrative and Information Services

Note

Payables 2.15
Current:

Client advances 2.16

Trade creditors

Accrued expenses

Income tax equivalents

Employment on-cost

Total Current Payables

Non-Current:
Employment on-cost
Total Non-Current Payables

Total Payables

Payables to SA Government Entities:
Client advances
Trade creditors
Accrued expenses
Income tax equivalents
Employment on-cost
Total Payables to SA Government Entities

Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Trade creditors
Accrued expenses
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities

Total Payables

Borrowings 2.19
Current:
Finance leases
Borrowings from State Government
Other
Total Current Borrowings

Non-Current:
Finance leases
Borrowings from State Government
Other
Total Non-Current Borrowings

Total Borrowings

Employee Benefits 2.20
Current:
Accrued salaries and wages
Annual leave
Long service leave
Total Current Employee Benefits

Non-Current:
Long service leave
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits

Total Employee Benefits

Provisions 2.21
Current:
Workers compensation
Restructuring costs
Total Current Provisions for Non-SA Government
Entities
Procurement of testing services to SA Government entity
Total Current Provisions

Non-Current:
Workers compensation
Total Non-Current Provisions

Total Provisions
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2006 2005
$'000 $'000
- 1343

26 060 5224
42 890 63 686
1 998 1322
2 754 2439
73 702 74 014
3 057 3 348
3 057 3348
76 759 77 362
- 1343
1242 628
4 696 7 690
1998 1322
5811 5 787
13 747 16 770
24 818 4 596
38 194 55 996
63 012 60 592
76 759 77 362
878 14 315
99 931 103 290
261 242
101 070 117 847
20 508 20 228
118 129 92 830
4 310 4573
142 947 117 631
244 017 235 478
2 297 1620
9933 8 898
2 348 2273
14 578 12 791
32 394 29 625
32394 29 625
46 972 42 416
1 099 1076
- 2 789

1 099 3 865
764 -
1863 3 865
2 865 2 691
2 865 2 691
4728 6 556




Administrative and Information Services

Movements in Provisions

Carrying amount as at 1 July
Additional provisions recognised
Unused amounts reversed
Amount utilised/paid

Carrying Amount as at 30 June

22, Other Liabilities
Current:

Prepaid reimbursements relating to the sale and leaseback of

motor vehicles
Income received in advance
Lease incentives
Contractor reimbursements in advance

Total Other Liabilities

23. Equity
23.1 Contributed Capital
Balance at 1 July
Contributed capital during the year
Return of equity

Balance at 30 June

23.2 Retained Earnings

Balance at 1 July

Net result after restructuring and tax
Dividend declared

Transfers to and from reserves:

Transfer from Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at 30 June

23.3 Reserves

Asset Revaluation Reserve:
Balance at 1 July
Revaluation increments

Transfer to accumulated surplus

Transfer to revaluation reserve for assets held for sale

Balance at 30 June

Surplus Incentive Funds Reserve:
Balance at 1 July
Balance at 30 June

Capital Reserves:
Balance at 1 July
Balance at 30 June

Total Reserves

23.4 Revaluation Reserve for NCA held for Sale

Balance at 1 July

Transfer to accumulated surplus

Transfer from asset revaluation reserve
Balance at 30 June

24. Cash Flow Statement
(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 30 June per Cash Flow

Statement
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2006
Procurement
Workers Restructuring of Testing
Compensation Costs Services
$'000 $'000 $'000
3767 2789 -
1 069 - 764
- (2 789) -
(872) - -
3 964 - 764
2006 2006
Note $'000 $'000
- 1444
2.18 3 409 1715
2.17 3197 2 867
2.12 1 352 1338
7 958 7 364
209 710 222 891
8 000 10 455
- (23 636)
217 710 209 710
153 006 172 195
5841 (5900)
(17 397) (15 204)
5155 1915
146 605 153 006
276 820 201 203
34 964 77 532
(3 399) (1915)
(4 476) -
303 909 276 820
768 768
768 768
6 813 6 813
6 813 6 813
311 490 284 401
1756 1756
(1 756) -
4 476 -
4476 1756
9 59 307 69 815




(b)

Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating
Activities to Net Cost of Services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Less: Revenues from SA Government

Add: Payments to SA Government (income tax expense)

Add: Net expense (revenue) on restructuring
Add (Less): Non-Cash Items:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Asset donated
(Loss) Gain on disposal of assets
Amortisation of finance lease
Profit on sale and leaseback
Asset write off
Impairment loss
Revaluation decrement
Doubtful debts (recovery) expense
Others
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase in receivables
Increase (Decrease) in inventories
(Decrease) Increase in prepayments
Decrease (Increase) in payables
(Increase) Decrease in provisions
Decrease (Increase) in other liabilities

Net Cost of Providing Services

25. Finance Lease Commitments
25.1 The Department as Lessee

Motor Vehicles (fully repaid during the year):
Current, not later than one year
Sub-Total Lease Liabilities

Accommodation:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Less: Future finance charges and contingent rentals
Sub-Total Lease Liabilities

Plant and Equipment:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

Less: Future finance charges and contingent rentals
Sub-Total Lease Liabilities

Finance leases liabilities:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Less: Future finance charges and contingent rentals
Total Finance Lease Liabilities

Present value of finance leases payable as follows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Present Value of Finance Leases Payable

Representing:
Current
Non-current
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2006 2006

Note $'000 $'000

86 259 50 645

(171 516) (161 641)

2 295 3376

934 8913

(63 771) (51 893)

(6 289) -

(3 465) 2914

(806) (15 374)

- 1 068

(475) (808)

(11 487) -

- (865)

361 (1 352)

- 3276

4 069 5 600

413 (201)

(2 476) 1345

(887) 8 265

4 264 (7 687)

594 (833)

(161 983) (155 252)
2.22

- 13 642

- 13 642

3 299 3200

13 197 12 799

49 490 51 195

65 986 67 194

45 856 46 519

20 130 20 675

377 138

1 060 106

1437 244

181 18

1256 226

3 676 16 980

14 257 12 905

49 490 51 195

67 423 81 080

46 037 46 537

21 386 34 543

878 14 315

3 594 2 600

16 914 17 628

21 386 34 543

878 14 315

20 508 20 228

21 386 34 543
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25.2 The Department as Lessor Note 2006 2006
Accommodation: $'000 $’000

Not later than one year 718 913

Later than one year and not later than five years 2 867 2926

Later than five years 2 569 3314

6 154 7 153

Less: Future finance charges 1764 2 251

Total Finance Lease Receivables 4 390 4 902

Present value of finance leases receivable as follows:

Not later than one year 424 513
Later than one year and not later than five years 2021 1 869
Later than five years 1945 2 520

Present Value of Finance Lease Receivables 4 390 4 902

Representing lease receivable:

Current 424 513
Non-current 3 966 4 389
4 390 4 902
26. Other Commitments on Expenditures 2.22

26.1 Operating Lease Commitments
The Department as Lessee
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities:

Accommodation:

Not later than one year 68 405 61 097

Later than one year and not later than five years 140 485 150 935

Later than five years 53 472 55 465
Total Operating Lease Commitments -

All Non-Cancellable 262 362 267 497

The Department as Lessor
Leases receivable contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as assets:

Vehicles hire:

Not later than one year 42 920 39772
Later than one year and not later than five years 37 349 18 876
Sub-Total Operating Lease Receivables -
All Non-Cancellable 80 269 58 648
Commercial Accommodation:
Not later than one year 77 345 77 297
Later than one year and not later than five years 147 180 184 592
Later than five years 42 856 51 509
Sub-Total Operating Lease Receivables -
All Non-Cancellable 267 381 313 398
Total Operating Lease Receivable -
All Non-Cancellable 347 650 372 046

26.2 Capital Commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment:

Not later than one year 5 227 4 629
Later than one year and not later than five years 695 7 045
Total Capital Commitments (including GST) 5922 11 674

26.3 Other Commitments
Grants and other commitments contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities:

Not later than one year 1 658 -
Later than one year and not later than five years 1787 -
Total Other Commitments (including GST) 3 445 -
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27.

28.

Interest Rate Risk

The Department's exposure to interest rate
periods is set out in the following table:
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risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity

2006
Weighted
Floating Fixed Interest Maturing in Non- Average
Interest 1year Over1lto Morethan Interest Interest
Rate or less 5 years 5 years Bearing Total Rate
Financial Assets: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Percent
Cash and cash equivalents 58 995 - - - 312 59 307 5.4
Finance lease receivable - 424 2021 1945 - 4 390 7.0
Receivables - - - - 85 885 85 885
Total Financial Assets 58 995 424 2 021 1945 86 197 149 582
Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings from State
Government - 99 931 118 099 - 30 218 060 5.8
Finance lease liabilities - 878 3594 16 914 - 21 386 5.9
Other loans - 261 1 264 3 046 - 4 571 7.9
Borrowings related to NCA
held for sale - 2 860 - - - 2 860 5.8
Payables - - - - 76 759 76 759
Total Financial Liabilities - 103 930 122 957 19 960 76 789 323 636
Net Financial Assets
(Liabilities) 58 995 (103 506) (120 936) (18 015) 9 408 (174 054)
2005
Weighted
Floating Fixed Interest Maturing in Non- Average
Interest 1 year Over 1 to More than Interest Interest
Rate or less 5 years 5 years Bearing Total Rate
Financial Assets: $'000 $’000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Percent
Cash and cash equivalents 69 550 - - - 265 69 815 5.2
Finance lease receivable - 513 1 869 2520 - 4 902 7.5
Receivables - - - - 76 958 76 958
Total Financial Assets 69 550 513 1 869 2520 77 223 151 675
Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings from State
Government - 103 290 92 800 - 30 196 120 7.5
Finance lease liabilities - 14 315 2 599 17 629 - 34 543 9.4
Other loans - 242 1171 3402 - 4 815 7.8
Borrowings related to NCA
held for sale - 2 215 - - - 2215 7.5
Payables - - - - 77 362 77 362
Total Financial Liabilities - 120 062 96 570 21 031 77 392 315 055
Net Financial Assets -
(Liabilities) 69 550 (119 549) (94 701) (18 511) (169) (163 380)

Programs of the Department
In achieving its objectives the department performs a range of functions and services classified into the following
program and sub programs. The functions for 2005-06 were as follows:

Program

Industrial Relations

Employee Advocacy

Sub Program

SafeWork SA

Public Sector
Workforce Relations

Employee Ombudsman
Services

Conciliation and
Arbitration

Description/Objective

SA promotes and encourages safe, fair, productive workplaces and
high standards of public safety for all South Australians through the
provision of a range of services including information, education,
assistance, compliance and enforcement.

Assists the Government to achieve its economic development and
social goals, working within the parameters of relevant legislation
and Government policy, by providing industrial relations services,
occupational health, safety and injury management and strategic
workforce policy and projects.

The employee ombudsman is appointed to assist in ensuring that
the rights of employees under the South Australian Law are
protected. This entails promoting the principles of fairness, equity
and justice for all employees.

Provision of industrial conciliation and arbitration services through

the Industrial Relations Court and Commission and Workers
Compensation Tribunal, for the resolution of workplace disputes.
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28.

Programs of the Department (continued)

Program

Recreation Sport
and Racing

Building
Management

Information and
Communication
Technology
Services

Contract and
Procurement
Services

Community
Services

Support Services to
Government

Sub Program

Recreation and Sport

Racing Policy

Building Services

Commercial Property
Management

Government
Employees Residential
Property Management

Service SA

Land Services

Archives and Records
Management

Government Publishing
SA

Forensic Services

Light Motor Vehicle
Fleet

Vehicles for Ministers,
Parliamentarians and
VIPs

Shared Corporate
Services

Description/Objective

Provision of programs, services and policy to facilitate the delivery
and strategic development of active recreation and sport facilities,
services, programs and infrastructure across the state. It is aimed
at enhancing the quality and extent of opportunities for
participation and fostering continued sustainability of the industry,
as well as providing targeted strategies and support for specific
populations including the development of high performance
athletes.

Provision of strategic policy advice to the government through the
Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing on matters relating to,
and affecting, the South Australian racing industry. To achieve
this, the Office for Racing facilitates and builds alliances with
individuals and organisations involved in the South Australian
racing and wagering industries.

Provision of building maintenance and asset management services
including building project risk management to the State
Government.

Provision of lease administration and management services in
relation to commercial tenancies provided to state government
agencies.

Procures and manages regional housing for South Australian
government employees.

Provides strategic government information and communication
technology initiatives, primarily across the public sector. Provides
strategic advice and coordination on agency and sector specific
information and communication technology (ICT) initiatives to
assist agencies in the efficient delivery of services to the
government and the community.

Management of procurement, disposal and across government
contract services for the provision of a wide range of government
goods and services.

South Australia’s gateway to government services and information
through a comprehensive integrated network of customer service
centres, rural agents, call centres and website.

Provides a Government-guaranteed system of land titling and land
boundary security, and a viable and impartial property valuation
service for the benefit of business, Government and the
community.

Provides records management services across all State Government
agencies and local councils and provides a range of archival
services for preservation of and access to official records.

Manages the publication and dissemination of a range of key
parliamentary and Government publications for the South
Australian Government.

Provision of forensic science services, primarily in relation to
coronial and police investigations.

Provision of fleet management services to state government
agencies including policy advice, vehicle leasing, maintenance,
accident and fuel management, vehicle fit out and disposals
preparation.

Provision of a motor vehicle service to ministerial representatives,
VIP dignitaries and members of parliament on official state
government business.

Provision of a comprehensive range of shared corporate services to

various government agencies including the provision of payroll,
redeployment, IT support and financial transactional processing.
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28. Programs of the Department (continued)
Program Sub Program Description/Objective
Intra-Agency The centralised provision of support services to the department’s
Support various business units within its portfolio including human

resources, payroll management, financial management, facilities
management, internal audit, administrative support, policy advice
and executive and ministerial governance.

Program Schedule of Expenses and Income - 2006

2006
Employee Supplies Depreciation
Benefits and and Total
Program Sub-program Costs Services Amortisation Others Expenses
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Industrial Relations:
SafeWork SA 17 872 11 458 61 319 29 710
Public Sector Workforce Relations 3293 1 684 120 50 5147
Sub-Total 21 165 13 142 181 369 34 857
Employee Advocacy:
Employee Ombudsman Services 254 255 - - 509
Conciliation and Arbitration 5101 3739 126 367 9 333
Sub-Total 5 355 3 994 126 367 9 842
Office for Recreation and Sport:
Recreation and Sport 7 632 10 577 2234 19 442 39 885
Racing Policy 314 135 - 341 790
Sub-Total 7 946 10 712 2234 19 783 40 675
Building Management:
Building Services 15 441 70 375 1777 (254) 87 339
Commercial Property Management 2 459 97 365 5134 890 105 848
Government Employees Residential
Property Management 1253 14 068 2 297 274 17 892
Intra-program elimination - (6871) - - (6871)
Sub-Total 19 153 174 937 9 208 910 204 208
Contract and Procurement Services 7 445 18 869 97 742 27 153
Information and Communication Technology Services 12 590 51 999 12 672 75 77 336
Community Services:
Service SA 8 685 6 055 244 78 15 062
Land Services 20 663 17 239 353 (2) 38 253
Archives and Records Management 2 829 3062 713 - 6 604
Government Publishing SA 928 1 066 54 - 2 048
Sub-Total 33105 27 422 1 364 76 61 967
Support Services to Government:
Forensic Services 8 067 5474 1832 26 15 399
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet 2277 31 169 35216 27 033 95 695
Vehicles for Ministers, Parliamentarians
and VIPs 2414 3147 - - 5561
Shared Corporate Services 14 389 20 952 1119 211 36 671
Intra-program elimination - (1.796) - - (1.796)
Sub-Total 27 147 58 946 38 167 27 270 151 530
Intra-agency Services 15 629 11 622 528 2779 30 558
Inter-program eliminations (5) (47 619) - (2 686) (50 310)
Consolidation 149 530 324 024 64 577 49 685 587 816
2006
Net
Result
Net Cost of  Revenues Before
Total Providing from Restructuring
Program Sub-program Income Services SA Govt and Tax
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Industrial Relations:
SafeWork SA 13 041 16 669 - (16 669)
Public Sector Workforce Relations 1102 4 045 - (4 045)
Sub-Total 14 143 20 714 - (20 714)
Employee Advocacy:
Employee Ombudsman Services - 509 - (509)
Conciliation and Arbitration 5132 4201 - (4 201)
Sub-Total 5132 4710 - (4 710)
Office for Recreation and Sport:
Recreation and Sport 4167 35718 3 590 (32 128)
Racing Policy - 790 - (790)
Sub-Total 4167 36 508 3 590 (32 918)
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Program Schedule of Expenses and Income - 2006 (continued)

Program Sub-program

Building Management:
Building Services
Commercial Property Management
Government Employees Residential
Property Management
Intra-program elimination
Sub-Total
Contract and Procurement Services
Information and Communication Technology Services
Community Services:
Service SA
Land Services
Archives and Records Management
Government Publishing SA
Sub-Total
Support Services to Government:
Forensic Services
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet
Vehicles for Ministers, Parliamentarians
and VIPs
Shared Corporate Services
Intra-program elimination
Sub-Total
Intra-agency Services
Whole of DAIS appropriation
Inter-program eliminations

Consolidation

Program Schedule of Expenses and Income - 2005

Program Sub-program

Industrial Relations:
SafeWork SA
Public Sector Workforce Relations
Sub-Total
Employee Advocacy:
Employee Ombudsman Services
Conciliation and Arbitration
Sub-Total
Office for Recreation and Sport:
Recreation and Sport
Racing Policy
Sub-Total
Building Management:
Building Services
Commercial Property Management
Government Employees Residential
Property Management
Intra-program elimination
Sub-Total
Contract and Procurement Services
Information and Communication Technology Services
Community Services:
Service SA
Land Services
Archives and Records Management
Government Publishing SA
Sub-Total
Support Services to Government:
Forensic Services
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet
Vehicles for Ministers, Parliamentarians
and VIPs
Shared Corporate Services
Intra-program elimination
Sub-Total
Intra-agency Services
Office for Infrastructure Development
Inter-program eliminations

Consolidation

2006

Net
Result
Net Cost of  Revenues Before
Total Providing from Restructuring
Income Services SA Govt and Tax
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
81 092 6 247 - (6 247)
116 158 (10 310) - 10 310
21 959 (4 067) 95 4162
(6 871) - - -
212 338 (8 130) 95 8 225
20 173 6 980 - (6 980)
63 244 14 092 - (14 092)
10 991 4071 222 (3 849)
25 486 12 767 - (12 767)
524 6 080 - (6 080)
1761 287 - (287)
38 762 23 205 222 (22 983)
3442 11 957 - (11 957)
84 352 11 343 - (11 343)
257 5 304 - (5 304)
28 505 8 166 - (8 166)
(1.796) - - -
114 760 36 770 - (36 770)
3424 27 134 171 (26 963)
- - 167 438 167 438
(50 130) - - -
425 833 161 983 171 516 9 533

2005

Employee Supplies Depreciation
Benefits and and Total
Costs Services Amortisation Others Expenses
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
14 504 7 164 43 123 21 834
3 080 1758 211 52 5101
17 584 8922 254 175 26 935
286 236 - 1 523
5230 3 268 134 1 8 633
5516 3 504 134 2 9 156
6 800 11 280 1985 25 541 45 606
286 198 - - 484
7 086 11 478 1 985 25 541 46 090
13 475 83 274 199 402 97 350
2 352 92 548 4909 4 974 104 783
1019 11 418 2 697 2 000 17 134
- (6 090) - - (6 090)
16 846 181 150 7 805 7 376 213 177
6 759 17 565 87 1147 25 558
11 108 58 739 13 367 895 84 109
3916 3019 179 82 7 196
20 048 18 504 576 42 39170
2 392 3 850 552 7 6 801
916 1 308 45 - 2 269
27 272 26 681 1352 131 55 436
7 139 4 780 1097 63 13 079
2 546 26 022 39 424 10 041 78 033
2429 2 607 - - 5036
14 998 15 754 927 169 31 848
- (1 344) - - (1.344)
27 112 47 819 41 448 10 273 126 652
11 185 4799 808 730 17 522
746 341 27 1 1115
(84) (34 410) - (79) (34 573)
131 130 326 588 67 267 46 192 571177
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Program Schedule of Expenses and Income - 2005 (continued)

Program Sub-program

Industrial Relations:
SafeWork SA
Public Sector Workforce Relations
Sub-Total
Employee Advocacy:
Employee Ombudsman Services
Conciliation and Arbitration
Sub-Total
Office for Recreation and Sport:
Recreation and Sport
Racing Policy
Sub-Total
Building Management:
Building Services
Commercial Property Management
Government Employees Residential
Property Management
Intra-program elimination
Sub-Total
Contract and Procurement Services
Information and Communication Technology Services
Community Services:
Service SA
Land Services
Archives and Records Management
Government Publishing SA
Sub-Total
Support Services to Government:
Forensic Services
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet
Vehicles for Ministers, Parliamentarians
and VIPs
Shared Corporate Services
Intra-program elimination
Sub-Total
Intra-agency Services
Office for Infrastructure Development
Whole of DAIS appropriation
Inter-program eliminations

Consolidation

Balance Sheet - 2006

Program Sub-program

Industrial Relations:
SafeWork SA
Public Sector Workforce Relations
Sub-Total
Employee Advocacy:
Employee Ombudsman Services
Conciliation and Arbitration
Sub-Total
Office for Recreation and Sport:
Recreation and Sport
Racing Policy
Sub-Total
Building Management:
Building Services
Commercial Property Management
Government Employees Residential
Property Management
Intra-program elimination
Sub-Total
Contract and Procurement Services
Information and Communication Technology Services
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2005
Net
Result
Net Cost of  Revenues Before
Total Providing from Restructuring
Income Services SA Govt and Tax
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
8 354 13 480 - (13 480)
1 050 4 051 - (4 051)
9 404 17 531 - (17 531)
- 523 - (523)
5 080 3 553 - (3 553)
5 080 4 076 - (4 076)
2736 42 870 6 684 (36 186)
- 484 - (484)
2736 43 354 6 684 (36 670)
95 925 1425 - (1 425)
109 633 (4 850) 28 4 878
19 286 (2 152) 215 2 367
(6 090) - - -
218 754 (5577) 243 5820
21 708 3 850 - (3 .850)
60 987 23122 - (23 122)
3714 3482 211 (3 271)
20 130 19 040 - (19 040)
358 6 443 - (6 443)
2116 153 - (153)
26 318 29118 211 (28 907)
3422 9 657 - (9 657)
77 686 347 - (347)
268 4 768 - (4 768)
17 910 13938 (710) (14 648)
(1.344) - - -
97 942 28 710 (710) (29 420)
7 625 9 897 - (9 897)
(56) 1171 - (1171)
- - 155 213 155 213
(34 573) - - -
415 925 155 252 161 641 6 389
2006
Assets
Current
Assets Non-
Other than Current Total
Cash Cash Assets Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- 281 379 660
- 220 - 220
- 501 379 880
- 5 - 5
- 155 128 283
- 160 128 288
- 763 126 504 127 267
- 763 126 504 127 267
- 40 168 9 638 49 806
- 13 615 243 212 256 827
- 5719 224 977 230 696
- (3996) - (3 996)
- 55 506 477 827 533 333
N 4 750 824 5574
- 22 100 78 533 100 633
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Balance Sheet - 2006 (continued)

Program Sub-program

Community Services:
Service SA
Land Services
Archives and Records Management
Government Publishing SA
Sub-Total
Support Services to Government:
Forensic Services
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet
Vehicles for Ministers, Parliamentarians
and VIPs
Shared Corporate Services
Sub-Total
Intra-agency Services
Whole of DAIS cash
Inter-program eliminations

Consolidation

Program Sub-program

Industrial Relations:
SafeWork SA
Public Sector Workforce Relations
Sub-Total
Employee Advocacy:
Employee Ombudsman Services
Conciliation and Arbitration
Sub-Total
Office for Recreation and Sport:
Recreation and Sport
Racing Policy
Sub-Total
Building Management:
Building Services
Commercial Property Management
Government Employees Residential
Property Management
Inter-program elimination
Sub-Total
Contract and Procurement Services
Information and Communication Technology Services
Community Services:
Service SA
Land Services
Archives and Records Management
Government Publishing SA
Sub-Total
Support Services to Government:
Forensic Services
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet
Vehicles for Ministers, Parliamentarians
and VIPs
Shared Corporate Services
Sub-Total
Intra-agency Services
Whole of DAIS cash
Inter-department eliminations

Consolidation
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2006
Assets
Current
Assets Non-

Other than Current Total
Cash Cash Assets Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- 2 388 951 3339
- 2 651 1625 4276
- 531 3 465 3996
- 188 159 347
- 5 758 6 200 11 958
- 837 5 464 6 301
- 112 646 98 138 210 784
- 520 3499 4019
- 114 003 107 101 221 104
- 2726 42 231 44 957
59 307 - - 59 307
- (1726) (40 000) (41 726)
59 307 204 541 799 727 1 063 575

2006

Liabilities

Non-
Current Current Total Net
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
3 552 4702 8 254 (7 594)
457 723 1180 (960)
4 009 5425 9434 (8 554)
51 43 94 (89)
665 932 1597 (1314)
716 975 1691 (1403)
3370 5331 8 701 118 566
73 58 131 (131)
3443 5 389 8 832 118 435
29 942 6214 36 156 13 650
7 083 20 077 27 160 229 667
2 957 33 369 36 326 194 370
(3996) - (3996) -
35986 59 660 95 646 437 687
2923 2 001 4 924 650
21 673 3884 25 557 75 076
1247 3 344 4 591 (1 252)
5480 5901 11 381 (7 105)
536 350 886 3110
293 371 664 (317)
7 556 9 966 17 522 (5 564)
1105 1815 2 920 3381
116 751 123 762 240 513 (29 729)
180 532 712 (712)
3913 4 954 8 867 (4 848)
121 949 131 063 253 012 (31 908)
5502 2 900 8 402 36 555
- - - 59 307
(1726) (40 000) (41 726) -
202 031 181 263 383 294 680 281




Balance Sheet - 2005

Program Sub-program

Industrial Relations:
SafeWork SA
Public Sector Workforce Relations
Sub-Total
Employee Advocacy:
Employee Ombudsman Services
Conciliation and Arbitration
Sub-Total
Office for Recreation and Sport:
Recreation and Sport
Racing Policy
Sub-Total
Building Management:
Building Services
Commercial Property Management
Government Employees Residential
Property Management
Intra-program elimination
Sub-Total
Contract and Procurement Services
Information and Communication Technology Services
Community Services:
Service SA
Land Services
Archives and Records Management
Government Publishing SA
Sub-Total
Support Services to Government:
Forensic Services
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet
Vehicles for Ministers, Parliamentarians
and VIPs
Shared Corporate Services
Sub-Total
Intra-agency Services
Office for Infrastructure Development
Whole of DAIS cash
Inter-program eliminations

Consolidation

Program Sub-program

Industrial Relations:
SafeWork SA
Public Sector Workforce Relations
Sub-Total
Employee Advocacy:
Employee Ombudsman Services
Conciliation and Arbitration
Sub-Total
Office for Recreation and Sport:
Recreation and Sport
Racing Policy
Sub-Total
Building Management:
Building Services
Commercial Property Management
Government Employees Residential
Property Management
Inter-program elimination
Sub-Total
Contract and Procurement Services
Information and Communication Technology Services
Community Services:
Service SA
Land Services
Archives and Records Management
Government Publishing SA
Sub-Total
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2005
Assets
Current
Assets Non-

Other than Current Total
Cash Cash Assets Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- 380 270 650
- 197 120 317
- 577 390 967
- 150 580 730
- 150 580 730
- 467 133 189 133 656
- 467 133 189 133 656
- 37 754 10 290 48 044
- 13 275 227 917 241 192
- 3 499 188 152 191 651
- (3327) - (3327)
- 51 201 426 359 477 560
- 4 288 896 5184
- 17 224 79 407 96 631
- 1067 902 1969
- 5415 1393 6 808
- 233 3998 4231
- 321 178 499
- 7 036 6471 13 507
- 927 5813 6 740
- 81 430 123 753 205 183
- 663 3503 4 166
- 83 020 133 069 216 089
- 5782 8 663 14 445
- 1 18 19
69 815 - - 69 815
- (2 339) (6 000) (8 339)
69 815 167 407 783 042 1 020 264

2005

Liabilities

Current Non-Current Total Net
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2122 3934 6 056 (5 406)
286 766 1052 (735)
2 408 4 700 7 108 (6 141)
68 38 106 (106)
624 953 1577 (847)
692 991 1683 (953)
2 558 5530 8 088 125 568
38 49 87 (87)
2 596 5579 8175 125 481
30 014 6 075 36 089 11 955
6 402 20 714 27 116 214 076
1399 321 1720 189 931
(3 327) - (3327) -
34 488 27 110 61 598 415 962
1884 1735 3619 1 565
19 582 2 535 22 117 74 514
931 1629 2 560 (591)
5733 5631 11 364 (4 556)
668 317 985 3 246
432 414 846 (347)
7 764 7 991 15 755 (2 248)




Administrative and Information Services

Balance Sheet - 2005 (continued)

2005
Liabilities
Current Non-Current Total Net
Program Sub-program Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Support Services to Government:
Forensic Services 793 1658 2451 4 289
Light Motor Vehicle Fleet 140 460 98 548 239 008 (33 825)
Vehicles for Ministers, Parliamentarians
and VIPs 172 498 670 (670)
Shared Corporate Services 2 781 5541 8 322 (4 156)
Sub-Total 144 206 106 245 250 451 (34 362)
Intra-agency Services 6774 2 409 9183 5262
Office for Infrastructure Development 41 - 41 (22)
Whole of DAIS cash - - - 69 815
Inter-program eliminations (2 339) (6 000) (8 339) -
Consolidation 218 096 153 295 371 391 648 873
29. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

29.1 Contingent Assets
The Department is not aware of any contingent assets.

29.2 Contingent Liabilities
(i) Guarantees

In 1997 the Government entered into formal arrangements with the South Australian Netball
Association (SANA), regarding the construction of a netball stadium at Mile End. The arrangements
resulted in the SANA securing a loan of $3.5 million from an external banking institution to be
applied with Government funding toward the stadium construction. As part of the arrangements the
loan of SANA is underwritten by the Government. As such the Department is contingently liable for
the outstanding balance of the loan of the SANA. At balance date the outstanding balance of the
loan was $2.78 million. The Department was not required to make any contributions during the
reporting period.

(ii)  Financial Support
As part of the disengagement process from the 'Information Technology Services and State
Economic Development Agreement' with EDS (Australia) Pty Ltd and transition to new service
provider arrangements, DAIS may be liable to contribute towards some of their set up costs. At
balance date it was not possible to reliably estimate the dollar effect.

(iii) Legal Proceedings
The Department (SafeWork SA) is involved in prosecuting breaches under the Occupational Health
Safety and Welfare Act. At balance date there were several matters before the courts which are yet
to be resolved. In the event decisions are awarded in favour of the defendants, the Department will
be liable for the courts costs, which at present cannot be reliably estimated.
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Statement of Administered Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
ADMINISTERED INCOME:
Revenues from SA Government A5 13 555 16 736
Revenues from fees and charges A6 352 050 243 529
Interest A7 108 383
Total Administered Income 365 713 260 648
ADMINISTERED EXPENSES:
Employee expenses A9 3577 3 266
Supplies and services A10 252 324 144 230
Grants All 3 500 5050
Payments to Consolidated Account Al12 102 572 97 925
Total Administered Expenses 361973 250 471
NET OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE RESTRUCTURING 3740 10 177
(Decrease) in net assets due to administrative restructure A8 (2 398) -
NET OPERATING SURPLUS AFTER RESTRUCTURING 1 342 10 177
THE OPERATING SURPLUS IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER
Statement of Administered Assets and Liabilities
as at 30 June 2006
2006 2005
ADMINISTERED CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents Al13 22 242 26 131
Receivables Al4 1444 1104
Total Current Assets 23 686 27 235
ADMINISTERED NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Receivables Al4 86 108
Total Non-Current Assets 86 108
Total Administered Assets 23772 27 343
ADMINISTERED CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables Al5 14 014 12 752
Short-term employee benefits Al5 157 149
Prepaid revenue Al15 1532 1361
Short-term provisions Al6 875 1 600
Outstanding claims Al7 3 208 4914
Total Current Liabilities 19 786 20 776
ADMINISTERED NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term employee benefits Al5 156 175
Outstanding claims Al7 7 299 11 203
Total Non-Current Liabilities 7 455 11 378
Total Administered Liabilities 27 241 32 154
NET (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (3 469) (4 811)
ADMINISTERED EQUITY:
Funds held in trust 5344 5344
Accumulated deficit (8 813) (10 155)
TOTAL ADMINISTERED EQUITY (3 469) (4 811)
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Statement of Changes in Administered Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Funds Accumulated

Held in Surplus

Trust (Deficit) Total
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June 2004 13 (20 226) (20 213)
Error correction A3 - (106) (106)
Reinstate balance at 30 June 2004 13 (20 332) (20 319)
Operating surplus 5331 10177 15 508
Balance at 30 June 2005 5 344 (10 155) (4 811)
Operating surplus - 1 342 1342
Balance at 30 June 2006 5344 (8 813) (3 469)

All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner

Statement of Administered Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2006
2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: (Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH INFLOWS: Note $'000 $'000
Receipts from SA Government 14 368 19 338
Taxes, fees and charges 106 515 105 602
State auctions 6 754 5592
CBA vehicles - 54 056
Gaming machines 22101 23 474
Service SA 215 550 54 558
Other receipts 108 5 343
Total Cash Inflows 365 396 267 963
CASH OUTFLOWS:

Employees payments (3 588) (3 277)
Grants (3 500) (5 050)
Payment to Consolidated Account (103 984) (87 364)
State auctions (6 548) (5123)
CBA vehicles - (57 027)
Gaming machines (21 977) (23 419)
Service SA (215 551) (54 558)
Payments of outstanding claims (7 370) (4 493)
Payments to suppliers (4 369) (10 989)
Payment due to administrative restructure (2 398) (9 892)
Total Cash Outflows (369 285) (261 192)
Net Cash (Outflows) Inflows from Operating Activities A18 (3 889) 6771
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD (3 889) 6771
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY 26 131 19 360
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 22 242 26 131
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Administrative and Information Services

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ADMINISTERED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

All accounting policies for the Department for Administrative and Information Services are contained in Note 2
'Summary of Significant Accounting Polices'. The policies outlined in Note 2 apply to both DAIS and the
Administered Financial Statements.

Administered Items

The following funds and financial transactions were administered by the Department as at 30 June 2006. They do
not represent controlled transactions of the Department. As such, they are not recognised in the financial
statements of the Department.

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A2.6

A2.7

Commonwealth Bank of Australia (CBA) Deposit Account

This account was established in May 1996 as a result of the sale and leaseback of the light motor vehicle
fleet. This account is non-interest bearing and is utilised to collect the proceeds from sales of vehicles on
behalf of the fleet owner. In April 2003 a voluntary termination effective over a 24 month period from
10 July 2003 to 10 July 2005 was agreed ahead of the contemplated 2011 expiry.

Gaming Machines Operations Deposit Account
Contract Services holds funds on behalf of the State Procurement Board for the purchase and sale of
gaming machines as provided for under section 26 of the Gaming Machines Act 1992.

Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund

The Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund (the GWRC Fund) was established to
provide for the funding of rehabilitation programs and payment of workers compensation benefits for
government workers in accordance with current workers compensation legislation and in respect of claims
for damages at common law for injury and disease suffered as a result of work.

Land Services Regulatory Fees

The Land Services Group collects regulated fees and charges revenue through various land administration
Acts administered under the statutory authority of the Registrar General and the Surveyor General.
The revenue is collected through the following legislation:

Real Property Act 1886, Regulation 3

Strata Titles Act 1988, Regulation 4

Community Titles Act 1996, Schedule 2

Real Properties (Land Division) Regulations 1995, Schedule 1
Bills of Sale Act 1886, Regulation 4

Registration of Deeds Act 1935, Regulation 3, Schedule 1
Workers Liens Act 1893, Regulation 3, Schedule 1

Land Services Trust Funds
The Department administers the following trust accounts in accordance with:

. Real Property Act Assurance Fund (RPAAF) - Section 201 Real Property Act 1886
. Real Property Act Trust Accounts - Section 146 Real Property Act 1886
. Workers Liens Trust Account - Section 16 Workers Liens Act 1893.

Major Administered Projects

The Department holds funds in trust for capital works on behalf of other agencies for certain major projects.
The Department holds any carried forward funds on behalf of the Government and applies expenditure to
these projects subject to project manager approval.

This arrangement has been established for the following projects with DAIS as the controlling agency:

. Asbestos and Heritage Maintenance Program
o Building Security Program for Whole of Government

Due to the Administrative Restructure of the Office for Infrastructure Development (OFID) from DAIS to the
Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure (DTEI) effective 1 July 2005 the following projects
have been transferred to DTEI as the controlling agency:

. Glenelg Foreshore
. Outer Harbour Head Works
. West Beach Reserve

Recreation and Sport Fund

The Department administers this fund on behalf of the Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing. In
accordance with provisions of the Soccer Football Pools Act 1981, Racing Act 1976, and State Lotteries
Act 1966, monies are paid into the Fund for the purpose of supporting and developing such recreational and
sporting facilities and services within the state, as are approved by the Minister.

The major sources of annual income are receipts from licensees to promote, conduct and operate soccer
pools, and income derived from designated sports lotteries. Soccer pool income is returned to the
Treasurer at the end of each financial year under an administrative arrangement agreed to in 1995.
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A3.

AA4.

AS5.

A6.

A2.8 Special Acts Salaries
The Department receives a separate appropriation for the payment of salaries in relation to:

. Minister for Administrative Services

. Presidents, Deputy Presidents and Magistrates of the Industrial Relations Court and Commission
and Workers Compensation Tribunal

. Valuer-General

. Employee Ombudsman

Funding is provided under 'Recurrent Expenditure - Special Acts'. The Department has no control over the
use of these funds.

A2.9 Sport and Recreation Fund
The Department administers this fund on behalf of the Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing. In
accordance with provisions of the Gaming Machines (Miscellaneous Amendments) Act 1966, gaming tax
paid to the Treasurer by holders of Gaming Machine licences, is paid into the Sport and Recreation Fund to
provide assistance to sport and recreation organisations. Funds are allocated under the directions of the
Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing in consultation with the Economic and Finance Committee of
Parliament. Funding can only be provided to organisations that do not hold Gaming Machine licences.

A2.10 Service SA
Service SA provides a range of services to the South Australian public on behalf of other SA Government
Departments. All monies collected by Service SA are deposited into a DAIS bank account and disbursed to
the appropriate department.

A2.11 State Government Auctions
Contract and Procurement Services (a program within DAIS ) holds proceeds on behalf of agencies from the
auction of government motor vehicles and other plant and equipment.

Error Correction

During the financial year a review of the accounting treatment pertaining to DAIS operations recommended that
the accounting treatment for certain major activities be classified and disclosed as either controlled activities or
administered items. The following activities were reclassified.

Medical Specialists Fund
The Medical Specialists Fund was reclassified as a controlled activity following review. Cash of $0.106 million was
adjusted from the previous year balance.

Service SA
The gross inflows and outflows representing fees collected on behalf of other government agencies are now
disclosed as an administered item.

State Government Auctions
All revenues and expenses relating to the sale of DAIS owned assets are now only recorded as transactions of
DAIS.

Changes in Accounting Policy
Explanation of Transition to AIFRS
The Department has adopted AIFRS for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006.

The adoption of AIFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the Statement of Administered Income and
Expenses or Statement of Administered Cash Flows.

Revenues from SA Government 2006 2005
Appropriation and funding: $'000 $'000
Special Acts 6 473 3817
Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund 3882 5795
Major projects 3 200 7124

13 555 16 736

Fees and Charges
Fees and charges received/receivable from entities within the SA Government:

Other fees and charges - 568
Project revenue 65 906
Betting and gaming revenue 3703 3 700

Total Fees and Charges - SA Government 3768 5174

Fees and charges received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government:

Regulatory fees 102 569 97 925
State Government auctions 6 664 4 895
Gaming machines 22 098 23 096
Motor vehicle sales - 53 497
Service SA 216 425 54 635
Other 526 4 307

Total Fees and Charges - Non-SA Government Entities 348 282 238 355

Total Fees and Charges 352 050 243 529
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AS8.

A9S.

A10.

Al1l.

Other Revenues from SA Government
Interest

Net Revenue (Expenses) from Administrative Restructure

Administrative and Information Services

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
108 383
108 383

On 18 April 2005, the Government announced the transfer of the Office for Infrastructure Development (OFID) to

the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure (DTEI).
item of OFID has also transferred to DTEI.
$2.398 million was effective on 1 July 2005.

The following administered assets and liabilities were transferred to DTEI
Assets:
Current
Total Assets

On 11 March 2004, the government announced the transfer of the

The ongoing major projects, an administered
For accounting and reporting purposes the transfer of funds for

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
2 398 -
2 398 -

Department of Aboriginal Affairs and

Reconciliation to the Department for Families and Communities. The ATSIS Capital Works Fund, an administered

item of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs and Reconciliation, has also transferred to that department. For
accounting and reporting purposes the transfer was effective on 1 July 2004.
The following administered assets and liabilities were transferred from the 2006 2005
Department: $'000 $'000
Assets:
Current - 9 922
Total Assets - 9 922
Liabilities:
Current - 9 922
Total Liabilities - 9922
Net Assets (Liabilities) - -
Employee Benefit Costs
Payments to parties external to SA Government:
Wages and salaries 2744 2431
Long service leave 3 176
Annual leave 72 52
Payments to SA Government:
Employment on-costs - Superannuation 577 445
Employment on-costs - Other 181 162
Total Employee Benefit Costs 3577 3 266
Supplies and Services
Supplies and Services provided by entities within the SA Government:
Professional fees 5 1617
State Government auctions 6 631 4 906
Project expenditure 3574 3513
Gaming machine expenditure 280 441
Service SA 216 425 54 635
Others 214 455
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 227 129 65 567
Supplies and Services provided by entities external to the SA Government:
Professional fees 61 52
Gaming machines 19 124 16 558
Gaming licences 2 800 6 350
Disbursement of vehicle proceeds - 54 056
Project expenditure 4 2 557
Others 3 206 (910)
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 25 195 78 663
Total Supplies and Services 252 324 144 230
Grants
Grants paid/payable to entities within the SA Government:
Grants 3 500 5 050
Total Grants - SA Government Entities 3 500 5 050
Total Grants 3 500 5050
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Al12,

A13.

Al4.

A15.

A1l6.

Payment to Consolidated Account
Payment to Consolidated Account

Total Payment to Consolidated - SA Government Entities

Cash
Deposit with the Treasurer

Receivables
Current:
Accrued revenue
Receivables
Total Current Receivables

Non-Current:
Receivables
Total Non-Current Receivables

Total Receivables

Receivables from SA Government entities:
Accrued revenue
Receivables
Total Receivables from SA Government Entities

Receivables from Non-SA Government entities:
Receivables
Accrued revenue
Total Receivables from Non-SA Government Entities

Total Receivables

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Payables
Employee benefits
Prepaid revenue
Provision for legal fees
Outstanding claims (refer to the GWRC Fund)

Non-Current Liabilities:
Employee benefits
Outstanding claims (refer to the GWRC Fund)

Total Administered Liabilities

Liabilities to SA Government Entities:
Payables
Provision for legal fees
Total Liabilities to SA Government Entities

Liabilities to Non-SA Government Entities:
Payables
Employee benefits
Prepaid revenue
Outstanding claims (refer to the GWRC Fund)
Total Liabilities to Non-SA Government Entities

Total Liabilities

Provisions
Current:
Legal fees

Total Current Provisions

Movement in Provisions:
Balance at 1 July
Provision recognised
Payments

Balance at 30 June

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
102 572 97 925
102 572 97 925
22 242 26 131
65 -
1379 1104
1444 1104
86 108

86 108
1530 1212
65 -
132 729
197 729
1333 483
1333 483
1530 1212
14 014 12 752
157 149
1532 1361
875 1 600

3 208 4914
19 786 20 776
156 175

7 299 11 203
7 455 11 378
27 241 32 154
12 248 10 642
875 1 600
13 123 12 242
1766 2110
313 324
1532 1361
10 507 16 117
14 118 19 912
27 241 32 154
875 1 600
875 1 600

1 600 -
- 1 600
(725) -
875 1 600

Major Projects has an estimated $0.875 ($1.6) million obligation for legal costs not yet finalised.
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Al17. Outstanding Claims 2006 2005
$'000 $'000

Current 3 208 4914
Non-current 7 299 11 203

Total Outstanding Claims 10 507 16 117

Movement in Outstanding Claims

Balance at 1 July 16 117 21 634
Gain (Loss) from claims liability estimate 2 829 (1216)
Settlements (8 439) (4 301)

Balance at 30 June 10 507 16 117

A18. Cash Flow Reconciliation
(a) Reconciliation of Cash
Cash and Cash Equivalents as 30 June as per:

Statement of Administered Cash Flows 22 242 26 131

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Net
Cost of Services

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (3 889) 6771
Administrative restructure 2 398 (5 331)

Change in Assets/Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables 318 (2 144)
(Increase) Decrease in payables (1 262) (2 633)
(Increase) Decrease in employee benefits 11 12
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid revenue (171) 9 585
(Increase) Decrease in provisions 725 (1 600)
Decrease (Increase) in outstanding claims 5610 5517
Net Cost of Services from Ordinary Activities 3740 10 177

A19. Statement of Administered Income and Expenses

Administered Revenues Administered Expenses
Total Total
Receipts Revenues Admin- Other Admin-
& Other from istered Employee Operating istered
Revenue SA Govt Revenues Expenses Expenses Expenses
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
CBA vehicles - - - - - - -
Gaming machines 22 204 - 22 204 - 22 204 22 204 -
Government Workers Rehabilitation
and Compensation Fund - 3882 3882 - 2928 2928 954
Land Services Group regulatory fees 102 572 - 102 572 - 102 572 102 572 -
Land Services Group Trust Funds 525 - 525 - 525 525 -
Major administered projects 65 3200 3 265 - 3578 3578 (313)
Rec and Sport Fund 203 - 203 - - - 203
Special Acts salaries - 6473 6473 3577 - 3577 2 896
Sport and Rec Fund 3 500 - 3 500 - 3 500 3 500 -
Service SA 216 425 - 216 425 - 216 425 216 425 -
State Government auctions 6 664 - 6 664 - 6 664 6 664 -
Total 352 158 13 555 365 713 3577 358 396 361 973 3 740
A20. Statement of Administered Assets and Liabilities
2006 2005
Non- Non- Net Net
Current Current Total Current Current Total (Liabilities) (Liabilities)
Assets Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities  Liabilities Assets Assets
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
CBA vehicles 253 - 253 - - - 253 253
Gaming machines 1532 - 1532 1532 - 1532 - -
Government Workers Rehabilitation
and Compensation Fund (444) 86 (358) 4 559 7 299 11 858 (12 216) (13 170)
Land Services Group
regulatory fees 9 149 - 9 149 9 149 - 9 149 - -
Land Services Group Trust Funds 6 642 - 6 642 1297 - 1297 5 345 5 345
Major administered projects 1493 - 1493 1683 - 1683 (190) 2521
Rec and Sport Fund 444 - 444 - - - 444 241
Special Acts salaries 837 - 837 157 156 313 524 (2372)
Sport and Rec Fund 2371 - 2371 - - - 2371 2371
Service SA 1 255 - 1 255 1255 - 1 255 - -
State Government auctions 154 - 154 154 - 154 - -
Total 23 686 86 23772 19 786 7 455 27 241 (3 469) (4 811)
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A21. Remuneration of Employees
Amounts received or receivable by employees as Administered Items whose remuneration is greater than
$100 000. The amounts include salaries, related payments and superannuation benefits.

2006 2005

$'000 $'000

3 348 2 820

2006 2005

The number of employees of the Department whose remuneration falls within the Number of Number of
following bands for the year ended were: Employees Employees
$120 000 - $129 999 - 1
$130 000 - $139 999 1 -
$150 000 - $159 999 1 1
$170 000 - $179 999 - 1
$180 000 - $189 999 1 -
$220 000 - $229 999 - 1
$230 000 - $239 999 - 1
$240 000 - $249 999 2 1
$270 000 - $279 999 - 1
$290 000 - $299 999 1 -
$310 000 - $319 999 2 -
$330 000 - $339 999 - 2
$340 000 - $349 999 - 1
$350 000 - $359 999 3 -
$370 000 - $379 999 - 1
$380 000 - $389 000 1 -
12 11
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GOVERNMENT WORKERS REHABILITATION AND COMPENSATION FUND

ADMINISTERED RESPONSIBILITY

The Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund (the GWRC Fund) is administered (but not
controlled) by the Department for Administrative and Information Services (DAIS).

Costs of the Fund are processed through a non-interest bearing Special Deposit Account titled ‘Government
Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund’. The payments processed through the account include all
lump-sum claim payments and costs of administering the GWRC Fund. The principal source of funds consists
of monies provided to the GWRC Fund by the State Government.

The GWRC Fund was established to provide funding for the rehabilitation programs and payments of workers
compensation benefits for government workers in accordance with current workers compensation legislation
and for claims for damages at common law for injury and disease suffered as a result of work.

Over the past 13 years the responsibility for meeting the cost of certain aspects of claims has gradually been
devolved to Government agencies. As at 30 June 2004 the GWRC Fund was closed to any new claims, with
the responsibility for meeting all claim costs being transferred to Government agencies. The impact of this

change is that from 1 July 2004 the GWRC Fund will only meet certain costs of existing claims as at
30 June 2004.

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 31(1)(b) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to audit the
accounts of the Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund for each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to assess
the controls exercised by the Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund in relation to the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of
liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls were consistent with the prescribed elements of the
Financial Management Framework as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 2 Financial Management Policies.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an audit opinion to be formed on the financial statements and internal controls.

The major focus of the audit was financial reporting, including valuations undertaken of the Fund’s liabilities
and assets, where applicable. The audit also included a review of controls over the claims management
system.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS

Audit Opinions

Audit of the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Treasurer’'s Instructions
promulgated under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, applicable accounting standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the financial position of the

Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund as at 30 June 2006, its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended.
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Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund in
relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the
incurring of liabilities are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the
Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund have been conducted properly and in accordance
with law.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT
Outstanding Claims

The GWRC Fund’s Balance Sheet is dominated by the provision for outstanding claims, which by its nature is
subjective. As a result, an independent actuary is appointed to undertake an analysis each year of the
outstanding claims liability for the whole of government.

The outstanding claims liability is based on the number of claims reported and payments for each payment
type during each accident period. The actuary then uses a statistical model to estimate the total outstanding
claims. The liability is adjusted for several factors, including inflating claims and then discounting them to
their present value and an estimate of the cost of administering the outstanding claims.

The following chart shows the total outstanding claims liability for the four years to 2006.
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The outstanding claim liability for the GWRC Fund as at 30 June 2006 was $10.5 million ($16.1 million). The
decrease of $5.6 million is due to lump sum settlements and the reassessment of the outstanding claims
liability by the actuary. As noted above, the scheme was closed to new claims from 1 July 2004 and
consequently claim liabilities should continue to reduce over time reflecting the settlement of existing claims.
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
INCOME: Note $'000 $'000

Revenues from SA Government 3 882 5795

Gain from claims liability estimate 5 - 1216

Gain from recoveries estimate - 254
Total Income 3 882 7 265

EXPENSES:

Loss from claims liability estimate 5 2 829 -

Loss from recoveries estimate 15 -

Other expenses 6 85 70
Total Expenses 2929 70

OPERATING SURPLUS 953 7 195
TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY OTHER THAN THOSE RESULTING
FROM TRANSACTIONS WITH THE SA GOVERNMENT AS
OWNER 953 7 195
Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2006
2006 2005
CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000

Cash and cash equivalents 7 (487) 3139

Receivables 8(a) 43 36
Total Current Assets (444) 3175

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

Receivables 8(b) 86 108
Total Non-Current Assets 86 108
Total Assets (358) 3283

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Payables 9 1 351 335

Outstanding claims liability 5 3 208 4914
Total Current Liabilities 4 559 5 249

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Outstanding claims liability 5 7 299 11 203
Total Non-Current Liabilities 7 299 11 203
Total Liabilities 11 858 16 452

NET DEFICIENCY (12 216) (13 169)
EQUITY:

Accumulated deficit (12 216) (13 169)
TOTAL EQUITY (12 216) (13 169)

THE TOTAL EQUITY IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June (13 169) (20 364)
Net income recognised directly in equity 953 7 195
Balance at 30 June (12 216) (13 169)
All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner
Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006
2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: (Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH OUTFLOWS: Note $'000 $'000
Claims payments (7 370) (4 493)
Other payments (138) (94)
Cash used in Operating Activities (7 508) (4 587)
CASH INFLOWS:
Other receipts - 349
Transfer from Targeted Voluntary Separation Package Scheme - 912
Cash generated from Operating Activities - 1261
CASH FLOWS FROM SA GOVERNMENT:
Receipts from SA Government 3 882 5795
Net Cash (used in) provided by Operating Activities 12 (3 626) 2 469
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3 626) 2 469
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY 3139 670
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE (487) 3139

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Objectives
The Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund (the Fund) was established to provide for the
funding of rehabilitation programs and payment of workers compensation benefits for Government workers in
accordance with current workers compensation legislation and in respect of claims for damages at common law for
injury and disease suffered as a result of work.

From 1 July 2004, the Treasurer approved the closure of the Fund to any new liabilities from claims formally
registered on/from that date. Agencies are now responsible for all costs associated with workers compensation
claims registered from 1 July 2004.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Accounting
The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with applicable Accounting Standards and Treasurer’'s Instructions and Accounting Policy Statements
promulgated under the provision of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987.
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Administrative and Information Services —
Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund

Basis of Accounting (continued)

These Financial Statements are the first statements to be prepared in accordance with Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). AASB 1 First-time Adoption of
Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied in preparing these
statements. Previous Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Australian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (AGAAP).

The Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund's Income Statement, Balance Sheet and
Statement of Changes in Equity have been prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with
historical cost convention, except for certain assets that were valued in accordance with the valuation policy
applicable.

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared on a cash basis.

The financial report has been prepared based on a 12 month operating cycle and presented in Australian
currency.

The Reporting Entity

The financial report encompasses all activities transacted through a Special Deposit Account titled
‘Government Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Fund’. The Fund is administered by, but not
controlled by, the Department for Administrative and Information Services.

The Fund’s principal sources of funding consist of monies appropriated to the Department for Administrative
and Information Services for the Fund by Parliament. These monies are recognised as revenues from
SA Government.

Comparative Information
The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific Accounting Policy Statement or Australian Accounting Standard have required a change.

Comparative figures have been reinstated on an AIFRS basis except for financial instrument information as
permitted by AASB 1.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

Income and Expenses
Income and expenses are recognised in the Fund's Income Statement when and only when it is probable
that the flow of economic benefits to or from the entity will occur and can be reliably measured.

Income and expenses have been classified according to their nature in accordance with Accounting Policy
Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework APS 3.5 and have not been offset unless
required or permitted by a specific accounting standard.

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework
APSs 4.1 and 4.2 the financial report's notes disclose revenues, expenses, financial assets and financial
liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is with an entity within the SA Government as at the reporting
date, classified according to their nature.

Claims expenses met from the Fund
The following expenses for claims are met by the Fund:

. Lump sum settlements for small and certain medium sized Government agencies covered by the
Fund.

. A portion of lump sum settlements to larger Government agencies.

. Income maintenance, legal costs and other costs for three specific agencies.

Revenues from SA Government
Revenues from SA Government are recognised upon receipt.

Current and Non-Current Classification

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. The Fund has a clearly
identifiable operating cycle of 12 months. Assets and liabilities that are sold, consumed or realised as part
of the normal operating cycle even when they are not expected to be realised within 12 months after the
reporting date have been classified as current assets or current liabilities. All other assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call and are used in the cash
management function on a day-to-day basis. Cash deposits are non-interest bearing.

Cash is measured at nominal value.
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2.10 Receivables
Funding is obtained by recoveries from third parties. The level of receivables in relation to third party
recoveries has been established on the basis of an independent actuarial assessment of the estimated
revenue expected from recovery action against third parties. The actuarial assessment includes the
separation of the receivable into current and non-current.

2.11 Payables
Payables include creditors and accrued expenses.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received prior to the end of the reporting
period that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received
relating to the normal operations of the Fund.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period and where an invoice has not been received.

All amounts are measured at their nominal amount and are normally settled within 30 days from the date of
the invoice or date the invoice is first received, in accordance with TI 11 Payment of Creditors’ Accounts.

2.12 Outstanding Claims Liability
The provision for outstanding liability of the Fund covers those claims expenses stated in Note 2.6 as being
met from the Fund.

A liability for outstanding claims is recognised in respect of claims incurred but not yet paid and the
anticipated direct and indirect costs of settling those claims.

The liability for outstanding claims has been established on the basis of an independent actuarial
assessment of the estimated costs of settlement of claims, inflated for the anticipated effects of inflation
and other factors, and discounted to a present value at balance date.

3. Financial Risk Management
The Fund has significant non-interest bearing assets and liabilities. The Fund's exposure to market risk and cash
flow interest risk is minimal.

In relation to liquidity/funding risk, the continued existence of the Fund in its present form, and with its present
programs, is dependent on Government policy and on continuing appropriations by Parliament for the Fund's
administration and programs.

4. Changes in Accounting Policies
Explanation of transition to AIFRS
The Fund has adopted the AIFRS for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006.

The adoption of AIFRS has not resulted in any material adjustments to the Income Statement or Cash Flow
Statement.

5. Outstanding Claims Liability

The Fund’s liability reflects an actuarial assessment of the Government workers compensation liability as outlined
in Note 2.6, according to the experience of claim numbers and payments over the period 1 July 1987 to
30 June 2006. The whole of Government estimate can be found in a report prepared by Taylor Fry Consulting
Actuaries, dated 31 August 2006 and submitted to the Department for Administrative and Information Services.
This report conforms to the WorkCover Guidelines for Actuaries, Accounting Standard AASB 137 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and Professional Standard PS 300 Actuarial Reports and Advice on
General Insurance Technical Liabilities of the Institute of Actuaries of Australia. The whole-of-Government
estimate in relation to this Fund is detailed below.

Movement in Outstanding Claims 2006 2005

$'000 $'000

Carrying amount at 1 July 16 117 21 634

Settlements (8 439) (4 301)

Loss (gain) from claims liability estimate 2 829 (1.216)

Carrying amount at 30 June 10 507 16 117
Total outstanding claims:

Income maintenance 409 965

Lump sum settlements 9 694 14 788

Other 404 364

10 507 16 117

Current 3 208 4914

Non-Current 7 299 11 203
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Other Expenses 2006 2005
Other expenses paid/payable to entities within the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department 1 9
Other 2 -
Total Other Expenses to SA Government Entities 3 9

Other expenses paid/payable to entities external to the SA Government:

Consultants @ 61 51
Other 21 10
Total Other Expenses - Non-SA Government Entities 82 61
Total Other Expenses 85 70

(i) The consultant expenses relate to the services provided by the Actuary (Taylor Fry Consulting Actuaries).

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Deposits with the Treasurer (487) 3139

Receivables

Receivables from SA Government Entities 2006 2005
(a) Current: $'000 $'000
Receivables 17 -
Third party recoveries 26 36
43 36

(b) Non-Current:
Third party recoveries 86 108
86 108
Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 129 144

Credit Risk

Receivables are raised for goods and services provided for which payment has not been received.
Receivables are normally settled within 30 days and are non-interest bearing.

The Fund's third party recoveries receivable was determined by an independent actuary valuation performed by
Taylor Fry Consulting Actuaries.

The carrying amount of receivables approximates net fair value due to being receivable on demand. In addition
there is no concentration of credit risk.

Payables 2006 2005
Payables to SA Government Entities: $'000 $'000
Lump sum settlements - 32
Audit fees 7 13
Total Payables to Other SA Government Entities 7 45
Payables to Non-SA Government Entities:
Consultant fees 61 51
Lump sum settlements 1 283 182
Other - 57
Total Payables to Non-SA Government Entities 1 344 290
Total Payables 1351 335
Credit Risk

Creditors and accruals are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid. Sundry creditors are normally settled within
30 days. All payables are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of payables approximates net fair value due
to the amounts being payable on demand.

Commitments
There is no capital expenditure contracted at the reporting date.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
The Fund is not aware of any contingent assets or liabilities. In addition the Fund has made no guarantees.
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12.

Cash Flow Reconciliation
Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June as per

Cash Flow Statement

Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
to Net Revenue (Cost of providing Services)

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flow from SA Government

Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables
(Increase) Decrease in payables
Decrease in claims liability

Net Revenue (Cost of Providing Services) from Ordinary Activities
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2006 2005
$'000 $'000
(487) 3139
(487) 3139

(3 626) 2 469

(3 882) (5 795)

(15) (1 007)

(1 016) 216
5 610 5517

(2 929) 1 400




ART GALLERY BOARD

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE

Establishment

The Board was established under subsection 4(1) of the Art Gallery Act 1939.
Functions

The functions of the Art Gallery Board are:

. Undertake the care and control of the Art Gallery and of all the lands and premises placed under the
care and control of the Board.

. Undertake the care and control of all works of art, exhibits and other personal property acquired for
the purposes of the Art Gallery.

. Assist in the promotion and supervision of art galleries, and collections of art, and any body or
association established for the promotion of art within the State.

Structure

The structure of the Art Gallery of South Australia is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

Minister for the
Arts

Board

Director

Public Relations Publications Manager Public

Curators General Manager and Sponsorship Manager Programs

- Asian Art

- Australian Art

- European and Australian Decorative Art
- European Art

- Australian Painting and Sculptures

- Prints, Drawings and Photographs

AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 31(1)(b) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and subsection 26(2) of the Art Gallery Act
1939 provides for the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of the Art Gallery Board for each financial year.
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Art Gallery Board
Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to assess
the controls exercised by the Art Gallery Board in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of
money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the
Financial Management Framework as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 2 Financial Management Policies.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an audit opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.

During 2005-06, specific areas of audit attention included:

expenditure including accounts payable and payroll

revenue including cash receipting and banking and bookshop operations
property plant and equipment

heritage collection valuation

financial management reporting.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS

Audit Opinions

Audit of the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Treasurer’'s Instructions
promulgated under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, applicable Accounting Standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the financial position of the Art Gallery
of South Australia as at 30 June 2006 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then
ended.

Assessment of Controls

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Art Gallery of South Australia in relation to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities
are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Art Gallery of South
Australia have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Audit Communications to Management

The results of the audit were satisfactory and no major matters were raised with management.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT

Highlights of Financial Report

2006 2005 Percentage
$'000 $'000 Change
INCOME
State Government grants 6 061 6 376 (5)
Other income 7 554 8 758 (14)
Total Income 13 615 15 134 (10)
EXPENSES
Employee benefits 2 880 2777 4
Other expenses 6 895 7 477 (8)
Total Expenses 9 775 10 254 (5)
NET RESULT 3 840 4 880 (21)
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2006 2005 Percentage
$'000 $'000 Change
Net Cash Flows from Operations 2943 4 470 (34)
ASSETS
Current assets 4 490 3 892 15
Non-current assets 629 206 579 208 9
Total Assets 633 696 583 100 9
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 2176 983 n/a
Non-current liabilities 550 521 6
Total Liabilities 2726 1504 81
EQUITY 630 970 581 596 8

Income Statement

Income

Income for the year totalled $13.6 million ($15.1 million). The decrease of $1.5 million is attributable mainly

to:

. a decrease of $1.6 million in the value of bequests and donations received this year. Bequests and
donations received in 2005-06 totalled $1.8 million ($3.4 million). The level of this source of revenue
is uncertain from year to year;

. an increase in donations of heritage assets of $343 000.

Grants from the State Government represent 45 percent (42 percent) of income which is consistent with the
view that the Board is dependent on the ongoing financial support of the State Government as expressed in

Note 2.20 to the Financial Statements.

Bequests and donations represent 26 percent (32 percent) of total income.

A structural analysis of income for the Board in the four years to 2006 is presented in the following chart.
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Expenses

O Other Income

O Government Grants
O Bequests and Donations

Expenditure for the year decreased by $479 000 to $9.8 million. The decrease is attributable mainly to:

. a decrease in supplies and services costs of $925 000. The principal item contributing to the decrease
is a reduction in the loss on sale of investments of $532 000;

. an increase of $454 000 in depreciation.
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For the four years to 2006, a structural analysis of the main operating expense items for the Board is shown
in the following chart.
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The net result for the year was a surplus of $3.8 million ($4.9 million). The reduction of $1.6 million in
bequests and donations is the major contributing factor in the reduced surplus.

The following chart shows the operating revenues, operating expenses and surpluses for the four years to
2006.
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The following chart shows the movement in the Art Gallery’s cash assets over the five years to 2006.
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Non-Current Assets
Heritage Collections
The Board has accumulated these assets over a significant period of time primarily through the use of
government funding, together with bequests and donations. During the year, heritage assets valued at

$1.8 million were donated to the Board.

The heritage collections were revalued as at 30 June 2006. This resulted in an increase of $45.2 million in
the value of the collections.
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES: Note $'000 $'000
Employee benefits 3 2 880 2777
Supplies and services 4 3535 4 460
Accommodation and facilities 5 2 367 2 478
Depreciation 6 993 539
Total Expenses from Ordinary Activities 9 775 10 254
INCOME:
Sale of goods 1 086 943
Fees and charges 7 946 702
Bequests and donations 1784 3 389
Donations of heritage assets 1810 1467
Sponsorships 69 112
Resources received free of charge 2.4 255 358
Interest and investment income 8 872 1230
Rent and facilities hire 360 328
Profit on sale of assets 4,9 185 24
Other 10 187 205
Total Income 7 554 8 758
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES (2 221) (1 496)
REVENUES FROM SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenue from SA Government 6 061 6 376
Total Revenues from SA Government 6 061 6 376
NET RESULT 3 840 4 880
THE NET RESULT IS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER 3 840 4 880
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2006

2006 2005
CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $’000
Cash and cash equivalents 23 3622 3 255
Receivables 12 66 35
Inventories 585 185
Other 13 217 417
Total Current Assets 4 490 3 892
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment 14 29 096 30 066
Heritage collections 15 596 190 545 721
Investments 16 3920 3421
Total Non-Current Assets 629 206 579 208
Total Assets 633 696 583 100
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 17 1847 631
Unearned income - 65
Employee benefits 18 293 252
Provisions 19 36 35
Total Current Liabilities 2176 983
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 17 42 46
Employee benefits 18 412 387
Provisions 19 96 88
Total Non-Current Liabilities 550 521
Total Liabilities 2726 1504
NET ASSETS 630 970 581 596
EQUITY:
Retained earnings 20 387 979 383 147
Asset revaluation reserve 20 242 991 198 449
TOTAL EQUITY 630 970 581 596
Commitments for Expenditure 21
Contingent Assets and Liabilities 22
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Balance at 30 June 2004
Changes in Accounting Policy
Restated Balance at 30 June 2004
Loss on revaluation of land and buildings during 2004-05
Gain on Revaluation of investments during 2004-05
Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2004-05
Net result for 2004-05
Total recognised income and expense for 2004-05
Balance at 30 June 2005
Changes in Accounting policy
Restated Balance at 30 June 2005
Gain on revaluation of heritage collections
Changes in Accounting Policy
Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2005-06
Net result for 2005-06
Total recognised income and expense for 2005-06
Balance at 30 June 2006

Note

20

20

Asset
Revaluation Retained

Reserve Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
200 108 378 267 578 375
(1 400) - (1 400)
198 708 378 267 576 975
(762) - (762)
305 - 305
(457) - (457)
- 4 880 4 880
(457) 4 880 4 423
198 251 383 147 581 398
198 - 198
198 449 383 147 581 596
45 241 - 45 241
(699) 992 293
44 542 992 45 534
- 3 840 3 840
44 542 4 832 49 374
242 991 387 979 630 970
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Cash Flow Statement

Art Gallery Board

for the year ended 30 June 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation and facilities
Cash used in Operations
CASH INFLOWS:
Sale of goods
Fees and charges
Bequests and donations
Sponsorships
Interest and investment income
Rent and facilities hire
Other
Cash generated from Operations
CASH FLOWS FROM SA GOVERNMENT:

Receipts from SA Government - Recurrent operating grant

Cash generated from SA Government
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of investments
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of heritage collections
Cash used in Investing Activities
CASH INFLOWS:
Proceeds from sales/maturities of investments
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of heritage collections
Cash generated from Investing Activities
Net Cash used in Investing Activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $'000 $'000
(2 802) (2 811)

(3 358) (3 447)

(2 333) (2 556)

(8 493) (8 814)
1072 947

962 727

1784 3389

69 167

965 1024

355 365

168 289

5 375 6 908

6 061 6 376

6 061 6 376

23 2943 4 470
(861) (1827)

(23) (481)

(2 213) (2 689)

(3 097) (4 997)
415 1092

- 6

106 -

521 1098

(2 576) (3 899)
367 571

3 255 2 684

23 3622 3255
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Objectives of the Art Gallery Board (The Board)
The Art Gallery Board is charged with the management of the Art Gallery of South Australia, as prescribed under
the Art Gallery Board Act 1939.

The Art Gallery of South Australia’s objectives are to:

collect heritage and contemporary works of art of aesthetic and art historical or regional significance;
ensure the preservation and conservation of the Gallery collections;
display the collections and to program temporary exhibitions;

research and evaluate the collections, and to make the collections and documentation accessible to others
for the purposes of research, as a basis for teaching and communications;

document the collections within a central cataloguing system;

provide interpretative information about collection displays and temporary exhibitions and other public
programs;

promote the Gallery’s collections and temporary exhibitions;

ensure that the Gallery’s operations, resources and commercial programs are managed efficiently,
responsibly and profitably; and

advise the South Australian Government on the allocation of South Australian resources to works of art,
art collections, art museums and art associations.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

2.2

2.3

Basis of Accounting
The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The statements have been prepared in accordance
with:

. Treasurer’s Instructions and Accounting Policy Statements promulgated under the provision of the
Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 (PFAA);

. applicable Australian Accounting Standards;

. other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

The PFAA and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation of financial
statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards. Accounting Policy Statements
issued pursuant to Treasurer’'s Instructions may modify or clarify accounting standards application,
disclosure, format and wording to provide certainty and to ensure consistency and appropriate reporting
across the public sector.

These financial statements are the first statements to be prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents
to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied in preparing these statements.
Previous financial statements were prepared in accordance with Australian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

The Board’s Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been prepared on
an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost convention, except for certain assets that were
valued in accordance with the valuation policy applicable. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared on
a cash basis.

Sources of Funds

The Board’s principal source of funds consists of grants from the State Government. In addition, the Board
also receives monies from sales, admissions, donations, bequests, sponsorships and other receipts, and
uses the monies for the achievement of its objectives.

Changes in Accounting Policies
Explanation of Transition to AIFRS
The Board has adopted the AIFRS for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006.

The impacts on the financial report due to the adoption of the AIFRS include:

. Valuation of Investments at Cost previously measured at Market Value (Accounting Policy
Framework IV Financial Asset and Liability Framework APS 2.1). This has resulted in a material
decrement of $1 202 000 since 1 July 2004. It has also allowed the Board to recognise previous
year's profits on sale of investments of $699 000. The Statement of Changes in Equity reports the
restated 1 July 2004 and 1 July 2005 balances as a result of adopting this AIFRS.

. Employee Benefits payable later than 12 months are measured at present value, previously
measured at nominal amounts (AASB 119 Employee Benefits).
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Art Gallery Board

Initial Recognition of Publications Stock
The Board has recognised publications stock at cost for the first time in 2005-06. This has resulted in an
increase of inventories and retained earnings of $293 000.

Other Changes

A number of Australian Accounting Standards have been issued or amended and are applicable to the Board
but are not yet effective. The Board has assessed the impact of the new and amended standards and there
will be no impact on the accounting policies of the Board.

Income and Expenses

Income and expenses are recognised in the Board’s Income Statement when and only when it is probable
that the flow of economic benefits to or from the entity will occur and can be reliably measured. Income and
expenses have been classified according to their nature in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework II
General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework APS 3.5 and have not been offset unless required or
permitted by a specific accounting standard.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to customers. Interest revenue is
recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.
Income from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customers.
Government grants are recognised as income in the period in which the Board obtains control over the
grants.

Resources Received Free of Charge
Resources received free of charge are recorded as revenue and expenditure in the Income Statement at
their fair value in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework APS 2.12.

Under an arrangement with Arts SA and Artlab Australia, a division of the Department of the Premier and
Cabinet, Artlab Australia receives SA Government appropriation to perform conservation services on the Art
Gallery’s heritage collections. The value of this work performed is recognised as resources received free of
charge in income and a corresponding amount included as conservation work expenditure in Supplies and
Services (Note 4).

Transactions with SA Government

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework
APSs 4.1 and 4.2 the financial report’s notes disclose income, expenses, financial assets and financial
liabilities where the counter party/transaction is with an entity within the SA Government as at the
reporting date, classified according to their nature.

Current and Non-Current Items

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. The Board has a clearly
identifiable operating cycle of 12 months. Therefore assets and liabilities that will be realised as part of the
normal operating cycle will be classified as current assets or current liabilities. All other assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank and cash on
hand. Cash is measured at nominal value.

Receivables
Receivables include amounts receivable from trade, prepayments and other accruals.

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of selling goods and services to the public and agencies. Trade
receivables are generally receivable within 30 days after the issue of an invoice or the goods/services have
been provided under a contractual arrangement.

Other debtors arise outside the normal course of selling goods and services to other entities and to the
public.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or their net realisable value.

Investments
Investments are brought to account at cost in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework IV Financial
Asset and Liability Framework APS 2.1.

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition

The cost method of accounting is used for the initial recording of all acquisitions of assets. Cost is
determined as the fair value of the assets given the consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition.
Assets donated during the year have been brought to account at fair value.

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework APS 7.2 componentisation

of complex assets is only performed when the complex asset’s fair value at the time of acquisition is greater
than $5 million for infrastructure assets and $1 million for other assets.
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2.11

2.12

2.13

Valuation of Non-Current Assets

Land and Buildings

An independent valuation of the land and buildings was conducted as at 30 June 2005 by the Australian
Valuation Office. Land and buildings are independently valued every three years. The valuation at 30 June
2005 was prepared on a fair value basis instead of the deprival value basis previously used. This change
was required by AASB 1041 Revaluation of Non-Current Assets. The valuation resulted in a decrement of
$762 000, which was charged to the Asset Revaluation Reserve in 2004-05.

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment including computer equipment, on acquisition, has been deemed to be held at fair
value.

Heritage Collections

The heritage collections are large and diverse. They include many items that are complex to value given
considerations of market value and their uniqueness. The Board adopted the following methodology for
valuing heritage assets held as at 30 June 2006.

Works of art were valued by the appropriate internal curator and external valuers either by valuing all items
or establishing an average value through representative sampling and in the event of variations between
the values the following policy was adopted. Where there was disagreement between the internal and
external valuation, the higher valuation was recorded as the correct valuation unless the difference in the
valuation was substantial and greater than 50 percent in which case the average of the two valuations was
recorded as the correct valuation.

Where there was minor disagreement between the internal and external valuation, the higher valuation was
recorded if provided by the external valuer. When the external valuation was lower than the internal, and
when the difference in the two valuations was substantial and greater than 50 percent, the average of the
two valuations was recorded as the correct valuation.

The external valuations were carried out by the following recognised industry experts:

Collection Industry Expert
Australian Paintings and Sculptures Ms J Hylton and Ms S Thomas
Australian and European Decorative Arts Mr K Rayment
Asian Art Mr D Richards, Mr B Lynch and Mr D Button
European Art:

European collection Pre 1850 Mr P Matthiesen and Mr A Tumble

British collection and European collection

Post 1850 Mr P Nahum

Numismatics Mr G Morton
Krichauf and Murray Stamp Collection Mr B Parker

All collection items with a value greater than $350 000 were valued individually. The Research Library
collections were valued by sampling the collections and providing a market valuation of the entire stock
based on the sample. The values were determined by searching catalogues in second-hand and antiquarian
bookshops. Where a value was not available, an estimate was provided by the Librarian, Ms Jin
Whittington.

The Archival Collections, consisting of ephemera such as material on individual artists and galleries, was
given a nil valuation as there is no reliable market value for this collection.

Impairment of Assets

All non-current assets are tested for indication of impairment at each reporting date. Where there is an
indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. An amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. For revalued assets an
impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation reserve.

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost or revalued amount of each non-
current asset over its expected useful life except for land and heritage collections, which are not
depreciable. Estimates of remaining useful lives are made on a regular basis for all assets, with annual
reassessments for major items.

The expected useful lives are as follows:

Class of Asset Useful Life (Years)
Buildings and improvements Useful life depends on individual asset item
Plant and equipment 3-15

Heritage collections are kept under special conditions so that there is no physical deterioration and they are
anticipated to have very long and indeterminate useful lives. No amount for depreciation has been
recognised, as their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting
period.
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Payables
Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employment on-costs.

Creditors and accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period
that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. All amounts are measured at their nominal amount and
are normally settled within 30 days, in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 11 Payment of Creditors’
Accounts, after the Board receives an invoice.

Employment on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave.

Employee Benefits
These benefits accrue for employees as a result of services provided up to the reporting date that remain
unpaid. Long-term employee benefits are measured at present value and short-term benefits are measured
at nominal amounts.

No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave taken
in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement of sick leave.

(i) Liabilities for Wages, Salaries and Annual Leave
Liabilities for wages, salaries and annual leave have been recognised as the amount unpaid at the
reporting date. The liability for annual leave has been calculated at nominal amounts based on
current remuneration rates as at reporting date. The annual leave liability is expected to be payable
within twelve months and is measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid.

(ii) Long Service Leave
A liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed seven years of
service in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework IV Financial Asset and Liability Framework
APS 5.10. An actuarial assessment of long service leave was undertaken by the Department of
Treasury and Finance.

(iii)  Superannuation
Contributions are made by the Board to several superannuation schemes operated by the State
Government and private sector. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur.
There is no liability for payments to beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the superannuation
schemes.

Workers Compensation Provision

A liability has been reported to reflect unsettled workers compensation claims. The workers compensation
provision is based on an actuarial assessment performed by the Public Sector Occupational Health and
Injury Management Branch of the Department for Administrative and Information Services.

Leases

The Art Gallery Board has entered into a number of operating lease agreements for vehicles and
photocopiers where the lessors effectively retain all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
items held under the operating leases. Operating lease payments are representative of the pattern of
benefits derived from the leased assets and accordingly are charged to the Income Statement in the periods
in which they are incurred.

Comparative Figures

The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific Accounting Policy Statement or Australian Accounting Standard have required a change.
Comparative figures have been restated on an AIFRS basis to assist user’s understanding of the current
reporting period and do not replace the original financial report for the preceding period.

Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except where the amount of GST
incurred by the Board as a purchaser is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office.

The net GST receivable/payable to the Australian Taxation Office is not recognised as a receivable/payable
in the Balance Sheet as the Board is a member of an approved GST group of which Arts SA, a division of
the Department of the Premier and Cabinet, is responsible for the remittance and collection of GST. There
are no cash flows relating to GST transactions with the Australian Taxation Office in the Cash Flow
Statement.

State Government Funding
The financial reports are presented under the assumption of ongoing financial support being provided to the
Board by the State Government.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

145



Art Gallery Board

2.22 Insurance
The Board has arranged, through the SA Government Captive Insurance Corporation, to insure all major
risks of the authority. The excess payable is fixed under this arrangement.

3. Employee Benefits 2006 2005
$'000 $'000

Salaries and wages 2 322 2197
Superannuation 261 234
Payroll tax 151 144
Annual and long service leave 90 110
Other employee related expenses 56 92
Total Employee Benefits 2 880 2777
Remuneration of Employees 2006 2005
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable falls within Number of Number of
the following bands: Employees Employees
$100 000 - $109 999 1 1
$160 000 - $169 999 1 -
Total Number of Employees 2 1

The table includes all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. Remuneration
of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation contributions, fringe
benefits tax and other salary sacrifice benefits. The total remuneration received by these employees for the year
was $265 000 ($104 000).

Targeted Voluntary Separation Packages Scheme (TVSPs)
There were no TVSPs paid in either 2005-06 or 2004-05.

Remuneration of Board Members 2006 2005
The number of Board Members who received remuneration from the Board fell Number of Number of
within the following bands: Members Members
$0 - $9 999 7 7
$10 000 - $19 999 1 1
Total Number of Board Members 8 8

The total remuneration received by these Board Members for the year was $81 000 ($81 000) which included
superannuation contributions.

Related Party Disclosures
During the financial year the following persons held a position on the Art Gallery Board:

Mr M Abbott QC, Chairman Ms L LeCornu

Ms V Hickey Mr P Ward

Ms C S Tweddell Mr A W Gwinnett
Mr A Wynn Mr P Speakman

Board members or their related entities have transactions with the Board that occur within a normal customer or
supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable than those with which it is reasonably expected
the entity would have adopted if the transactions were undertaken with any other entity at arm’s length in similar
circumstances.

4. Supplies and Services 2006 2005
Supplies and Services provided by entities external to the SA Government: $'000 $'000
Administration expenses 357 555
Board expenses 74 74
Preservation activities 32 128
Consultants fees 3 -
Contractors fees 18 72
Cost of goods sold 440 397
Entertainment 25 30
Information technology 30 53
Maintenance 21 28
Marketing and promotion 479 493
Minor equipment purchases and leasing 73 74
Valuation expenses 28 32
Fees - Exhibitions and publications 144 222
Tours 110 40
Loss on sale of investments 71 603
Projects 68 9
Travel and accommodation 82 119
Other 90 62
Total Supplies and Services - Non-SA Government Entities 2 145 2991
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4. Supplies and Services (continued) 2006 2005
Supplies and Services provided by entities within the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Administration expenses 65 95
Business services charge 278 278
Conservation work 363 416
EDS charges 52 20
Insurance and risk management 506 544
Information technology 11 3
Maintenance 56 52
Motor vehicle expenses 18 21
Other 41 40
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 1 390 1469

Total Supplies and Services 3535 4 460
Payments to Consultants 2006 2005
The dollar amount of consultancies paid/payable that fell within the Number of Number of
following bands: Consultants Consultants
$0 - $10 000 1 -
Total Number of Consultancies 1 -

Payments to consultants during 2005-06 totalled $3 000. There were no payments to consultants during 2004-05.

5. Accommodation and Facilities 2006 2005
Accommodation and facilities provided by entities external to the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Accommodation 471 409

Total Accommodation and Facilities - Non-SA Government Entities 471 409

Accommodation and facilities provided by entities within the SA Government:

Accommodation 69 177
Facilities 743 747
Security 1 084 1 145
Total Accommodation and Facilities - SA Government Entities 1 896 2 069
Total Accommodation and Facilities 2 367 2478
6. Depreciation
Buildings and improvements 930 479
Plant and equipment 63 60
Total Depreciation 993 539
7. Fees and Charges
User charges received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government:
Fees for services 497 229
Admissions to temporary exhibitions 449 473
Total User Charges 946 702
8. Interest and Investment Income
Interest from entities within the SA Government 126 93
Interest and investment income from entities external to the SA Government 746 1137
Total Interest and Investment Income 872 1230
9. Profit on Sale of Assets
Plant and equipment:
Proceeds from disposal 20 6
Net book value of assets disposed 20 6

Profit (Loss) on Sale of Plant and Equipment - -

Heritage collections:

Proceeds from disposal 106 -
Net book value of assets disposed 45 -
Profit on Sale of Heritage Collections 61 -

Investments:
Proceeds from the sale of investments 415 1 092
Net book value of investments 362 1671
Profit (Loss) on Sale of Investments 53 (579)

Total Assets:
Total proceeds from disposal 541 1 098
Total net book value of assets 427 1677
Total Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets 114 (579)
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10. Other Income 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Other income received/receivable from entities external to the SA Government:
Recoup recoverables 22 70
Grant from Commonwealth Government 96 75
Other receipts 49 38
Total Other Income - Non-SA Government Entities 167 183

Other income received/receivable from entities within the SA Government:

State Government grants 20 12
Other receipts - 10
Total Other Income - SA Government Entities 20 22
Total Other Income 187 205
11. Auditor’'s Remuneration
Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department 25 22
Total Audit Fees - SA Government Entities 25 22

Other Services
No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department to the Board.

12. Receivables
Receivables from Non-SA Government entities 66 35
Total Receivables 66 35

Interest Rate and Credit Risk
Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been received.

Receivables are normally settled within 30 days. Trade receivables, prepayments and accrued income are
non-interest bearing. It is not anticipated that counterparties will fail to discharge their obligations. The carrying
amount of receivables approximates net fair value due to being receivable on demand. In addition, there is no
concentration of credit risk.

13. Other Current Assets 2006 2005
Other current assets receivable from entities external to the SA Government: $'000 $’000
Prepayments - 26

Accrued income 207 377

Total Other Current Assets - Non-SA Government entities 207 403

Other current assets receivable from entities within the SA Government:

Conservation prepayment - 6
Accrued income 10 8
Total Other Current Assets - SA Government Entities 10 14
Total Other Current Assets 217 417

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Land, buildings and improvements:
Land at valuation 3 625 3625
Buildings and improvements at valuation 40 959 40 959
Accumulated depreciation (15 652) (14 722)
Total Land, Buildings and Improvements 28 932 29 862

Plant and equipment:

Plant and equipment at cost (deemed fair value) 439 436
Accumulated depreciation (275) (232)
Total Plant and Equipment 164 204
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 29 096 30 066

Valuation of Non-current Assets
The valuation of land, buildings and improvements was performed by the Australian Valuation Office as at 30 June

2005.
Reconciliation of Property Plant and Equipment Buildings
and
Improve- Plant and 2006
Land ments Equipment Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 3625 26 237 204 30 066
Additions - - 23 23
Depreciation expense - (930) (63) (993)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 3625 25 307 164 29 096
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Heritage Collections 2006 2005
At At At At
Valuation Cost Total Valuation Cost Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Australian paintings and sculptures 178 175 - 178 175 159 210 3 340 162 550
Australian and European decorative
arts 41 894 - 41 894 29 205 742 29 947
Asian art 14 730 - 14 730 12 473 1212 13 685
European paintings and sculptures 300 000 - 300 000 295 951 1 495 297 446
Prints, drawings and photographs 53 500 - 53 500 35 469 954 36 423
Numismatics 5872 - 5872 3622 - 3622
Philatelic material 435 - 435 500 - 500
Library 1584 - 1584 1482 66 1548
Total Heritage Collections 596 190 - 596 190 537 912 7 809 545 721
Reconciliation of Carrying Amounts Revaluation
of Heritage Collections Balance Increment/ Balance
01.07.05 Additions  Disposals Decrement 30.06.06
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
Australian paintings and sculptures 162 550 1293 (45) 14 377 178 175
Australian and European decorative
arts 29 947 454 - 11 493 41 894
Asian art 13 685 942 - 103 14 730
European paintings and sculptures 297 446 2014 - 540 300 000
Prints, drawings and photographs 36 423 532 - 16 545 53 500
Numismatics 3622 - - 2 250 5872
Philatelic material 500 - - (65) 435
Library 1548 38 - (2) 1 584
Carrying Amount at 30 June 545 721 5273 (45) 45 241 596 190
Reconciliation of Carrying Amounts of Balance Balance
Heritage Collections (continued) 01.07.04  Additions Disposals 30.06.05
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Australian paintings and sculptures 161 040 1510 - 162 550
Australian and European decorative arts 29 414 533 - 29 947
Asian art 13 418 267 - 13 685
European paintings and sculptures 296 068 1378 - 297 446
Prints, drawings and photographs 36 124 299 - 36 423
Numismatics 3622 - - 3622
Philatelic material 500 - - 500
Library 1515 33 - 1548
Carrying Amount at 30 June 541 701 4 020 - 545 721
Investments 2006 2005
Investments with entities other than SAFA: $'000 $'000
Non-Current:
Shares, convertible notes and other investments in companies 3920 3421
Total Non-Current Investments 3920 3421
Total Investments 3920 3421

Investments are carried at cost in accordance with Accounting Policy Framework IV Financial Asset and Liability

Framework APS 2.1. The market value of Investments as at 30 June 2006 is $5 169 000 ($4 623 000).

Payables
Current:
Creditors and accruals
Employee on-costs
Total Current Payables

Non-Current:
Imprest Account
Employee on-costs
Total Non-Current Payables

Total Payables

Payables to Non-SA Government entities:
Creditors and accruals
Total Payables - Non-SA Government Entities

Payables to SA Government entities:
Creditors and accruals
Imprest account
Employee on-costs
Total Payables - SA Government Entities

Total Payables
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$'000 $'000
1 802 593
45 38
1847 631
2 2

40 44
42 46

1 889 677
1744 552
1744 552
58 41

2 2

85 82
145 125

1 889 677
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Interest Rate and Credit Risk

Creditors and accruals are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid. Sundry creditors are normally settled within
30 days. Employee on-costs are settled when the respective employee benefit that they relate to is discharged.
All payables are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of payables approximates net fair value due to the
amounts being payable on demand.

18. Short-Term and Long-Term Employee Benefits 2006 2005
Current: $'000 $'000
Annual leave 171 147
Long service leave 76 71
Accrued salaries and wages 46 34
Total Current Employee Benefits 293 252
Non-Current:
Long service leave 412 387
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits 412 387
Total Employee Benefits 705 639

The total current and non-current employee expense (ie aggregate employee benefit plus related on-costs) for
2005-06 is $338 000 and $452 000 respectively.

In the 2005-06 financial year, the long service leave benchmark contained in the Accounting Policy Framework IV
Financial Asset and Liability Framework remained the same, based on an actuarial assessment. The benchmark for
the measurement of the long service leave liability is seven years.

19. Provisions 2006 2005
Current: $'000 $’000
Provision for workers compensation 36 35

Total Current Provisions 36 35

Non-Current:

Provision for workers compensation 96 88
Total Non-Current Provisions 96 88
Total Provisions 132 123

Reconciliation of the Provision for Workers Compensation

Provision at 1 July 123 132
Increase (Decrease) in provision during the year 9 (9)
Provision for Workers Compensation at 30 June 132 123
20. Equity
Retained profits 387 979 383 147
Asset revaluation reserve 242 991 198 449
Total Equity 630 970 581 596
Retained profits:
Balance at 1 July 383 147 378 267
Initial recognition of inventory due to accounting policy change 293 -
Previous year’s profit on sale of investments due to accounting policy change 699 -
Net result from ordinary activities 3 840 4 880
Balance at 30 June 387 979 383 147
Asset Revaluation Reserve:
Balance at 1 July 198 449 198 708
Decrement in land, buildings and improvement due to revaluation - (762)
Increment in investments due to revaluation - 503
Increment in heritage collections due to revaluation 45 241 -
Previous year’s profit on sale of investments due to accounting policy change (699) -
Balance at 30 June 242 991 198 449
Total Equity at 30 June 630 970 581 596
21. Commitments for Expenditure

Operating Lease Commitments:
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date
not recognised as liabilities in the financial report, are payable as follows:

Not later than one year 24 10
Later than one year and not later than five years 50 2
Total Operating Lease Commitments 74 12
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Commitments for Expenditure (continued)
The operating lease commitments comprise:

o Non-cancellable motor vehicle leases, with rental payable monthly in arrears. No contingent rental
provisions exist within the lease agreements and no options exist to renew the leases at the end of their
terms.

o A non-cancellable photocopier lease, with rental payable monthly in arrears. No contingent rental

provisions exist within the lease agreement and no option exists to renew the lease at the end of its term.

Capital Commitments
There were no capital commitments under contract for 2005-06 or 2004-05 as at the reporting date.

Remuneration Commitments
Commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under employment contracts in existence at the
reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows:

2006 2005

$'000 $'000

Not later than one year 153 148
Later than one year and not later than five years 399 386
Total Remuneration Commitments 552 534

Amounts disclosed include commitments arising from executive and other service contracts. The Board does not
offer remuneration contracts greater than five years.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
There are no known contingent assets or liabilities as at 30 June 2006.

Cash Flow Reconciliation 2006 2005
Reconciliation of Cash $’000 $'000
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes

cash on hand and at bank. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in the

Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Deposits with Treasurer 2 393 2 010
Deposits with Bank SA 1220 1236
Cash on hand 9 9

Cash as recorded in the Balance Sheet 3622 3 255

Interest Rate Risk

Cash and cash equivalents is recorded at its nominal amount. Interest is calculated based on the average daily
balances of the interest bearing funds. The interest bearing funds of the Art Gallery Board are the Special Deposit
Account titled ‘Arts South Australia Operating Account” and the Deposit Account titled ‘Art Gallery Board Bequests
Account’ and the Bank SA account. Deposits with the Treasurer are bearing a floating interest rate between
5.35 percent and 5.43 percent. The interest rate for funds held at Bank SA is 5.68 percent as at 30 June 2006.

Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Net Cost of 2006 2005
Providing Services $'000 $'000
Net cash provided by operating activities 2943 4 470
Less: Revenues from SA Government (6 061) (6 376)
Add (Less): Non-cash items:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (993) (539)
Donations of heritage collections 1810 1467
Gain (Loss) on disposal of investments 53 (579)
Gain on disposal of heritage collections 61 -

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) in receivables 31 (107)
Increase (Decrease) in inventories 107 (33)
(Decrease) Increase in other assets (200) 271
Decrease (Increase) in payables 38 (105)
Decrease in unearned revenue 65 -
(Increase) Decrease in employee benefits (66) 26
(Increase) Decrease in provisions (9) 9
Net Cost of Providing Services (2 221) (1496)

Events After Balance Date
There were no events occurring after balance date.
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ATTORNEY-GENERAL’S DEPARTMENT

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY AND STRUCTURE

Establishment

The Attorney-General’s Department is an Administrative Unit established pursuant to the Public Sector
Management Act 1995.

Functions

The functions of the Attorney-General’s Department are as follows:

. Provide professional, legal and associated services to Ministers of the Crown and government
agencies.

. Service the people of South Australia by upholding their legal and property rights and maintaining
community and business standards.

. Provide strategic policy advice to the agencies comprising the Justice portfolio.

Structure

The structure of the Attorney-General’s Department is illustrated in the following organisation chart.

Attorney-General,
Minister for Gambling Minister for Justice and Minister for Solicitor-General
Multicultural Affairs

Minister for
Consumer Affairs

Commissioner for
Equal
Opportunity

Police
-—— Complaints
Authority

r——+4  Ombudsman

Chief Executive

| Director of Public
Prosecutions

---4 Public Advocate

SA Multicultural & Liquor & e
Public Trustee Crown Solicitor Ethnic Affairs Gambling Commissioner for
Commission c - Consumer Affairs

ommissioner Guardianship

Board

Statutory Officer within

Attorney-General’'s Department. All Statutory Positions Independent of the
Corporation Sole/Body corporate within the Attorney-General's employees employed under the Attorney-General’s Department. All
Department. All employees employed under the PSM Act 1995 PSM Act 1995 employees appointed under the PSM Act

1995, or Police (Complaintsand Disciplinary
Proceedings) Act 1985

Justice Portfolio Office of Crime Crime Prevention Policy Legislation Ofﬁce of the
N . - ’ 7 Parliamentary
Services Division Statistics Unit Section Counsel

Employees appointed under PSM Act 1995 except Ministerial Staff

Changes to Functions and Structure
Effective from 1 April 2006 responsibility for the administration of the Community Emergency Services Fund

was transferred from the Department to the South Australian Fire and Emergency Services Commission
(SAFECOM).
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AUDIT MANDATE AND COVERAGE
Audit Authority
Audit of the Financial Report

Subsection 31(1)(b) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor General to audit the
accounts of the Attorney-General’s Department for each financial year.

Assessment of Controls

Subsection 36(1)(a)(iii) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 provides for the Auditor-General to assess
the controls exercised by the Attorney-General’s Department in relation to the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities.

This assessment also considers whether those controls are consistent with the prescribed elements of the
Financial Management Framework as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 2 Financial Management Policies.

Scope of Audit

The audit program covered major financial systems and was directed primarily to obtaining sufficient evidence
to enable an audit opinion to be formed with respect to the financial statements and internal controls.

During 2005-06, specific areas of audit attention included:

risk management

cash

payroll

expenditure, including the use of credit cards
licensing and regulatory fee revenue
taxation receipts

head office revenue

general ledger processing.

The work of the internal auditor was considered in planning the audit programs.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND COMMENTS
Audit Opinions
Audit of the Financial Report

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly in accordance with the Treasurer’s Instructions promulgated
under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, applicable Accounting Standards, and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, the financial position of the Attorney-General’s
Department as at 30 June 2006, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Assessment of Controls

Audit formed the opinion that the controls exercised by the Attorney-General’s Department in relation to the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of
liabilities are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the
Attorney-General’s Department have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Audit Communications to Management

Matters arising during the course of the audit were detailed in management letters to the Chief Executive.
Responses to the management letters were generally considered to be satisfactory. Major matters raised
with the Department and the related responses are considered herein.

Risk Management

During 2005-06 Audit completed a review of the Department’s risk management framework. This review
included an examination of the consistency of the Department’s risk management policies and procedures
with the requirements of the Financial Management Framework issued by the Department of Treasury and
Finance, together with the review of the Department’s compliance with existing policies and procedures.

The review highlighted that the Department’s Audit Committee had been assigned responsibility for reviewing
and evaluating existing processes for the assessing, monitoring and controlling of significant risks.

153



Attorney-General’s

Audit noted opportunities for the Department to improve the operation of its risk management framework
through the:

. development and implementation of regular reporting to the Audit Committee to support its role in
the assessing, monitoring and controlling of significant risks;

. clarification of what level of risk was included in the term ‘significant risk’;

. development and regular review of local risk registers for all units within the Department;

. appointment of responsible risk officers (known as Risk Champions) for all Departmental units and
incorporation of the roles and responsibilities of Risk Champions into existing risk management
procedures.

Credit Cards

During 2005-06 Audit completed a review of the controls adopted by the Department for the issue and use of
corporate credit cards. The review included an examination of the consistency of the Department’s credit
card policies and procedures with the requirements of Treasurer’s Instruction 12 Credit Cards. The review
also considered compliance with Departmental policies and procedures.

Audit noted that:

. the Chief Executive had not formalised arrangements for approving the issue of corporate credit
cards;
. credit cards were issued without specific approval from the Chief Executive in accordance with

Treasurer’s Instruction 12 Credit Cards and internal policies and procedures.

The Department responded that a formal process for the issue of credit cards would be developed and
submitted to the Chief Executive for approval by September 2006.

Office of the Liquor and Gambling Commissioner

A review and evaluation of the UniTab wagering system performed by an independent consultant in July 2004
recommended that the Department, through the Office of the Liquor and Gambling Commissioner, perform
regular compliance audits for unauthorised system changes.

Audit noted that regular compliance audits have not yet been initiated.

The Office for the Liquor and Gambling Commissioner has advised that resources have been made available
to undertake regular compliance audits in future.

General Financial Controls

The review of specific auditable areas involved the assessment of the adequacy of accounting record keeping
and control, and the test verification of financial transactions processed and recorded during the year.
Reviews performed during 2005-06 identified a humber of opportunities to improve the control environment
of the Department. These included:

. the development and documentation of purchasing delegations for purchases with a value less than
$55 000;

. opportunities to improve system functionality of the LawMaster system used by the Crown Solicitor’s
Office to support the accuracy of invoicing and the efficient identification and notification of overdue
invoices;

. the review of system access to the general ledger to ensure compliance with internal policies and

procedures with respect to segregation of duties for preparing, authorising and processing manual
general ledger journals;

. the implementation of regular and timely review of system access to the Occupational Licensing,
SA Business Names and Births, Deaths and Marriages systems;

. the development of a compliance audit plan for performance of regular audits by the Office of
Consumer and Business Affairs.

In response the Department has outlined a series of actions designed to address these matters.
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Information and Communications Technology Management and Control

During the year Audit reviewed the Department’s ICT strategic planning, security policies and procedures and
business continuity planning and arrangements. The review identified the following initiatives to improve
management and control of ICT.

Governance and Planning

The Department established an IT Executive Forum in December 2005 to oversee the development and
maintenance of Information Communications Technology (ICT) plans and policies, ICT investment
prioritisation, overseeing the implementation of ICT initiatives, and monitoring the performance of ICT
suppliers and service level requirements.

Security Policies and Procedures

The Department advised that an IT Security Analyst was appointed in May 2006 to develop an internal audit
plan to assess compliance with the Department’s IT Security Policies and Procedures.

Business Continuity Planning and Arrangements

The Department is proceeding with the development of business continuity plans for all business units using a
whole of Justice business continuity framework. In addition, the Department plans to complete full disaster
recovery testing of all key business applications by the second quarter of 2007.

The initiatives will be reviewed by Audit in 2006-07.

INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT

Highlights of Financial Report

2006 2005 Percentage

$'million $'million Change
EXPENSES
Employee benefits costs 82 77 6
Supplies and services 39 34 15
Other expenses 14 14 -
Total Expenses 135 125 8
INCOME
Revenue from fees and charges 56 52 8
Other 12 12 -
Total Income 68 64 6
Net Cost of Providing Services (67) (61) 10
REVENUES FROM/PAYMENTS TO SA GOVERNMENT
Revenue from SA Government 71 65 9
Payments to SA Government 4 14 (71)
Net Result before Restructure - (10) -
Cash Generated from Operations 2 (3) n/a
ASSETS
Current assets 28 27 4
Non-current assets 8 7 14
Total Assets 36 34 6
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 13 13 -
Non-current liabilities 17 18 (6)
Total Liabilities 30 31 (3)
EQUITY 6 3 100
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Income Statement
Income

During 2006 the Department collected $55.7 million in fees and charges. Fees and charges collected from the
public increased by 7.9 percent to $24.4 million due mainly to a 2 percent increase in the volume of
chargeable licensing activity and an average 4 percent increase in rates for business and occupational
licensing.

The Department collected an additional $31.3 million in fees and charges from other government agencies
which includes fees collected from the provision of legal services and the recovery of costs associated with the
administration of specific acts.

Revenues provided directly by the State government comprised 51 percent of the Department’s total income
and were applied to support the range of activities outlined in Note 4 of the Department’s financial report.

A structural analysis of income for the Department in the four years to 2006 is presented in the following
chart.
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The Department is responsible for a range of activities associated with the provision of legal services to the
State government, provision of consumer law-related and regulatory services and complaint handling. The
Department’s major activities are identified in Note 4 of the financial report.

In 2006 costs associated with the following activities represented 80 percent of the Department’s total
expenditure:

. Program 1 - Policy Advice and Legal Services
. Program 2 — Consumer and Business Affairs
. Program 10 - Justice Portfolio Services

Program 1 Policy Advice and Legal Services includes the activities associated with the operations of the Crown
Solicitor’s Office, the Office of the Director of Public Prosecutions, the Solicitor-General and the Office of the
Parliamentary Counsel.

In 2006 employment benefits costs associated with Program 1 increased by 12 percent to $37.2 million. The
increase in employee benefits costs was due to enterprise bargaining increases and the appointment of
additional staff. Additional staff were appointed partly to support anticipated workload increases.

Program 2 Consumer and Business Affairs provides for the administration of fair trading legislation, regulation
of defined business activities and the maintenance of licensing, regulatory and registration services.

Program 10 Justice Portfolio Services provides portfolio administrative support including financial, business

and contract management, human resource management, information knowledge management and
Ministerial support.
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For the four years to 2006, a structural analysis of the main operating expense items for the Department is
shown in the following chart.
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Net Result Before Restructure

The improvement in the Department’s net result for 2006 is due mainly to a once off payment of
$14.2 million to the South Australian Government in 2005. The following chart shows the income, expenses
and net result before restructure for the four years to 2006.
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Balance Sheet

Current assets at 30 June 2006 includes cash and cash equivalents of $21.8 million. The balance of cash and
cash equivalents includes $14.1 million held in an accrual appropriation account with the Treasurer. These
funds are not available for general use and can only be used in accordance with the Treasurer’s approval.

In 2005 current assets decreased by $7.6 million due mainly to the reduction in cash and receivables. In that
year receivables decreased by $3.2 million due mainly to the transfer of $3.6 million held in the Crown
Solicitor’s Trust Account as at 30 June 2004.

157



Attorney-General’s

For the four years to 2006, a structural analysis of assets and liabilities is shown in the following chart.
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Cash Flow Statement
The following table summarises the net cash flows for the four years to 2006.
2006 2005 2004 2003
$'million $'million $'million $'million
Net Cash Flows
Operations 2.4 (2.7) 2.3 (3.9)
Investing (0.5) (1.7) (1.2) (1.5)
Change in Cash 1.9 (4.4) 1.1 (5.4)
Cash at 30 June 21.8 19.9 24.3 23.2
INTERPRETATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL REPORT FOR ADMINISTERED ACTIVITIES
Highlights of Financial Report
The administered items of the Department are identified in Note 2.2 to the Financial Report.
2006 2005 Percentage
$'million $'million Change
INCOME
Revenue from SA Government 58 54 7
Taxation receipts 324 325 -
Community Emergency Services Fund revenue 152 170 (11)
Other income 55 53 4
Total Income 589 602 (2)
EXPENSES
Payments to Consolidated Account 353 352 -
Emergency Services Levy payments 127 168 (24)
Grants 34 32 6
Other expenses 41 46 (11)
Total Expenses 555 598 (7)
Net Result before Restructure 34 4 n/a
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2006 2005 Percentage
$'million $'million Change
Net Cash Flows from Operations 32 34 (6)
ASSETS
Current assets 132 154 (14)
Non-current assets 76 73 4
Total Assets 208 227 (8)
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 71 88 (19)
Non-current liabilities 35 30 17
Total Liabilities 106 118 (10)
EQUITY 102 109 (6)

Statement of Administered Income and Expenses
Administered Income

Income administered by the Department includes taxation receipts collected on behalf of government, levies
collected from owners of fixed and mobile property to fund the provision of emergency services and revenues
from government to support the costs associated with the Department’s administered activities.

Taxation receipts comprise gaming tax collected pursuant to the Gaming Machines Act 1992, taxation receipts
collected from operations at the Adelaide Casino and on and off course totalisator tax collected on racing
operations. In 2006 taxation receipts decreased by $1 million to $324 million due mainly to the $3 million
increase in the tax collected from casino operations, offset by a $3 million decrease in tax generated from
gaming machines and the cessation, by regulation, of the collection of on-course tote tax.

Receipts for the Community Emergency Services Fund decreased by $17.6 million to $151.9 million due
mainly to the transfer of administrative responsibility for the Fund to the South Australian Fire and Emergency
Services Commission (SAFECOM) effective from 1 April 2006.

The decrease in revenue from Government and other income since 2003 reflects revised arrangements for
providing appropriations to Justice portfolio agencies which are no longer provided through the Department of
Justice Special Deposit Account but paid directly to the Justice portfolio agencies by the Treasurer.

For the four years to 2006 a structural analysis of administered incomes for the Department is presented in
the following chart.
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Administered Expenses
A major component of the Departments administrative expenditure is the transfer of funds to other
government agencies. In particular the Department transfers taxation receipts to the Consolidated Account

and, until the transfer of responsibility for the Fund to SAFECOM, distributed funds from the Community
Emergency Services Fund pursuant to the Emergency Services Funding Act 1998.
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In 2006 Community Emergency Services Fund payments decreased by $41.4 million to $126.7 million
following the transfer of administrative responsibility for the Fund to SAFECOM.

Reduced payments to Justice agencies in 2004 is attributable to the changed arrangements for providing
appropriation funding to Justice Portfolio agencies.

For the four years to 2006 a structural analysis of the main administered operating expense items for the
Department is shown in the following chart.
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Net Result before Restructure
The nature of the administered activities is such that the net asset position should always be positive.

The net result before restructure of $34.1 million for 2006 reflects timing differences between the receipts for
the Community Emergency Services Fund and payments to emergency service organisations. Effective from
1 April 2006 administrative responsibility for the Community Emergency Service Fund was transferred to
SAFECOM. On this date $44.3 million of cash held by the Fund was transferred to SAFECOM, which has been
recognised as a net expense from administrative restructure.

The following chart shows the income, expenses and the net result before restructure for the four years to
2006.
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Statement of Administered Assets and Liabilities

At 30 June 2006 the Department administered net assets totalling $101.5 million. Net assets included
$25.2 million of taxation receipts due but not yet received, cash and investments of $38.1 million held in the
Agents Indemnity Fund to provide compensation for persons who have suffered financial loss as a result of
fiduciary default of a land agent or conveyancer and cash totalling $17.6 million held for Victims of Crime.
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In 2006 current assets decreased by $21.6 million due mainly to the transfer of the Community Emergency
Service Fund to SAFECOM and a reduction in the amount of taxation received but not paid to the Consolidated

Account as at 30 June.
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Statement of Administered Cash Flows
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The following table summarises the administered net cash flows for the four years to 2006.

2006 2005 2004 2003
$'million $'million $'million $'million

Net Cash Flows
Operations 31.8 34.1 (202.8) 239.7
Investing (6.1) (8.8) (5.2) (3.9)
Financing (44.3) - - -
Change in Cash (18.6) 25.3 (208.0) 235.8
Cash at 30 June 75.0 93.6 68.3 276.3

FURTHER COMMENTARY ON OPERATIONS

Taxation Receipts

Taxation receipts for 2005-06 totalled $324 million ($325 million).

For the four years to 2006 a structural analysis of taxation receipts is presented in the following chart.
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The following information is provided in relation to revenue from gaming machines.

Gaming Machine Administration

The Gaming Machines Act 1992 (the Act), section 5, provides that the Liquor and Gambling Commissioner is

responsible to the Independent Gambling Authority for the scrutiny of the operations of all licences under the
Act.

Under the Act, the operations of gaming machines in licensed premises must return winnings to players of not
less than 85 percent in the case of machines installed prior to 31 May 2001, and 87.5 percent in the case of
machines installed subsequent to that date. A prescribed percentage of the net gambling revenue (NGR) is
then required to be paid to the Treasurer (Consolidated Account).

The Gaming Machines (Miscellaneous) Amendment Act 2005 was proclaimed on 13 January 2005. Key
provisions of the Act included the:

. introduction of gaming machine entitlements for each authorised gaming machine licence; and
. transferability of gaming machine entitlements at a fixed price.

Provisions reflecting the maximum number of gaming machines that can be operated under a licence did not
come into affect until 1 July 2005.

The following table summarises gaming machine activity for four years to 2006.

2006 2005 2004 2003

Number Number Number Number

Machines (installed as at 30 June) 12 598 14 062 14 799 14 841
2006 2005 2004 2003

$'million $'million $'million $'million

Turnover 7 339 6 995 6 502 5853
Amount Won 6 588 6 246 5778 5184
NGR 751 749 724 669
Tax 293 296 283 245

Independent Gaming Corporation Limited

Pursuant to section 25 of the Act, the Liquor and Gambling Commissioner granted the gaming machine
monitor licence to the Independent Gaming Corporation (IGC). The IGC is, under this licence, charged with
the responsibility for monitoring the operations of gaming machine licensees.

Section 75 of the Act, specifically provides for the accounts and operations of the IGC to be audited by the
Auditor General.

With respect to the 2005-06 operations, the audit of the IGC has been completed and an unqualified audit
opinion issued.

Victims of Crime Fund
The Attorney-General’s Department is responsible for administering the Victims of Crime Act 2001 (the Act),
with effect from 1 January 2004. The Department was previously responsible for administering the Criminal

Injuries Compensation Act 1978 which was repealed by the Act.

The Act, establishes principles for the treatment of victims of crime and provides rights to statutory
compensation for injuries suffered as a result of criminal offences. The maximum compensation that may be
awarded under the Act is $50 000.

Payments made for the year through the Special Deposit Account titled ‘Victims of Crime Fund’ totalled
$12.9 million ($13.9 million) on account of 1 360 (1 140) compensation claims.
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Recoveries from Offenders

The Act empowers the Attorney-General to recover the cost of compensation payments from offenders who
were convicted of the offence to which the compensation relates. Recovery of amounts is difficult as most
compensation claims are for unknown offenders. This is demonstrated by the following:

. Outstanding amounts at 30 June 2006 were $45.2 million ($42.4 million) and $31.8 million
($26.6 million) was written off during the year.

. The amounts recovered during the year totalled $1.3 million ($925 000).

As a result of the size of compensation payments and the small amounts recovered from offenders, funds are
transferred from the Consolidated Account to meet compensation payments.

In order to supplement these funds a levy is imposed by the Act on all persons convicted of offences and on
expiation notices. Levies for 2005-06 totalled $8.0 million ($7.7 million). In addition, for 2005-06 the
Government appropriated $6.2 million ($6.2 million) to the Fund.

The following chart illustrates compensation payments and claims made over the past nine years.
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Community Emergency Services Fund
During 2005-06 the Department was responsible for administering the Community Emergency Services Fund.

Contributions, by way of levies, are made by all owners (including both State and Local Government) of both
fixed and mobile property to fund the provision of emergency services. Levies are collected in accordance
with the Emergency Services Funding Act 1998. The levy on fixed property applies to capital values adjusted
for location and land use and is collected by RevenueSA. The levy on mobile property is collected by the
Department of Transport and Urban Planning using the vehicle registration system.

In addition, the Government makes a contribution in the form of remissions of levies charged.

All levy receipts are paid into a fund titled ‘The Community Emergency Services Fund’ from which the
Department has made payment to Emergency Services agencies. The Fund also met the cost of collecting the
levies and operating the Fund.

Effective from 1 April 2006 responsibility for the administration of the Community Emergency Services Fund

was transferred from the Department to the South Australian Fire and Emergency Services Commission
(SAFECOM).
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Income Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2006

EXPENSES
Employee benefits cost
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Depreciation and amortisation
Net loss from disposal of assets
Other expenses

Total Expenses

INCOME
Revenues from fees and charges
Commonwealth revenues
Interest revenues
Other income
Total Income
NET COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES

REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO) SA GOVERNMENT:

Revenues from SA Government

Payments to SA Government

NET RESULT BEFORE RESTRUCTURE

Net expense from administrative restructure
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE

NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER

12

13
15

16
16

2006 2005
$’000 $'000
82 314 76 498
38 411 34 360
10 533 10 740
2 389 2 481
87 77
909 1143
134 643 125 299
55 663 51 936
3 036 3432
1186 1020
7 496 7931
67 381 64 319
(67 262) (60 980)
71 271 65 209
3 962 14 198
47 (9 969)

- (429)

47 (10 398)

47 (10 398)
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CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other
Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Employee benefits
Provisions
Other
Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables
Employee benefits
Provisions
Other

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
EQUITY:
Retained earnings
Asset revaluation reserve
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER

Commitments
Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Note
17
18
19

20

21
22(a)
23
24

21
22(a)
23
24

26
27

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
21 788 19914
5935 6 063
326 653
28 049 26 630
7 949 7 369
7 949 7 369
35998 33 999
5152 4 922
6 582 6 224
242 296
712 1249
12 688 12 691
1617 1 946
14 201 13 705
1014 1512
621 823

17 453 17 986
30 141 30 677
5 857 3322
1 857 1810
4 000 1512
5 857 3322
5 857 3322
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Balance at 30 June 2004

Changes in accounting policy

Restated balance at 30 June 2004

Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2004-05

Net result after restructure for 2004-05

Total Recognised Income and Expense for
2004-05

Balance at 30 June 2005

Changes in accounting policy

Restated balance at 30 June 2005

Gain on revaluation of leasehold improvements
during 2005-06

Gain on revaluation of land during 2005-06

Gain on revaluation of mobile transport assets
during 2005-06

Gain on revaluation of plant and equipment
during 2005-06

Gain on revaluation of buildings during 2005-06

Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2005-06

Net result after restructure for 2005-06

Total Recognised Income and Expense for
2005-06
Balance at 30 June 2006

All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner

Asset
Revaluation Retained

Reserve Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
1610 12 853 14 463
(98) (439) (537)
1512 12 414 13 926
- (10 398) (10 398)
- (10 398) (10 398)
1512 2016 3528
- (206) (206)
1512 1810 3322
2 087 - 2 087
300 - 300
49 - 49
39 - 39
13 - 13
2 488 - 2 488
- 47 47
2 488 47 2 535
4 000 1857 5 857
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: (Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH OUTFLOWS: Note $'000 $'000
Employee benefit payments (82 222) (74 702)
Grants and subsidies (10 533) (10 740)
GST payments on purchases (6 334) (6 566)
Payments to SA Government (3 962) (14 198)
Other payments (39 662) (31 896)
Cash used in Operating Activities (142 713) (138 102)
CASH INFLOWS:
Receipts from SA Government 71 271 65 209
Fees and charges 55 752 51571
GST receipts on revenue 3 551 3703
Receipts from Commonwealth 3 036 3432
GST input tax credits 2775 2 579
Interest received 1177 1030
Other receipts 7 496 7 927
Cash provided by Operating Activities 145 058 135 451
Net Cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities 25 2 345 (2 651)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (471) (1 755)
Cash used in Investing Activities (471) (1 755)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (471) (1 755)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 1874 (4 406)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY 19 914 24 320
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 17 21 788 19 914
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Program Class Schedule of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Program Program Program Program Program Program
(Refer Note 4) 1 2 3 4 5 6
ASSETS: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents 10 689 (864) 3411 1 996 543 415
Receivables 2 682 2204 99 394 121 -
Other current assets 162 18 1 28 11 9
NON-CURRENT:
Property, plant and equipment 1707 4 016 292 13 143 43
Total Assets 15 240 5374 3 803 2431 818 467
LIABILITIES:
CURRENT:
Payables (2 170) (664) (292) (544) (74) (30)
Employee benefits (3131) (1 203) (520) (341) (140) (93)
Other current liabilities (3 560) - 2990 - (142) -
NON-CURRENT:
Payables (604) (358) (181) (87) (39) (20)
Employee benefits (5 674) (3 367) (1704) (822) (376) (187)
Other non-current liabilities - - - - - -
Total Liabilities (15 139) (5 592) 293 (1794) (771) (330)
NET ASSETS 101 (218) 4 096 637 47 137
INCOME:
Revenues from fees and charges 14 250 27 041 1427 2 696 173 -
Commonwealth revenue 9 7 2 2 69 -
Interest revenue - - - - - -
Other income 2 827 819 996 93 109 7
Total Income 17 086 27 867 2425 2791 351 7
EXPENSES:
Employee benefits cost (37 158) (14 599) (5 833) (4 313) (1 606) (976)
Supplies and services (10 612) (6 211) (1 958) (1 446) (877) (248)
Grants and subsidies (3 484) (28) - (704) - -
Depreciation and amortisation (741) (382) (265) (19) (90) (48)
Net loss from disposal of assets (37) (3) (25) - - -
Other expenses (874) (35) - - - -
Total Expenses (52 906) (21 258) (8 081) (6 482) (2 573) (1272)
REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO)
SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenues from SA Government 36 035 1915 6 300 3 282 2 437 1209
Payments to SA Government (1792) (700) (280) (209) (77) (47)
34 243 1215 6 020 3073 2 360 1162
Net result before restructure (1577) 7 824 364 (618) 138 (103)
Net expense from administrative
restructure - - - - - -
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER (1577) 7 824 364 (618) 138 (103)
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Program Class Schedule of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

Program Program Program Program  Program Program 2006
(Refer Note 4) 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total
ASSETS: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents 736 154 63 3885 760 - 21 788
Receivables - 48 70 317 - - 5935
Other current assets - 10 2 84 1 - 326
NON-CURRENT:
Property, plant and equipment 44 6 192 1480 13 - 7 949
Total Assets 780 218 327 5766 774 - 35998
LIABILITIES:
CURRENT:
Payables (34) (50) (41) (1 064) (189) - (5 152)
Employee benefits (97) (25) (113) (1001) (160) - (6 824)
Other current liabilities - - - - - - (712)
NON-CURRENT:
Payables (38) (9) (15) (247) (19) - (1617)
Employee benefits (363) (85) (138) (2 318) (181) - (15 215)
Other current liabilities - - - - - (621) (621)
Total Liabilities (532) (169) (307) (4 630) (549) (621) (30 141)
NET ASSETS 248 49 20 1136 225 (621) 5857
INCOME:
Revenues from fees and charges - - - 10 076 - - 55 663
Commonwealth revenue - - - 2947 - - 3 036
Interest revenue - - - 1186 - - 1186
Other income 17 78 454 2 082 14 - 7 496
Total Income 17 78 454 16 291 14 - 67 381
EXPENSES:
Employee benefits cost (1 249) (475) (1472) (12 190) (2 443) - (82 314)
Supplies and services (389) (145) (457) (14 960) (1108) - (38 411)
Grants and subsidies - (892) (31) (5 367) (27) - (10 533)
Depreciation and amortisation (49) (9) (81) (693) (12) - (2 389)
Net loss from disposal of assets - (2) - (20) - - (87)
Other expenses - - - - - - (909)
Total Expenses (1 687) (1 523) (2 041) (33 230) (3 590) - (134 643)
REVENUES FROM (PAYMENTS TO)
SA GOVERNMENT:
Revenues from SA Government 1 666 2222 1 882 11 120 3203 - 71 271
Payments to SA Government (60) (23) (70) (586) (118) - (3962)
1 606 2199 1812 10 534 3085 - 67 309
Net result before restructure (64) 754 225 (6 405) (491) - 47
Net expense from administrative
restructure - - - - - - -
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER (64) 754 225 (6 405) (491) - 47
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Statement of Administered Income and Expenses
for the year ended 30 June 2006

INCOME:
Taxation receipts
Community Emergency Services Fund revenue
Revenues from SA Government
Commonwealth Specific Purpose grants
Fees and charges
Interest received
Agents Indemnity Fund revenue
Other income
Total Income

EXPENSES:
Payment to Consolidated Account
Community Emergency Services Fund payments
Grants
Employee benefits cost
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Total Expenses
NET RESULT BEFORE RESTRUCTURE
Net expense from administrative restructure
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE

NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO THE SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER

Note

33

30

29

31
32

2.3

2006 2005
$’000 $'000
323 621 324 774
151 938 169 530
57 954 53 754
25 406 24 562
12 434 12 276
9 701 9 589

6 216 5 634

1 635 2573
588 905 602 692
352 713 351 557
126 662 168 029
34 473 31 981
6 718 6 857
346 384

33 873 39 405
554 785 598 213
34 120 4 479
44 337 -
(10 217) 4 479
(10 217) 4 479
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Statement of Administered Assets and Liabilities
as at 30 June 2006

2006 2005
CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 34 75 008 93 628
Receivables 35 26 534 28 530
Financial assets 37 27 557 21 449
Other current assets 36 3182 10 310
Total Current Assets 132 281 153 917
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Financial assets 37 75 176 72 437
Property, plant and equipment 38 707 602
Total Non-Current Assets 75 883 73 039
Total Assets 208 164 226 956
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 39 3 566 2 964
Employee benefits 40(a) 231 282
Other current liabilities 41 67 371 85 144
Total Current Liabilities 71 168 88 390
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 39 34 35
Employee benefits 40(a) 298 249
Other non-current liabilities 41 35134 29 700
Total Non-Current Liabilities 35 466 29 984
Total Liabilities 106 634 118 374
NET ASSETS 101 530 108 582
EQUITY:
Retained earnings 93 139 103 356
Asset revaluation reserve 8 391 5226
TOTAL EQUITY 101 530 108 582
Contingent Assets and Liabilities 43
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Statement of Administered Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Asset
Revaluation Retained
Reserve Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June 2004 2 945 98 894 101 839
Changes in accounting policy - (15) (15)
Restated balance at 30 June 2004 2 945 98 879 101 824
Gain on revaluation of investments during 2004-05 2 281 - 2 281
Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2004-05 2281 - 2 281
Net result after restructure for 2004-05 - 4 479 4 479
Total Recognised Income and Expense for
2004-05 2281 4 479 6 760
Balance at 30 June 2005 5226 103 358 108 584
Changes in accounting policy - (2) (2)
Restated balance at 30 June 2005 5226 103 356 108 582
Gain on revaluation of investments during 2005-06 2739 - 2739
Gain on revaluation of leasehold improvements
during 2005-06 411 - 411
Gain on revaluation of furniture during 2005-06 15 - 15
Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2005-06 3165 - 3165
Net result after restructure for 2005-06 - (10 217) (10 217)
Total Recognised Income and Expense for
2005-06 3165 (10 217) (7 052)
Balance at 30 June 2006 8 391 93 139 101 530

All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner
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Statement of Administered Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
Inflows Inflows
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: (Outflows) (Outflows)
CASH INFLOWS: Note $'000 $'000
Taxation receipts 325175 325 125
Community Emergency Services Fund revenue 151 938 169 459
Receipts from SA Government 65 412 48 526
Fees and charges 12479 19 199
Commonwealth Specific Purpose grant 25 406 24 562
Interest received 9 807 9 521
Other receipts 7 871 8 495
Cash provided by Operating Activities 598 088 604 887
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Payments to Consolidated Account (376 203) (325 587)
Community Emergency Services Fund payments (126 662) (168 029)
Grants (34 473) (31 981)
Victims of Crime compensation payments (12 878) (14 009)
Employee benefit payments (6 721) (6 681)
Other payments (9 295) (24 468)
Cash used in Operating Activities (566 232) (570 755)
Net Cash (used in) provided by Operating Activities 42 31 856 34 132
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Payments for investments (6 108) (8 533)
Payments for property, plant and equipment (31) (249)
Cash used in Investing Activities (6 139) (8 782)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (6 139) (8 782)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CASH OUTFLOWS:
Payments from restructure activities (44 337) -
Cash used in Financing Activities (44 337) -
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (44 337) -
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (18 620) 25 350
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY 93 628 68 278
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 34 75 008 93 628
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Program Schedule of Administered Income, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities
for the year ended 30 June 2006

(Refer Note 5)

ASSETS:
CURRENT:

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets

Receivables

Other current assets
NON-CURRENT:

Financial assets

Property, plant and equipment

Total Administered Assets

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT:

Payables

Employee benefits

Other current liabilities
NON-CURRENT:

Payables

Employee benefits

Other non-current liabilities

Total Administered Liabilities

NET ASSETS

ADMINISTERED INCOME AND EXPENSES

INCOME:
Revenues from SA Government
Fees and charges
Taxation receipts

Community Emergency Services Fund

revenue

Commonwealth Specific Purpose grants

Interest revenue
Agents Indemnity Fund revenue
Other income
Total Administered Income
EXPENSES:
Employee benefits costs
Other expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Payments to Consolidated Account

Community Emergency Services Fund

payments
Grants

Total Administered Expenses

Net result before restructure

Net expense from administrative
restructure

NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER

Program Program Program Program Program
1 2 3 4 5

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

31 456 7 296 17 609 - 1 084

- 8 290 - - -

25 228 189 818 - -

- 1 085 2021 - -

- 28 232 - - -

56 684 45 092 20 448 - 1 084
(48) (20) (434) - -

(28 211) (1022) - - -
(28 259) (1042) (434) - -
28 425 44 050 20 014 - 1084
9 694 1 6 355 - 1975

2 878 328 9 228 - -
323 621 - - - -
- - - 151 938 -

- 12 264 - - -

- 2 518 962 1481 -

- 6 216 - - -

- 428 824 - -

336 193 21 755 17 369 153 419 1975
- (427) - - (12)
(1036) (6 300) (15 305) - (762)
(327 107) (12 264) - - -
- - - (126 641) -

(7 301) - (2 235) - -
(335 444) (18 991) (17 540) (126 641) (774)
749 2 764 (171) 26 778 1201

- - - (44 337) -

749 2 764 (171) (17 559) 1201
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Program Schedule of Administered Income, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities
for the year ended 30 June 2006 (continued)

Program Program Program Program 2006
(Refer Note 5) 6 7 8 9 Total
ASSETS: $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents 13 939 1478 - 2 146 75 008
Financial assets 19 267 - - - 27 557
Receivables 290 - - 9 26 534
Other current assets - 2 - 74 3182
NON-CURRENT:
Financial assets 46 944 - - - 75 176
Property, plant and equipment 528 13 - 166 707
Total Administered Assets 80 968 1493 - 2 395 208 164
LIABILITIES:
CURRENT:
Payables (1 319) (90) - (1 655) (3 566)
Employee benefits - (30) - (201) (231)
Other current liabilities (38 138) - - - (67 371)
NON-CURRENT:
Payables - (3) - (31) (34)
Employee benefits - (24) - (274) (298)
Other non-current liabilities (35 134) - - - (35 134)
Total Administered Liabilities (74 591) (147) - (2 161) (106 634)
NET ASSETS 6 377 1 346 - 234 (101 530)
ADMINISTERED INCOME AND EXPENSES
INCOME:
Revenues from SA Government - 5963 24 459 9 507 57 954
Fees and charges - - - - 12 434
Taxation receipts - - - - 323 621
Community Emergency Services Fund
revenue - - - - 151 938
Commonwealth Specific Purpose grants - - 13 142 - 25 406
Interest revenue 4 726 - - 14 9 701
Agents Indemnity Fund revenue - - - - 6 216
Other income 167 - - 216 1635
Total Administered Income 4 893 5963 37 601 9737 588 905
EXPENSES:
Employee benefits costs (3 106) (648) - (2 525) (6 718)
Other expenses (1 556) (3 603) - (5 311) (33 873)
Depreciation and amortisation (302) (4) - (40) (346)
Payments to Consolidated Account - - (13 142) (200) (352 713)
Community Emergency Services Fund
payments - - - (21) (126 662)
Grants - - (24 459) (478) (34 473)
Total Administered Expenses (4 964) (4 255) (37 601) (8 575) (554 785)
Net result before restructure (71) 1708 - 1162 34 120
Net expense from administrative
restructure - - - - (44 337)
NET RESULT AFTER RESTRUCTURE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SA GOVERNMENT AS OWNER (71) 1 708 - 1162 (10 217)
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Objectives of the Attorney-General’s Department
The Attorney-General’s Department (the Department) serves the Government and the people of South Australia by
achieving excellence in the provision of legal services to the State Government, and in the provision of consumer
law-related and regulatory services, and complaint handling function to the South Australian Community.

The Department believes that the following corporate objectives are critical to its operational success. The
Department will:

recognise the importance of good leadership by managers, supervisors and team leaders;

facilitate and encourage open communications and participative decision making and provide easy access
to all information and publications of relevance to staff;

foster client satisfaction by providing high quality services which meet their needs;

maintain high professional and management standards, including encouraging professional membership
and participation of professional bodies, and provide identified training programs which are consistent
with the strategic direction of Government and Departmental objectives;

recognise performance management and quality principles as tools which assist the organisation to
evaluate the contribution of its people in day-to-day activities and which contributes to continuous
performance improvement and learning;

recognise that through policy and planning the organisation’s values are communicated, adopted and
reinforced throughout the organisation;

facilitate a cooperative and participative industrial relations culture through the Enterprise Bargaining
process.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

2.2

Basis of Accounting

The financial report is a general purpose financial report. The financial report has been prepared in
accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards and Treasurer’s Instructions and Accounting
Policy Statements promulgated under the provision of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987.

These Financial Statements are the first statements to be prepared in accordance with Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1
First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has been
applied in preparing these statements. Previous Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with
Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The Department’s Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been
prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost convention, except for certain assets
that were valued in accordance with the valuation policy applicable.

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared on a cash basis.

The financial report has been prepared based on a 12 month operating cycle and presented in Australian
currency.

Reporting Entity

The Attorney-General’s Department produces both Departmental and Administered financial statements.
The Departmental financial statements include income, expenses, assets and liabilities, controlled or
incurred by the Department in its own right. The Administered financial statements includes incomes,
expenses, assets and liabilities which the Department administers on behalf of the SA Government but does
not control.

For the purposes of accrual accounting and external financial reporting, the Ombudsman Services, Police
Complaints Authority, Guardianship Board and Office of the Public Advocate are included in the financial
reporting entity of the Attorney-General’s Department.

The Ombudsman and the Police Complaints Authority do undertake investigations into complaints or
matters under their respective Acts without interference from the Attorney-General’s Department and both
report separately to Parliament on their operations. The Guardianship Board is a court-like tribunal which
has the power to make important decisions affecting the lives and property of persons over whom it has
jurisdiction. The Public Advocate provides education, investigation, advocacy and guardianship services in
accordance with its statutory functions. The Guardianship Board and Public Advocate were established
pursuant to the Guardianship and Administration Act 1993 (the Act) and are not subject to the direction of
the Minister in the performance of their functions under the Act.

The cash at bank balances for the trust accounts listed below are included in the Attorney-General’s
Department - Administered Items Balance Sheet.

Administered items of the Department are listed below:
. Liquor and Gambling Services
— Payment of Liquor Subsidies to Licensees

— Racing Services
— Taxation Receipts (Casino, Gaming, Gambling, Liquor, Lottery Licenses)
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2.5

2.6

2.7

Attorney-General’s

Reporting Entity (continued)

. Consumer and Business Affairs

— Agents Indemnity Fund

— Companies Liquidation Account

— Consumer Credit Fund

— Cooperatives Liquidation Account

— HIH Fund

— Remission - Fees and Charges

— Second Hand Motor Vehicles Dealers Compensation Fund

— Residential Tenancies Fund

— Retail Shop Leases Fund

Victims of Crime

Community Emergency Services Fund (moved to SAFECOM as at 31 March per note 2.3)
Bodies in the Barrel Case

Crown Solicitor's Trust Account

Computer Aided Despatch/Portfolio Radio and Telecommunications
Contribution to Legal Services Commission for Legal Aid

Other

— Child Abuse Program

— Children in State Care Inquiry

— Compensation Companies Regulation (formerly Companies Code Fees)
— Expensive State Criminal Cases

— Kapunda Road Royal Commission

— Legal Practitioners Act Fund

— Special Acts - Payment of Ministerial Salary and Allowances

— Special Acts - Payment of Statutory Officer Salaries - Ombudsman and Solicitor-General
— Unclaimed Salaries and Wages

— Wangary Coronial Inquiry

Restructuring Activities (Administered Items)

On the 28 November 2005, Cabinet approved the transfer of administrative responsibility for the
Community Emergency Services Fund (the Fund) from the Attorney-General’s Department (AGD) to the
South Australian Fire and Emergency Services Commission (SAFECOM) effective from 31 March 2006. As at
that date, the Fund’s cash balance of $44.337 million was transferred from AGD to SAFECOM. A net
expense from administrative restructure has been recognised in the Statement of Administered Income and
Expenses.

Comparative Figures
The presentation and classification of items in the financial report are consistent with prior periods except
where a specific Accounting Policy Statement or Australian Accounting Standard have required a change.

Comparative figures have been restated on an AIFRS basis.

The comparatives have been restated to assist users’ understanding of the current reporting period and do
not replace the original financial report for the preceding period.

Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

Taxation
The Department is not subject to income tax. The Department is liable for payroll tax, fringe benefits tax
and the goods and services tax.

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

. where the amount of GST incurred by the Department as a purchaser is not recoverable from the
Australian Taxation Office;
. receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

Income and Expenses

Income and expenses are recognised in the Department’s Income Statement when and only when it is
probable that the flow of economic benefits to or from the Department will occur and can be reliably
measured.

Income and expenses have been classified according to their nature in accordance with the Accounting
Policy Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework and have not been offset unless
required or permitted by a specific accounting standard.

In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework II General Purpose Financial Reporting Framework, the
financial report’s notes disclose income, expenses, financial assets and financial liabilities where the
counterparty/transaction is with an entity within the SA Government as at the reporting date, classified
according to their nature.

Revenues from fees and charges are derived from the provision of goods and services to other

SA Government agencies and to the public. This revenue is recognised upon delivery of the service to the
client or by reference to the stage of completion.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2,12

2.13

Income and Expenses (continued)
Community Emergency Services Fund revenue is received from Revenue SA and the Department for
Transport, Energy and Infrastructure.

Administered Fees and Charges includes Victims of Crime levies totalling $8.0 million ($7.7 million) received
from other SA Government entities.

Revenues from disposal of non-current assets is recognised when control of the asset has passed to the
buyer.

Grants are amounts provided by the Department to entities for general assistance or for a particular
purpose. Grants may be for capital or recurrent purposes and the name or category reflects the use of the
grant. The grants given are usually subject to terms and conditions set out in the contract,
correspondence, or by legislation.

Grant expenditure administered by the Department includes $24.9 million ($23.8 million) paid to
SA Government entities.

Revenues from (Payments to) SA Government
Appropriations for program funding are recognised as revenues when the Department obtains control over
the funding. Control over appropriations is normally obtained upon receipt.

Payments to the SA Government include the return of surplus cash pursuant to the cash alignment policy,
taxation revenues and expiation fees received on behalf of the government and paid directly to the
Consolidated Account.

Current and Non-Current Classification

Assets and liabilities are characterised as either current or non-current in nature. The Department has a
clearly identifiable operating cycle of 12 months. Assets and liabilities that are expected to be consumed or
realised as part of the normal operating cycle have been classified as current assets or current liabilities.
All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less that are readily converted to cash and are used in the
cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

Cash is measured at nominal value.

Receivables
Receivables include amounts receivable from trade, prepayments and other accruals.

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of selling goods and services to other agencies and to the
public. Trade receivables are due within 30 days after the issue of an invoice or the goods/services have
been provided under a contractual arrangement.

Other debtors arise outside the normal course of selling goods and services to other agencies and to the
public.

The Department determines the provision for doubtful debts based on a review of balances within trade
receivables that are unlikely to be collected. These are generally receivables that are 90 days or more
overdue.

Non-Current Asset Acquisition and Recognition

Assets are initially recorded at cost or at the value of any liabilities assumed, plus any incidental cost
involved with the acquisition. Where assets are acquired for no cost or minimal cost they are recorded at
their fair value in the Balance Sheet. If however, the assets are acquired at no or nominal cost as part of a
restructuring of administrative arrangements then the assets are recorded at the value recorded by the
transferor prior to transfer.

The Department capitalises all non-current physical assets with a value of $5 000 or greater in accordance
with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework. Items with an acquisition cost less than
$5 000 are expensed in the year of acquisition.

Revaluation of Non-Current Assets
In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework, all non-current tangible
assets are revalued at written down current cost (a proxy for fair value).

Every three years, the Department revalues its land, buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, plant
and equipments and mobile transport assets. However, if at any time management considers that the
carrying amount of an asset materially differs from its fair value then the asset will be revalued regardless
of when the last valuation took place. Non-current tangible assets that are acquired between revaluations
are held at cost until the next valuation, where they are revalued to fair value.
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2.15

2.16

2.17
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Revaluation of Non-Current Assets (continued)

Land, buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, plant and equipment and mobile transport assets were
revalued in accordance with the ‘fair value’ method of valuation as at 1 July 2005. Library collections were
revalued in May 2002. Information technology assets are valued at cost.

Revaluation increments are recognised in the asset revaluation reserve and revaluation decrements are only
offset against revaluation increments relating to the same class of asset and any excess is recognised as an
expense.

Impairment

All non-current tangible and intangible assets are tested for indication of impairment at each reporting date.
Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. An amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.

For revalued assets an impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation reserve.

Depreciation and Amortisation of Non-Current Assets

All non-current assets, having a limited useful life, are systematically depreciated/amortised over their
useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their service potential. Amortisation is used in
relation to intangible assets such as software, while depreciation is applied to tangible assets such as
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are written off to their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives to the Department using, in all cases, the straight line method of depreciation.
Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the estimated useful life
of the improvement or the unexpired period of the lease.

Heritage assets include many items that are unique due to their historical or cultural interest and are not
depreciated due to their long and indeterminate useful lives.

Depreciation/amortisation rates and methods are reviewed at each balance date and necessary adjustments
are recognised in the current and future reporting periods as appropriate.

Depreciation and amortisation for non-current assets is determined as follows:

Class of Assets Depreciation Method Remaining Useful life (Years)
Buildings and other structures Straight line 4-26
Leasehold improvements Straight line Remaining life of lease
Plant and equipment Straight line 1-8
Information Technology Straight line 3-5
Mobile transport assets Straight line 5-16
Payables

Payables include creditors, accrued expenses and employee on-costs.

Creditors represent the amounts owing for goods and services received prior to the end of the reporting
period that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Creditors include all unpaid invoices received
relating to the normal operations of the Attorney-General’s Department.

Accrued expenses represent goods and services provided by other parties during the period that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period and where an invoice has not been received.

All payables are measured at their nominal amount and are normally settled within 30 days from the date
of the invoice or date the invoice is first received.

Employee on-costs include superannuation contributions and payroll tax with respect to outstanding
liabilities for salaries and wages, long service leave and annual leave.

The Department makes contributions to several State Government and externally managed superannuation
schemes. These contributions are treated as an expense when they occur. There is no liability for
payments to beneficiaries as they have been assumed by the respective superannuation schemes. The only
liability outstanding at balance date relates to any contributions due but not yet paid to the South
Australian Superannuation Board.

Employee Benefits

These benefits accrue for employees as a result of services provided up to the reporting date that remain
unpaid. No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick
leave taken in future years by employees is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement of sick leave.

Liability for salaries and wages are measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at remuneration
rates current at reporting date.
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Leave

The liability for employee benefits includes provision for annual leave and long service leave. The liability
for annual leave is measured using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. The
liability for annual leave reflects the value of total annual leave entitlements of all employees as at
30 June 2006 and is measured at the nominal amount.

The liability for long service leave has been calculated in accordance with the short hand method using a
benchmark number of seven years service as advised by the Department of Treasury and Finance. The
calculation is consistent with the Department’s experience of employee retention and leave taken.

2.18 Provisions
Workers Compensation
A liability has been reported to reflect workers compensation claims. The workers compensation liability,
which was based on an actuarial assessment, was provided by the Public Sector Occupational Health and
Injury Management Branch of the Department of Administrative and Information Services.
The workers compensation provision is based on an actuarial assessment prepared by Taylor Fry Consulting
Actuaries. The Attorney-General’s Department’s liability is an allocation of the Justice Portfolio’s total
assessment.

2.19 Leases
The Department has a number of operating leases and payments are expensed on a basis which is
representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives taking the form of ‘free’ leasehold improvements and rent holidays are recognised as
liabilities. These liabilities are reduced by allocating lease payments between rental expense and reduction
of the liability.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

3.1 Adopting Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
The Department adopted Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for
the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006.
The Department has assessed the impact that the transition from previous Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles to Australian Equivalents to IFRSs has had on its reported financial position, financial performance
and cash flows. This assessment concluded that there was no material impact.

3.2 Changes in Capitalisation Policy of Property, Plant and Equipment
A change in accounting policy was adopted by the Attorney-General’s Department with effect from
1 July 2005. Property, plant and equipment assets will now be expensed in the period in which they are
acquired if they have an acquisition cost of less than $5 000. The change in accounting policy resulted in a
decrease in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet for the year
ended 30 June 2005 of $439 000 ($206 000).

4. Program Class Schedule of the Department

Information about the Department’s programs are set out in the Programs Schedule. A program is a grouping of
related sub-programs that contribute to the achievement of agency and government objectives.

Program 1: Policy Advice and Legal Services

This program is focused on increasing the SA community’s and industry’s awareness of their
rights, responsibilities and confidence that the system of justice is fair, equitable and accessible.
It also provides the people of South Australia with an independent and effective prosecution
service which is timely, efficient and just.

Program 2: Consumer and Business Affairs

This program covers the fair trading legislation, regulating defined business activities and
maintaining business and civil records for South Australia through the provision of court and
tribunal case resolution, alternative dispute resolution, licensing, regulatory and registration
services.

Program 3: Liquor and Gambling Services

This program deals with encouraging responsible attitudes towards the promotion, sale, supply,
consumption and use of liquor and gambling products.

Program 4: Multicultural Services

This program is focused on building community capacity and safe communities by having sound
public sector programs that are designed to implement the State Government’'s policy
commitments and promote equity of access to services.

Program 5: Equal Opportunity

This program is focused on promoting equality of opportunity for the community through the
administration of anti-discrimination legislation by examining and responding to complaints and
providing information, education and training to encourage compliance with legislation.
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Program 6:

Program 7:

Program 8:

Program 9:

Program 10:

Program 11:

Program 12:

Attorney-General’s

Police Complaints Authority

Included in this program is the requirement to maintain public confidence in, and proper
accountability of SA Police Department through the provision of complaint investigation and
resolution services.

Ombudsman Services

This program covers the investigation and complaints resolutions against State and Local
government agencies. It is focused on ensuring that the public receives fair treatment from
government bodies and that public administration is reasonable and just.

Crime Prevention

This program deals with initiating and supporting crime prevention projects and local crime
prevention programs by achieving a reduction in crime through working with a range of partners
to develop appropriate crime prevention strategies and improved practices.

Crime Statistics
This program covers monitoring, research and evaluation into crime and criminal justice by
accurate and timely reporting on trends in crime and criminal justice.

Justice Portfolio Services

This program is focused on providing excellence in customer service in the delivery of the
following support services: financial, business and contract management, Justice technology,
portfolio human resources, information knowledge management, strategic development and
communications, business reform, Ministerial offices and support, Justice executive and legal
community centre along with other grants.

Guardianship Services

This program covers services to promote and protect the rights and interests of people with
reduced mental capacity and, where appropriate, their carers, through the Guardianship Board
and the Office of the Public Advocate.

General - Not Attributed
Information about the Department’s revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities that are not
attributable to the above programs.

Administered Items

Program 1:

Program 2:

Program 3:

Program 4:

Program 5:

Program 6:

Liquor and Gambling Services

This administered program recognises activities in relation to the receipt of payments associated
with Casino Operations, Gaming Machines and Gaming Taxation. It also recognises receipts and
payments associated with Betting Services and Racing Operations.

Consumer and Business Affairs

This administered program recognises activities in relation to the Agents Indemnity Fund, the
Second Hand Vehicles Compensation Fund, the Co-operatives Liquidation Account and the
Companies Liquidation Account. This program also includes the receipts of Commonwealth
grants to State Government for ‘Forgone Revenue’ per the Corporations Agreement 2002. The
Commonwealth funds received by AGD are paid to the Consolidated Account.

Victims of Crime

This administered program relates to receipts and payments associated with the Victims of Crime
Act 2001. The Act provides for payment of compensation to persons who suffer injury as a result
of criminal acts and the recovery from the offenders. Payments to victims and the monies
recovered from offenders are processed through a special interest bearing deposit account.

Emergency Services Levy

This administered program relates to the collection of the Emergency Services Levy and the
application of these funds. The levies are collected in accordance with the Emergency Services
Funding Act 1998 by Revenue SA and the Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure
and are credited to the fund from which Attorney-General’s Department makes payments to the
emergency services agencies, meets the costs of collecting the levies and operating the Fund. As
at 31 March 2006 administration of the Fund was transferred to SAFECOM (refer Note 2.3).

Bodies in the Barrels
This administered program relates to the bodies in the Barrels murder case. The
Attorney-General’s Department administer the operations relating to this case.

Trust Accounts

This administered program relates to activities associated with the Residential Tenancies Fund,
Crown Solicitor’s Trust Account and the Retail Shop Leases Fund. The Attorney-General’'s
Department (AGD) receives monies which are held in trust pending the outcome of future events
or settlements. AGD does not have direct control over these funds and acts in the capacity as
trustee. Beneficiaries include other government departments for the sale of government
property, claims from individuals and funding for the administration of these trusts (funded by
the income earned from investing the Funds’ monies).
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5.

Administered Items (continued)

Program 7:

Emergency Management Communications

This program relates to activities associated with the implementation of the Audio Management
System (AMS), Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) and Portfolio Radio and Telecommunications
Costs for the Justice Portfolio.

Program 8: Legal Aid
This administered program relates to grant payments made to the Legal Services Commission.
The Attorney-General’s Department receives annual specific grant funding from the
Commonwealth which together with the State Government component is paid to the Legal
Services Commission. The Commonwealth grant funding provides legal assistance for matters
arising under Commonwealth law, while the State Government grant funding is expended on
State law matters.
Program 9: Other
This program reflects the financial performance and position of various administered activities,
including: the payment of Ministers, Ombudsman and Solicitor-General’s salaries; the Child
Abuse Program, Expensive State Criminal Cases, Kapunda Road Royal Commission, Children in
State Care Enquiry and Wangary Coronial Inquest. This program accommodates the minor
programs that do not warrant their own specific program.
Employee Benefits Cost 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Salaries and wages 60 234 56 115
Employee on-costs 12 060 11 350
Annual leave 5403 5317
Long service leave 2 273 2013
TVSP (refer below) 1223 -
Board fees 1114 1034
Other 7 669
Total Employee Benefits Costs 82 314 76 498
Targeted Voluntary Separation Packages (TVSPs)
TVSPs paid to employees during the reporting period 1223 -
Recovery from the Department of Treasury and Finance in respect of TVSPs (1 223) -
Annual and long service leave accrued over the period of employment for
employees who received TVSPs 408 -
2006 2005
Number of Number of
Employees Employees
Number of employees who were paid TVSPs during the reporting period 12 -

Remuneration of Employees
The number of employees whose remuneration received or receivable
falls within the following bands:

$100 001 - $110 000
$110 001 - $120 000
$120 001 - $130 000
$130 001 - $140 000
$140 001 - $150 000
$150 001 - $160 000
$160 001 - $170 000
$170 001 - $180 000
$180 001 - $190 000
$190 001 - $200 000
$200 001 - $210 000
$210 001 - $220 000
$220 001 - $230 000
$230 001 - $240 000
$240 001 - $250 000
$250 001 - $260 000
$260 001 - $270 000
$270 001 - $280 000
$280 001 - $290 000
$290 001 - $300 000
$350 001 - $360 000
$380 001 - $390 000
$390 001 - $400 000

32 26
23 17
10 8
6 10
8 20
*16 9
*7 2
6 5
3 3
6 4
4 2
3 2
2 2
2 2
1 -
- 2
*1 -
1 2
*2 1
2 -
- 1
1 -
1 -
Total Number of Employees 137 118
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Remuneration of Employees (continued)

The table includes all employees who received remuneration of $100 000 or more during the year. Remuneration
of employees reflects all costs of employment including salaries and wages, superannuation contributions, fringe
benefits tax and any other salary sacrifice benefits. Total remuneration received or due and receivable by these

employees was $20.7 million ($17.4 million).

* Includes officers whose normal remuneration exceeded $100 000 and received a termination payment

(including TVSP).

Supplies and Services 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Computing and communication 10 296 9 200
Accommodation 8 637 8 405
Legal fees 2 804 1678
Contract staff 2 209 1 688
Office expenses 2143 2018
Staff payments 2 093 2100
Telephone related expenses 1 465 1578
Motor vehicle expenses 1 095 1047
Promotions and publications 1 092 868
Tax and taxable payments 725 749
Consultancies 386 200
Insurance 88 80
Other 5 378 4 749
Total Supplies and Services 38 411 34 360
Supplies and Services provided by entities within the SA Government:
Computing and communication 5 590 5 602
Accommodation 8 260 8 024
Legal fees 78 65
Contract staff 94 -
Office expenses 46 35
Staff payments 256 232
Telephone related expenses 862 913
Motor vehicle expenses 1 016 977
Promotions and publications 126 72
Consultancies 12 -
Insurance 88 80
Other 1663 1445
Total Supplies and Services - SA Government Entities 18 091 17 445
The number and dollar amount of consultancies 2006 2006 2005 2005
paid/payable (included in Supplies and Services Number $'000 Number $'000
expense) that fell within the following bands:
Below $10 000 9 32 13 36
$10 000 - $50 000 4 99 8 164
Above $50 000 2 255 - -
Total paid/payable to the
Consultants Engaged 15 386 21 200
Depreciation and Amortisation 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Leasehold improvements 1225 807
Information technology 821 1221
Plant and equipment 299 397
Mobile transport assets 16 34
Buildings and other structures 28 22
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 2 389 2481
Grants and Subsidies
Grants to: Community Legal Centre 3705 3622
Aboriginal Legal Rights Movement 2 380 1516
Grants by: Justice Strategy Unit 1278 1 353
Native Title Unit 1 089 1 449
Crime Prevention Unit 892 1370
Multicultural SA 530 571
Other 659 859
Total Grants and Subsidies 10 533 10 740
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9.

10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

Grants and Subsidies (continued)

Grants and subsidies paid/payable to entities within the SA Government:

Justice Strategy Unit
Native Title Unit
Crime Prevention Unit
Multicultural SA
Other

Total Grants and Subsidies - SA Government Entities

Other Expenses
Witness payments
Other

Total Other Expenses

Other expenses paid/payable to entities within the SA Government:
Other

Total Other Expenses - SA Government Entities

Auditor’'s Remuneration
Audit fees paid/payable to the Auditor-General’s Department

Total Auditor’'s Remuneration

Other Services
No other services were provided by the Auditor-General’s Department.

Revenues from Fees and Charges
Licence and regulatory fees

Legal services

Network services

Recovery of administration expenditure
Other

Total Fees and Charges

Fees and charges received/receivable from entities within the SA Government:

Licence and regulatory fees

Legal services

Network services

Recovery of administration expenditure
Other

Total Fees and Charges - SA Government Entities

Interest Revenues
Interest from entities within the SA Government

Total Interest Revenues

Net Loss from Disposal of Assets
Fixtures and Fittings:
Proceeds from disposal
Net book value of assets disposed
Net Loss from Disposal of Fixtures and Fittings

Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds from disposal
Net book value of assets disposed
Net Loss from Disposal of Plant and Equipment

Information Technology:
Proceeds from disposal
Net book value of assets disposed
Net Loss from Disposal of Information Technology

Total Assets:
Total proceeds from disposal
Total net book value of assets disposed

Total Net Loss from Disposal of Assets
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2006 2005
$'000 $'000
893 714
932 718
98 565

7 8

194 211
2124 2216
574 674
335 469
909 1143
332 329
332 329
180 195
180 195

23 246 21 880
13 671 12 823
9 828 9217
5 995 5413
2923 2 603
55 663 51 936
2 4

13 526 12 744
9 828 9217
5974 5357
1972 2 030
31 302 29 352
1186 1 020
1186 1020
(4) (72)
(4) (72)
(80) 1)
(80) 1)
(3) (4)
(3) (4)
(87) (77)
(87) (77)




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Other Income

Sundry recoveries
Other

Total Other Income

Other Income received/receivable from entities within the SA Government:
Sundry recoveries
Other

Other Income - SA Government Entities

Revenues from/Payments to SA Government
Appropriations from Consolidated Account pursuant to the Appropriation Act

Total Revenues from SA Government

Payments to SA Government:
Payment to Treasury under Cash Alignment Policy

Payments to SA Government

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Special Deposit Account with Westpac Bank®
Cash and cheques in transit

Cash on hand (including petty cash)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

(1) This amount includes accrual appropriation of $14.1 million ($11.1 million).
not available for general use ie funds can only be used in accordance with the Treasurer’s approval.

Interest Rate Risk

Attorney-General’s

2006 2005
$'000 $'000
5 587 5020
1 909 2911
7 496 7931
4 347 3 849
927 1241
5274 5090
71 271 65 209
71 271 65 209
3 962 14 198
3 962 14 198
21723 19 738
24 135

41 41

21 788 19 914

The balances of these funds are

Cash on hand is non-interest bearing. Deposits at call and with the Treasurer are interest bearing at floating rates.

Receivables 2006 2005
$'000 $’000
Receivables 5 277 5 207
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (533) (530)
GST receivable 1150 1354
Accrued interest 41 32
Total Receivables 5935 6 063
Receivables from SA Government entities:
Receivables 4773 4 637
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (533) (530)
Accrued interest 41 32
Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 4 281 4139
Other Current Assets
Prepayments 189 380
Work in progress 137 273
Total Other Current Assets 326 653
Other Current Assets from SA Government entities:
Prepayments 2 1
Work in progress 137 273
Total Other Current Assets from SA Government Entities 139 274
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2006
Accumulated Written
Cost/ Depreciation/ Down
Valuation Amortisation Value
$'000 $'000 $'000
Leasehold improvements ? 4 497 1225 3272
Plant and equipment @ 2 233 509 1724
Information technology 5 870 4618 1 252
Land ¥ 715 - 715
Library collections 407 - 407
Buildings and other structures () 417 28 389
Mobile transport assets @ 206 16 190
14 345 6 396 7 949
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20.

21.

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 2005
Accumulated Written
Cost/ Depreciation/ Down
Valuation Amortisation Value
$'000 $'000 $'000
Leasehold improvements ? 9 691 7 306 2 385
Plant and equipment 8 133 6 144 1989
Information technology 7 160 5452 1708
Land ¥ 415 - 415
Library collections ) 407 - 407
Buildings and other structures ) 1215 907 308
Mobile transport assets 456 299 157
27 477 20 108 7 369

(1) Valuations of land and buildings were performed by David Conigrave, AAPI, Certified Practising

Valuer of the Australian Valuation Office as at 1 July 2005.

(2) Valuations of leasehold improvements, furniture, mobile transport assets and specialised plant and
equipment were performed by Simon B O’Leary, AAPI, MSAA, Certified Practising Valuer - Plant and

Machinery of the Australian Valuation Office as at 1 July 2005.
(3) Library collections represents valuation as per M Treloar as at 15 May 2002.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment Movement Schedule

Mobile

Leasehold Transport Information

Land Buildings Imprvments Assets  Technology

$’000 $’000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying amount 1 July 415 308 2 385 157 1708

Additions - - 25 - 367

Disposals - - - - (2)

Revaluation 300 109 2 087 49 -

Depreciation and amortisation - (28) (1 .225) (16) (821)

Carrying Amount 30 June 715 389 3272 190 1252

2006

Total

Property

Library Plant and Plant and

Collections Equipment Equipment

$'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying amount 1 July 407 1989 7 369

Additions - 79 471

Disposals - (84) (86)

Revaluation - 39 2584

Depreciation and amortisation - (299) (2 389)

Carrying Amount 30 June 407 1724 7 949

Payables 2006 2005

Current: $'000 $'000

Creditors 2934 2 630

Employee on-costs 1335 1217

GST payable 325 537

Accruals 558 538

Total Current Payables 5152 4 922

Non-Current:

Employee on-costs 1617 1 946

Total Non-Current Payables 1617 1 946

Total Payables 6 769 6 868
Payables to SA Government entities:

Creditors 429 538

Employee on-costs 2952 3163

Accruals 198 198

Total Payables to SA Government Entities 3579 3 899
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22, (a) Employee Benefits 2006 2005
Current: $'000 $’000
Annual leave 4 280 4 298
Long service leave 930 875
Accrued salaries and wages 1372 1 051
Total Current Employee Benefits 6 582 6 224
Non-Current:
Long service leave 14 201 13 705
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits 14 201 13 705
Total Employee Benefits 20 783 19 929

(b) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Accrued Salaries and Wages:

On-costs included in Payables - Current (Note 21) 229 176
Employee Benefits - Current (Note 22(a)) 1372 1 051
1 601 1227
Annual Leave:

On-costs included in Payables - Current (Note 21) 913 917
Employee Benefits - Current (Note 22(a)) 4 280 4 298
5193 5215

Long Service Leave:
On-costs included in Payables - Current (Note 21) 193 124
Employee Benefits - Current (Note 22(a)) 930 875
1123 999

Long Service Leave:
On-costs included in Payables - Non-Current (Note 21) 1617 1 946
Employee Benefits - Non-Current (Note 22(a)) 14 201 13 705
15 818 15 651
Aggregate Employee Benefit and Related On-Costs 23 735 23 092

23. Provision
Current:

Provisions for workers compensation 242 296
Total Current Provisions 242 296

Non-Current:

Provisions for workers compensation 1014 1512
Total Non-Current Provisions 1014 1521
Total Provisions 1 256 1 808
24. Other Current and Non-Current Liabilities
Current:
Control and working account balances 479 1027
Lease incentive 202 211
Unearned revenue 31 11
Total Current Other Liabilities 712 1 249
Non-Current:
Lease incentive 621 823
Total Non-Current Other Liabilities 621 823
Total Other Liabilities 1333 2072

Other liabilities from SA Government entities:

Lease incentive 823 1034
Control and working account balances 352 268
Unearned revenue 25 -

Total Other Liabilities from SA Government Entities 1200 1 302

25. Cash Flow Reconciliation
Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June as per:

Cash Flow Statement 21 788 19914
Balance Sheet 21 788 19914
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25. Cash Flow Reconciliation (continued) 2006 2005
Reconciliation of Net Cost of Providing Services to Net Cash provided by $'000 $'000
(used in) Operating Activities:
Net cost of providing services (67 262) (60 980)
Revenues from SA Government 71 271 65 209
Payments to SA Government (3962) (14 198)
Add: Non-Cash Items:

Depreciation and amortisation 2 389 2481
Loss from disposal of assets 87 77
Allowance for doubtful debts 3 140

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase in employee benefits 854 1164
(Decrease) Increase in payables (196) 747
Decrease in other liabilities (739) (657)
(Decrease) Increase in provisions (552) 386
(Decrease) Increase in receivables 125 (515)
Decrease in prepayments 191 19
Decrease in other assets 136 3476
Net Cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities 2 345 (2 651)

26. Commitments

Operating Leases
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date are
payable as follows:

Payable no later than one year 7 950 7 811
Payable later than one year and not later than five years 13 270 17 613
Payable later than five years 873 7 447

Total Operating Leases 22 093 32 871

These operating lease commitments are not recognised in the financial report as liabilities.

The accommodation and office equipment leases are non-cancellable leases with rental payable monthly in
advance. Contingent rental provisions within the accommodation lease agreements provide for the minimum lease
payments to be increased on specified rent review dates. Options exist to renew the accommodation leases at the
end of the term of the lease.

2006 2005

Other Commitments $'000 $’000
Grants® 45 673 57 405
Capital® 2 165 1047
Motor vehicles® 917 855
Other® 63 34
Total 48 818 59 341
Payable no later than one year 19 118 19 334
Payable later than one year and not later than five years 29 700 40 007
Total Other Commitments 48 818 59 341

(1) Grant amounts payable under agreements in respect of which the grantee has yet to provide the services
required under the agreement. The grants cover the period 2005 to 2010.

(2) Outstanding contractual payments for building works and maintenance under construction.

(3) Agreements for the provision of motor vehicles to senior executive officers or sections (ie pool vehicles)
with Fleet SA, Department for Administrative and Information Services. There are no purchase options
available to the Department.

(4) Other commitments relate to purchase orders placed for goods and services before 30 June 2006.

27. Contingent Assets and Liabilities
The Attorney-General’s Department does not have any contingent assets or liabilities.
28. Financial Instruments
(a) Terms, Conditions and Accounting Policies
Financial Assets
. Cash and Deposits are available at call and are recorded at cost. Interest on cash at bank is
calculated quarterly by the Department of Treasury and Finance.
. Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been

received. Receivables are reported at amounts due to the Department. Receivables are due within
30 days of an invoice being raised.

Financial Liabilities

. Payables and Accruals are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid and are settled within the
normal terms of payment of 30 days, unless otherwise agreed.
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30.

31.

32.

(b) Interest Rate Risk

Floating Interest

Non-Interest

Total Carrying
Amount as per

Attorney-General’s

Weighted Average
Effective Interest

Rate

2005 2006 2005
$'000 Percent Percent

Rate Bearing Balance Sheet
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006
Financial Assets: $'000 $’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash on hand - - 41 41 41 41
Cash at bank 21723 19 738 - - 21723 19 738
Cash and cheques
in transit - - 24 135 24 135
Receivables - - 4 785 4 709 4 785 4 709
Total 21 723 19 738 4 850 4885 26573 24 623
Financial Liabilities:
Payables - - 2934 2631 2934 2631
Accruals - - 558 538 558 538
Total - - 3492 3169 3492 3169

5.43 5.35

(c) Net Fair Values

All financial instruments are valued at the carrying amount as per the Balance Sheet, which approximates
net fair value. The carrying amount of Financial Assets approximates net fair value due to their short term
maturity or being receivable on demand. The carrying amount of Financial Liabilities is considered to be a

reasonable estimate of net fair value.
Employee Benefits Cost - Administered Items

Salaries and wages
Employee on-costs
Board fees

Annual leave

Long service leave

Total Employee Benefits Cost

Community Emergency Services Fund Payments - Administered Items

Payments to Emergency Services
Emergency Services Levy collection fees

Total Community Emergency Services Fund Payments'!

(1) Payments totalling $125 000 ($166 000) were paid to SA Government entities.

Depreciation and Amortisation - Administered Items
Leasehold improvements

Information Technology

Plant and equipment

Total Depreciation and Amortisation

Other Expenses - Administered Items
Victims of Crime claims

Agents Indemnity Fund claims

Legal fees

Contribution payments

Betting services

Accommodation

Computing and communication
Consultancies

Other

Total Other Expenses

Other Expenses paid/payable to entities within the SA Government:
Victims of Crime claims
Legal fees
Contribution payments
Accommodation
Computing and communication
Consultancies
Other

Total Other Expenses - SA Government Entities
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2006 2005
$’000 $'000
4994 5281
897 804
624 580
124 116
79 76

6 718 6 857
121 654 161 227
5 008 6 802
126 662 168 029
244 245
72 77

30 62
346 384
12 878 13 871
5 593 6 192
3 946 3997
1710 4173
911 1532
880 686
268 938
110 177

7 577 7 839
33873 39 405
735 808

1 256 1017
1710 4173
843 686
114 816

5 20
4621 2263
9 284 9783
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32. Other Expenses - Administered Items (continued)
The number and dollar amount of consultancies paid/
payable (included in other expense) that fell within the

following bands:
Below $10 000
$10 000 - $50 000
Above $50 000

Total paid/payable to the Consultants Engaged

33. Other Income - Administered Items

Sundry recoveries
Other

Total Other Income

Other Income received/receivable from entities within the SA Government:

Sundry recoveries
Others

Total Other Income - SA Government Entities

34. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Administered Items

Special Deposit Account with Westpac Bank®
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

(1) Movement in Trust Accounts

Crown Solicitor’s

Residential Tenancies

2006 2006 2005 2005
Number $'000 Number $’000
2 2 5 9

1 18 3 85

1 20 1 83

4 110 9 177
2006 2005

$'000 $'000

282 915

1 353 1 658

1 635 2 573

9 660

200 300

209 960

75 008 93 628

75 008 93 628

Retail Shop Leases

Trust Account Fund Fund
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 July 4 048 10 308 2204 2920 210 484
Receipts 57 875 35078 46 904 40 833 725 625
Payments (55 298) (41 338) (42 336) (41 549) (391) (899)
Balance at 30 June 6 625 4 048 6772 2 204 544 210
35. Receivables - Administered Items 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Receivables 25 960 27 829
Accrued interest 563 669
GST receivable 11 32
Total Receivables 26 534 28 530
Receivables from SA Government entities:
Receivables 732 1047
Accrued interest 219 486
Total Receivables from SA Government Entities 951 1533
36. Other Current Assets - Administered Items
Current:
Prepayments 1 355 1281
Treasury Fund balances 67 7 525
Other 1760 1 504
Total Other Current Assets 3182 10 310
Other Current Assets from SA Government entities:
Prepayments 6 -
Treasury Fund balances 67 7 525
Other 675 520
Total Other Current Assets from SA Government Entities 748 8 045
37. Financial Assets - Administered Items
Current:
Funds invested with the Public Trustee 27 557 21 449
Total Current Financial Assets 27 557 21 449
Non-Current:
Funds invested with the Public Trustee 75 176 72 437
Total Non-Current Financial Assets 75176 72 437
Total Financial Assets 102733 93 886
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37. Financial Assets - Administered Items (continued) 2006 2005
Financial assets represent funds invested with the Public Trustee as follows: $'000 $'000
Residential Tenancies Fund 63 637 58 564
Agents Indemnity Fund 34 239 30871
Second Hand Vehicles Compensation Fund 2 284 2 067
Retail Shop Leases Fund 2573 2 384
Total Financial Assets 102 733 93 886
38. (a) Property, Plant and Equipment - Administered Items
2006 2005
Accumulated Written Accumulated Written
Cost/ Depreciation/ Down Cost/ Depreciation/ Down
Valuation Amortisation Value Valuation Amortisation Value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Leasehold improvements 735 244 491 1574 1251 323
Information technology 317 175 142 335 138 197
Plant and equipment 113 39 74 634 552 82
1165 458 707 2 543 1941 602

(1) Valuations of leasehold improvements, plant and equipment were performed by Simon B O’Leary AAPI,
MSAA, Certified Practising Valuer - Plant and Machinery of the Australian Valuation Office as at

1 July 2005.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment Movement Schedule - Administered Items

Leasehold Information
Improvements Technology

Plant and

2006
Total
Property,
Plant and

Equipment Equipment

$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount 1 July 323 197 82 602
Additions - 17 14 31
Disposals - - - -
Revaluation 411 - 15 426
Depreciation and amortisation (243) (72) (31) (346)
Other - - (6) (6)
Carrying Amount 30 June 491 142 74 707
39. Payables - Administered Items 2006 2005
Current: $'000 $’000
Creditors 2 476 2873
Employee on-costs 49 49
Accruals 1 041 42
Total Current Payables 3 566 2 964
Non-Current:
Employee on-costs 34 35
Total Non-Current Payables 34 35
Total Payables 3 600 2 999
Payables to SA Government entities:
Creditors 1766 1813
Employee on-costs 83 84
Accruals 1 041 42
Total Payables to SA Government Entities 2 890 1939
40. (a) Employee Benefits - Administered Items
Current:
Annual leave 173 167
Accrued salaries and wages 39 99
Long service leave 19 16
Total Current Employee Benefits 231 282
Non-Current:
Long service leave 298 249
Total Non-Current Employee Benefits 298 249
Total Employee Benefits 529 531
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(b) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs - Administered Items 2006 2005
Accrued Salaries and Wages: $'000 $’000
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 39) 8 11
Employee benefits - Current (Note 40(a)) 39 99
47 110
Annual Leave:
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 39) 37 36
Employee benefits - Current (Note 40(a)) 173 167
210 203
Long Service Leave
On-costs included in payables - Current (Note 39) 4 2
Employee benefits - Current (Note 40(a)) 19 16
23 18
Long Service Leave
On-costs included in payables - Non-Current (Note 39) 34 35
Employee benefits - Non-Current (Note 40(a)) 298 249
332 284
Aggregate Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 612 615
41. Other Current and Non-Current Liabilities - Administered Items
Current:
Gaming and other receipts payable to Treasury and Finance 28 612 52 102
Security bonds lodged 31513 28 324
Crown Solicitor’s Trust Account 6 625 4 048
Control and working account balances 609 599
Lease incentive - 49
Unclaimed monies 12 22
Total Other Current Liabilities 67 371 85 144
Non-Current:
Security bonds lodged 35134 29 700
Total Non-Current Other Liabilities 35134 29 700
Total Other Liabilities 102 505 114 844

Other Current Liabilities from SA Government entities:

Gaming and other receipts payable to Treasury and Finance 28 612 52 102
Lease incentive - 49
Unclaimed monies 12 22

Total Other Current Liabilities from SA Government Entities 28 624 52 173

42, Cash Flow Reconciliation - Administered Items
Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June per:

Cash Flow Statement 75 008 93 628
Balance Sheet 75 008 93 628

Reconciliation of net result after restructure to Net Cash (used in)
provided by Operating Activities:

Net result before restructure 34120 4 479
Add: Non-Cash Items:
Depreciation and amortisation 346 384
Loss on disposal - 1
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
(Decrease) Increase in employee benefits (2) 176
Increase in payables 601 775
(Decrease) Increase in other liabilities (12 339) 25900
Decrease in receivables 2 002 7177
Increase in prepayments (74) (80)
Decrease (Increase) in other assets 7 202 (4 680)
Net Cash (used in) provided by Operating Activities 31 856 34 132
43. Contingent Assets and Liabilities - Administered Items

The Agents Indemnity Fund has an estimated contingent obligation to pay $500 000 relating to current and
expected claims against the Fund. The Second Hand Vehicles Compensation Fund has an estimated contingent
obligation to pay $35 000 relating to current and expected claims against the Fund.

The Department is of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of these matters, as it is not probable
that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement.
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44, Financial Instruments - Administered Items
(a) Terms, Conditions and Accounting Policies.
Financial Assets
. Cash and Deposits are available at call and are recorded at cost. Interest on cash at bank is
calculated quarterly by the Department of Treasury and Finance.
. Receivables are raised for all goods and services provided for which payment has not been

received. Receivables are reported at amounts due to the Department. Receivables are due within
30 days of an invoice being raised.
. Investments are recorded at net fair value based upon valuation provided by the Public Trustee.

Financial Liabilities
. Payables and Accruals are raised for all amounts billed but unpaid and are settled within the
normal terms of payment of 30 days, unless otherwise agreed.

(b) Interest Rate Risk Total Carrying Weighted Average
Floating Interest Non-Interest Amount as per Effective Interest
Rate Bearing Balance Sheet Rate
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Financial Assets: $'000 $'000 $'000 $’000 $'000 $'000 Percent Percent
Cash at bank 75 008 93 628 - - 75 008 93 628 5.43 5.35
Cash and cheques
in transit - - - - - -
Investments 102 733 93 886 - - 102733 93 886 9.04 8.35
Receivables - - 26 523 28 498 26 523 28 498
Total 177 741 187 514 26 523 28 498 204 264 216 012

Financial Liabilities:

Payables - - 2476 2873 2476 2873
Accruals - - 1041 42 1041 42
Total - - 3517 2915 3517 2915

(c) Net Fair Values
All financial instruments are valued at the carrying amount as per the Balance Sheet, which approximates
net fair value. The carrying amount of Financial Assets approximates net fair value due to their short term
maturity or being receivable on demand. The carrying amount of Financial Liabilities is considered to be a
reasonable estimate of net fair value.
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RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES FUND

The Residential Tenancies Act 1995 regulates the relationship of landlords and tenants under residential
tenancy agreements and provides for the establishment of the Residential Tenancies Fund and a Tribunal to
resolve disputes.

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005
Note $'000 $'000
INCOME:
Interest revenue 4 563 3813
Other income 2 161 158
Total Income 4724 3971
EXPENSES:
Staffing costs 3 3 037 2 750
Accommodation 507 441
Depreciation and amortisation 4 302 347
Other expenses 5 1041 1076
Total Expenses 4 887 4 614
NET RESULT (163) (643)
NET RESULT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SA GOVERNMENT
AS OWNER (163) (643)
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2006

2006 2005
CURRENT ASSETS: Note $'000 $'000

Cash and cash equivalents 6 6772 2 204

Investments 18 084 14 376

Receivables 7 265 161
Total Current Assets 25121 16 741

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

Property, plant and equipment 8 528 391

Investments 45 553 44 189
Total Non-Current Assets 46 081 44 580
Total Assets 71 202 61 321

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Security bonds lodged 9 31197 28 042

Payables 10 1235 1166

Other Current liabilities 11 - 50
Total Current Liabilities 32432 29 258

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Security bonds lodged 9 32 745 27 666
Total Non-Current Liabilities 32 745 27 666
Total Liabilities 65 177 56 924

NET ASSETS 6 025 4 397
EQUITY:
Retained earnings 2 252 2 415
Asset revaluation reserve 3773 1982
TOTAL EQUITY 6 025 4 397
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SA GOVERNMENT
AS OWNER 6 025 4 397
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Asset
Revaluation Retained
Reserve Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June 2004 810 3073 3883
Changes in accounting policy - (15) (15)
Restated balance at 30 June 2004 810 3 058 3 868
Gain on revaluation of investments during 2004-05 1172 - 1172
Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2004-05 1172 - 1172
Net result for 2004-05 - (643) (643)
Total Recognised Income and Expense for 2004-05 1172 (643) 529
Balance at 30 June 2005 1982 2415 4 397
Gain on revaluation of investments during 2005-06 1 366 - 1 366
Gain on revaluation of leasehold improvements
during 2005-06 410 - 410
Gain on revaluation of plant and equipment
during 2005-06 15 - 15
Net income/expense recognised directly in
equity for 2005-06 1791 - 1791
Net result for 2005-06 - (163) (163)
Total Recognised Income and Expense for
2005-06 1791 (163) 1628
Balance at 30 June 2006 3773 2 252 6 025

All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2006

2006 2005

Inflows Inflows

(Outflows) (Outflows)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Note $'000 $'000

INFLOWS:

Interest 4 459 3795

Bond lodgements 39 430 33 985

Bond guarantee receipts 2 854 2 887

Other 161 166

Cash provided by Operating Activities 46 904 40 833
OUTFLOWS:

Administration (4 499) (4 433)

Bond refunds (31 197) (28 041)

Bond guarantee payments (2 854) (2 887)

Other (66) (49)

Cash used in Operating Activities (38 616) (35 410)

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities 12 8 288 5423

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

OUTFLOWS:
Payments for investments (3707) (6 139)
Payments for property, plant and equipment (13) -
Cash used in Investing Activities (3 720) (6 139)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (3 720) (6 139)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4 568 (716)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY 2 204 2920
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 6 6772 2 204
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
1.1 Objectives of the Residential Tenancies Fund
The Residential Tenancies Fund (Fund) is established under the Residential Tenancies Act 1995 (Act). The
Fund is kept and administered by the Commissioner for Consumer Affairs. The Fund consists of amounts
received by the Commissioner by way of security bonds and other amounts paid into the Fund under the
Act. The Commissioner will make repayments in respect of security bonds from the Fund. Income derived
from investment of the Fund is applied towards the costs of administering and enforcing the Act, education
of landlords and tenants about their statutory and contractual rights and obligations, and operations of the
Residential Tenancies Tribunal.
1.2 Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are required by section 102(1) of the Residential Tenancies Act 1995 and are a
general purpose financial report.

The statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards and
Accounting Policy Statements and Treasurer’s Instructions issued by the Department of Treasury and
Finance.

The Fund’s Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Equity have been prepared on
an accrual basis and are in accordance with historical cost convention, except for certain assets which, as
noted are at valuation (fair value). Except where stated, no allowance is made for the effect of changing
prices on the results or the financial position.
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1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Basis of Accounting (continued)

Assets and liabilities are recognised in the Fund’s Balance Sheet when and only when it is probable that
future economic benefits will eventuate or be required and the amounts of the assets or liabilities can be
reliably measured. Assets and liabilities arising under agreements equally proportionately unperformed are
however not recognised unless required by an Accounting Standard.

Income and expenses are recognised in the Fund’s Income Statement when and only when the flow or
consumption or loss of economic benefits has occurred and can be reliably measured.

Bond Guarantee Scheme

Under the Bond Guarantee Scheme a guarantee for the bond is given to the landlord by the SA Housing
Trust. In the event of a claim by a landlord, a payment is made by the Residential Tenancies Fund. The
SA Housing Trust then reimburses the Residential Tenancies Fund. The value of bond guarantees lodged at
30 June 2006 is $12.9 million ($12.3 million).

The SA Housing Trust pays interest at an agreed market determined rate to the Residential Tenancies Fund
based on the daily balance of bond guarantees held.

Interest

Under the Residential Tenancies Act 1995, interest is paid to tenants when a bond is repaid to them,
interest is not paid when a bond is paid to landlords or third parties such as the SA Housing Trust. The
interest has not been recorded as a liability, as the Fund does not have a present obligation until the tenant
lodges a claim for the repayment of the bond. It is estimated that the interest liability as at 30 June 2006
is $138 000 ($115 000).

Staffing Costs
Employees of the Attorney-General’s Department are assigned to support the Commissioner in the
administration of the Fund.

No liability for employee benefits (provision for annual leave and long service leave) has been recognised as
this liability rests with the Attorney-General’s Department.

The value of staffing costs reflected in Note 3 includes remuneration paid to members of the Residential
Tenancies Tribunal.

Taxation
The Fund is not subject to income tax. The Fund is liable for payroll tax, fringe benefits tax and the goods
and services tax.

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

. where the amount of GST incurred by the Fund as a purchaser is not recoverable from the
Australian Taxation Office;

. receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

Leases

Operating lease payments are expensed on a basis which is representative of the pattern of benefits
derived from the leased asset. The majority of operating lease payments reflects accommodation
expenses.

Lease incentives taking the form of ‘free’ leasehold improvements and rent holidays are recognised as
liabilities. These liabilities are reduced by allocating lease payments between rental expense and reduction
of the liability.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash means notes and coins held and any deposits held at call with a bank or financial institution. Cash on
deposit represents funds held in a Special Deposit Account with Westpac Bank.

Investments

Investments represent funds deposited with the Public Trustee and are reported at fair value. Investments
are classified as either current or non-current, those to be rolled over within 12 months are classified as
current investments.

Investments are made by way of notional unit holdings in a selection of common funds managed by Public
Trustee. The proportion of unit holdings is dependent upon the investment strategy adopted. As at
30 June the Fund held investments in common funds in the following proportions:

Capital Stable 48 percent
Balance 24 percent
Cash Common Fund 28 percent

Revaluation increments and decrements are recognised in the asset revaluation reserve except where, and
to the extent, the decrement exceeds the balance of the reserve which are recognised as expenses or the
increment reverses previous decrements which are recognised as revenue.
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1.8 Acquisition of Assets
Assets are recognised at cost on acquisition except as stated below. The cost of acquisition includes the fair
value of assets transferred in exchange for liabilities undertaken.
Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised as assets and revenues at
their fair value at the date of acquisition, unless acquired as a consequence of restructuring administrative
arrangements. In the latter case, assets are initially recognised as contributions by owners at the amounts
at which they were recognised in the transferor agency’s accounts immediately prior to the restructuring.
1.9 Property, Plant and Equipment
Asset Recognition Threshold
Purchases of property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the Balance Sheet, except for
purchases costing less than $5000, which are expensed in the year of acquisition (other than where they
form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).
Revaluations
In accordance with Accounting Policy Framework III Asset Accounting Framework, all non-current tangible
assets are revalued at written down current cost (a proxy for fair value).
Every three years, the Department revalues its land, buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, plant
and equipments and mobile transport assets. However, if at any time management considers that the
carrying amount of an asset materially differs from its fair value then the asset will be revalued regardless
of when the last valuation took place. Non-current tangible assets that are acquired between revaluations
are held at cost until the next valuation, where they are revalued to fair value.
Land, buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, plant and equipment and mobile transport assets were
revalued in accordance with the ‘fair value’ method of valuation as at 1 July 2005. Library collections were
revalued in May 2002. Information technology assets are valued at cost.
Revaluation increments are recognised in the asset revaluation reserve and revaluation decrements are only
offset against revaluation increments relating to the same class of asset and any excess is recognised as an
expense.
Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are written off to their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives to the Fund using, in all cases, the straight line method of depreciation.
Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the estimated useful life
of the improvement or the unexpired period of the lease.
Depreciation/amortisation rates and methods are reviewed at each balance date and necessary adjustments
are recognised in the current or future reporting periods as appropriate. Residual values are re-estimated
for a change in prices only when assets are revalued.
Depreciation and amortisation rates applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following
remaining useful lives:
Years
Leasehold improvements Remaining life of lease
Plant and equipment 1-8
Information technology 3-5
The aggregate amount of depreciation allocated for each class of asset during the reporting period is
disclosed in Note 4.
1.10 Comparative Figures
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in these financial
statements where required.
1.11 Rounding
Amounts have been rounded to the nearest $1 000.
1.12 Adopting Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
The Fund adopted Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for the first
time for the year ended 30 June 2006.
The impact that the transition from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to Australian
Equivalents to IFRSs has had on the Funds reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows
has been assessed. This assessment concluded that there was no material impact.
Other Income 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Management fee recovery 154 148
Trainee salary recovery 7 10
Total Other Income 161 158
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Staffing Costs 2006 2005
$'000 $'000
Salaries and wages 2 556 2 330
Payroll tax and superannuation expenses 404 345
Long service leave expenses 77 75
Total Staffing Costs 3 037 2 750
Depreciation and Amortisation
Leasehold improvements 206 209
Information technology 67 77
Plant and equipment 29 61
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 302 347
Other Expenses
Administration 739 759
Computing and communication 173 204
Legal fees 80 72
Travel 28 21
Other 21 20
Total Other Expenses 1 041 1076
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Section 21 Deposit Account with Westpac Bank 6772 2 204
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 772 2204
Receivables
Accrued interest 263 159
Other receivables 2 2
Total Receivables 265 161
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
2006 2005
Accumulated Written Accumulated Written
Cost/ Depreciation/ Down Cost/  Depreciation/ Down
Valuation Amortisation Value Valuation Amortisation Value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Leasehold improvements™® 550 207 343 1354 1215 139
Information technology 300 171 129 333 137 196
Plant and equipment® 92 36 56 604 548 56
942 414 528 2 291 1900 391

(1) Valuations of leasehold improvements and plant and equipment were performed by Simon B O’Leary
AAPI, MSAA, Certified Practicing Valuer - Plant and Machinery of the Australian Valuation Office as at

1 July 2005.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment - Movement Schedule

Carrying amount 1 July
Additions

Disposals

Revaluation
Depreciation

Carrying Amount 30 June

Security Bonds Lodged
Current:
Bonds lodged
Sale of goods
Rent held pursuant to tribunal direction

Total Current Security Bonds Lodged

Non-Current:
Bonds Lodged

Total Non-Current Security Bonds Lodged
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2006

Total

Property,

Leasehold Information Plant and Plant and
Improvements Technology Equipment Equipment
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
139 196 56 391

- - 14 14

410 - 15 425
(206) (67) (29) (302)
343 129 56 528
2006 2005

$'000 $'000

31 183 28 028

12 12

2 2

31197 28 042

32 745 27 666

32 745 27 666
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Payables 2006 2005
Current: $'000 $'000
Creditors 1 209 1140
Accruals 26 26
Total Payables 1 235 1166
Other Current Liabilities
Current:
Lease incentive - 50
Total Other Current Liabilities - 50
Cash Flow Reconciliation
Reconciliation of Cash - Cash at 30 June per:
Cash Flow Statement 6 772 2 204
Balance Sheet 6 772 2 204
Reconciliation of Net Result to Net Cash provided by Operating Activities
Net result (163) (643)
Add: Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 302 347
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in security bonds 8 234 5943
Increase (Decrease) in payables 69 (141)
Increase in receivables (104) (18)
Decrease in other liabilities (50) (65)
Net Cash provided by Operating